Agenda
City of Dunnellon
City Council Meeting
20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, FL 34431
May 6, 2016
5:30 P.M.

PLEASE NOTE: Individuals wishing to address the City Council please sign in. A three-minute time
limit will be administered. PLEASE TURN CELL PHONES OFF.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Opening Prayer/Moment of Silence (suggested time limit: 1 minute

Mayor to request if any invitee is present to open with prayer; if no invitee is present, Mayor will ask
if a Dunnellon citizen will volunteer. If no volunteers, a moment of silence will be offered. If a citizen
outside of Dunnellon requests to open with prayer, (s)he may so if no invitees/citizens volunteer.)

Roll Call

Proof of Publication (Posted on the City's website and City Hall bulletin board on
Friday, May 6, 2016)

Chairman's Comments Regarding Agenda
Public Comments

CONSENT AGENDA

(Note: Motion to approve items on the consent agenda is a motion to approve the recommended
actions.)

1. CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES
April 6, 2016
Documents: cwm20160406.pdf

2. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

April 11, 2016

Documents: cmm20160411.pdf

3. AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN CHANGE ORDER #1 - AGREEMENT
#AGR2016-12 WITH GWP, CHOICE HOTEL CDBG WATER MAIN
EXTENSION PROJECT, IN THE INCREASED AMOUNT OF $11,137.35

Documents: choicehotelextenprojectchangeorderl.pdf






10.

11.

. AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN CHANGE ORDER #2, AGREEMENT

#AGR2016-12 WITH GWP, CHOICE HOTEL WATER MAIN EXTENSION
FOR 3' WATER SERVICE IN THE INCREASED AMOUNT OF $9,437.70

Documents: changeorderNo2.pdf, gwp.pdf

. AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO WAIVE $11,750.00 OF THE DAILY

FINE ACCRUED THROUGH 12/15/15 ON LIEN #LIEN2015-02 FOR
19084 ST. GEORGE DR.

Documents: 19084StGeorgeDrLienPayoffAmts121515.pdf

. AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN VOLUNTARY

COOPERATION/OPERATIONAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT
#AGR2016-02 WITH BELLEVIEW POLICE DEPT.

Documents: cityofbelleviewvoluncoopassagrmt.pdf

. APPROVE PROCLAMATION #PR0O2016-07, WOMEN'S LUNG HEALTH

WEEK
Documents: PRO2016_07WomensLungHealthWeek.pdf
CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL

PROPOSED MOTION: | move the consent agenda be approved as
presented.

REGULAR AGENDA

. APPOINTMENT TO CITY COUNCIL SEAT NUMBER TWO (2) PER

CITY'S CHARTER

PROPOSED MOTION: I move be appointed to City
Council Seat # 2 until the next regular or special election.

. OATH OF OFFICE - SEAT # 2

DUNNELLON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE REPORT

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING - #PZ1516-045 FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW
#SPL2016-01 - 11191 N. WILLIAMS ST. - ZIEGENFUSS OR
DUNNELLON REAL ESTATE LLC FOR WENDY'S ( NOTIFICATION TO
APPLICANT AND ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS ON 04/22/2016)

Documents: PZ1516_045propertyownernotices_WendysSitePlan_20160422.pdf






12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

CONSIDERATION OF SITE PLAN #PZ1516-045, 11191 N. WILLIAMS
ST., ZIEGENFUSS OR DUNNELLON REAL ESTATE LLC FOR
WENDY'S

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to find the site plan consistent with the
City's Comprehensive Plan.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move the site plan for Wendy's be approved.

Documents: WendysPCSitePlanPKT20160502withsignedRESO.pdf

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING - TREE REMOVAL PERMIT APPLICATION
#PZ1516-047 FOR 11680 CHEROKEE CIRCLE (NOTICE TO
PROPERTY OWNER MAILED AND EMAILED ON 5/6/2016)

Documents: Property Owner Notice_Mathew Remai_Vogt Springs.pdf

CONSIDERATION OF TREE REMOVAL PERMIT #PZ1516-047, 11680
CHEROKEE CIRCLE, PARCEL NUMBER 3366-097-000, MATTHEW
REMAI

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to affirm the Tree Board's
recommendation to allow removal of one (1) 23.8" D.B.H. Heritage
Cypress Tree - 11680 Cherokee Circle.

Documents: PZ1516 047TreeRemovall1680CherokeeCypress.pdf
FY2014-2015 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT - PRESENTATION BY
RICHARD POWELL OF POWELL AND JONES, CPA

Documents: auditreport2015dunnellon.pdf

E. PENNSYLVANIA AVE BIKE TRAIL CONCEPTUAL PLAN - MARION
COUNTY TPO

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to select the option labeled Pennsylvania
Avenue Alternate as presented by TPO in the Design
Alternatives Study dated April 2016 prepared by Kimley Horn.

Documents: Pennsylvania Avenue MEMO April 2016_FINAL.pdf

#LIEN2012-43, 20717 WALNUT STREET

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to authorize the City Manager to waive
$683.27 of the interest accrued through April 25, 2016 on #Lien2012-43,
20717 Walnut Street.

Documents: 20717Walnutemail.pdf, vacantparcel20717walnut.pdf

AGREEMENT #AGR2016-21, KIMLEY HORN IPO#52 - SHORT TOWER
WAY RECONSTRUCTION



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to authorize the Mayor sign IPO#52 to
Agreement #AGR2016 -21 with Kimley Horn for Reconstruction and
resurfacing Short Tower Way, from CR 484 to the end of the City's ROW
for a total length of approximately 500 feet.

Documents: IPO52.pdf

AGREEMENT #AGR2016-22, KIMLEY HORN IPO#53 - JULIETTE
FALLS WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY OPERATING PERMIT
RENEWAL

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to authorize the Mayor sign IPO#53 to
Agreement #AGR2016 -22 with Kimley Horn for Juliette Falls Wastewater
Treatment Facility operating permit.

Documents:  IP053.pdf

AGREEMENT #AGR2016-25, AMENDMENT ONE (1) TO GRANT
AGREEMENT #P0O139 WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC
OPPORTUNITY

PROPOSED MOTION: | move the Mayor be authorized to sign
Amendment One (1) to Grant Agreement #P0139 with the Department of
Economic Opportunity.

Documents: AmendmentTechAssisGrantAgreement.pdf

RESOLUTION #RES2016-12, ADOPTING LOCAL MITIGATION
STRATEGY (LMS) PLAN 2015 UPDATE

PROPOSED MOTION: | move Resolution #RES2016-12 be read by title
only.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move Resolution #RES2016-12 be approved.

Documents: RES2016_12_LocalMitigationStrategy.pdf

REPAYMENT OF DEBT TO WATER & SEWER FUNDS

PROPOSED MOTION: | move in recognition of City Council's
affirmation that Resolution #RES2012-29 is a valid financial obligation
that may be repaid from the General Fund to the Water/Sewer
Emergency Reserve Account, and in recognition of the attached
recommendation received from the Utility Advisory Board at the April 20,
2016 Special Council Meeting, the City will include partial re-payment of
this obligation within the annual budget for the fiscal year 2016/17, and
recognizing that it is the current intent and goal to satisfy this obligation,
that any possible future payments thereafter will be considered on an
annual basis.

FORMAL RESPONSE FROM THE VOTERS AND TAXPAYERS



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

PROPOSED MOTION: | move City Council agree to create a ballot to be
mailed to both the property tax payers and registered voters of the City of
Dunnellon that will contain both education and ballot questions/options
pertaining to level of services, assessment fees, and ad valorem tax rate
in order to acquire formal input to assist the Council in determining future
operating direction and decision making.

CHARTER REFERENDUM, CITY MANAGER

PROPOSED MOTION: | move to direct the City Attorney to prepare a
referendum ordinance submitting to the electors of Dunnellon a
proposed amendment abolishing section 18a - City Manager and
amending the remaining sections that are affected by this change as
appropriate.

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS
CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

ADJOURN

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the City Council meeting be adjourned.

ANY PERSON REQUIRING A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION AT THIS HEARING BECAUSE OF A
DISABILITY OR PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENT SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT
(352) 465-8500 AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE PROCEEDING. IF A PERSON DESIRES
TO APPEAL ANY DECISION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THE ABOVE
MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND
FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON
WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. THE CITY IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY
MECHANICAL FAILURE OF RECORDING EQUIPMENT.



CITY OF DUNNELLON
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

DATE: April 06, 2016
TIME: 5:30 p.m.
PLACE: City Hall
20750 River Dr., Dunnellon, FL 34431

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Whitt called the meeting to order at approximatel$4 p.m. and led the Couilc

in the Pledge of Allegiancéie asked if any invitee or volunteer was present to open with
prayer.There was nonéVlayor Whittcalled for a moment of silence.

ROLL CALL

The following members answered present at roll call:
Nathanwhitt, Mayor, Seat 1

Johanna Soldat&eat 2

Chuck Dillon,Seat 3

Walter GreenVice-Mayor, Seat 4

Richard Hancock, Seat 5

STAFE PRESENT

Eddie EschCity Manager

Dawn Bowne City Clerk

Chief Mike McQuaig, Police Dept.
Lt. Troy Slattery Interim Fire Chief
Jan Smith, Finance Dept.

Lynn Wyland, Staff Assistant

LEGAL COUNSEL
Andrew Hand
Shepard, Smith & Cassady

PROOF OF PUBLICATION
Mrs. Bowne announced for the record tlagendafor this meetingwas posted on the
City’s website and City Hall bulletin board on Monday, April 4, 2016.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 —NEW POLICE OFFICER INTRODUCTIONS — CHIEF
MCQUAIG

Chief McQuaig introducedhe department'siewest €ficer, Shawn Carter. He said
Officer Carter wasan officerwith the DunnellonPolice Department éfm 1999 to 2007
prior to serving a tour of duty in Afghanistan.

Chief McQuaig announcethterim Fire Chief Slatterjhas joined theReserveOfficer
program He said Lt. Slatterwill completefield training withinthe next few monthand
become a certifiedfficer with the Dunnellon Police Department.
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Chief McQuaig announced Robert Johnson, Assistant Director of the Marion County
EmergencyManagementhas been invited to atteritie Monday, April 11™ council
meetingto addresshe upcoming hurricane season.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 —BOARD REPORTS

Hugh Lochrane, Chair of thg AB, extended a thank you t©ouncil and stafffor their
participation in thejoint workshop meeting held in March.He said some of the
discussions and conclusiotisat camefrom the meeting are going to go a long way to
resolve manyssues.He announced theextUAB meeting will be April 18.

Councilman Dillon reported on the 12Rnniversary Committee He annoured the

committee will be selling tee shirtand collecting engraved brick applicatienat

Boomtown Days as part of the fundraider the bike park He alsodiscussed the
Dunnellon Birthday Party sponsored by the Historical Society to be hidd atan depot
on Thursday, April 2% at 5:30.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3—DUNNELLON BUSINESS ASSOCIATION REPORT
Mathew Baillargeon, Presidentntroduced Danielle Stevens, thessociation’s new
Executive Director. Ms. Stevens explaindgok concept of a newprogram they are
initiating called “Visitor's Passport’” which will offer discounts from participating
businesses throughout Dunnellon.

Councilwoman Soldato asked if the City targets certain types of business@aseinto
Dunnellon.

Council engaged irief discussion regarding encouraging nleusinesse$o locate in
Dunnellon.

Mr. Baillargeon provided an update on the lighting at the ball field. He said they have
the poles andre nav waitingfor the lease agreement.

Mr. Esch provided an update time lease agreement for the ball field. $#edthe last
piecewill be goingto the PlanningCommission in order to be in compliance with the
Comp Plan.

Mrs. Bowne addressed Councilwoman Sol@atguestionregarding targeting certain
types of businesses. Shévised Councibf a strate@ plan and mission statememhich
was adopted by a prior council. She said this document addresseadesmifies the
types size or kinds of businegsand focuseson a walkable communitpromoting
development that makes the City more independensalfdufficient

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 —CHAMBER OF COMMERCE REPORT

Penny Loftonprovided her report and statdte Chamber of Commerce is working with
Marion County CERnd neeting withComfortSuite representativee discuss what kind
of ecotourism will come into their hotel.
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Mrs. Lofton provided a report on Dunnellon’s Boomtown DayShe said the main
events will beneldon Saturday, April 18. She saidhe Six Gun Territory’'sehearsal is
scheduledor Saturday, April 8 at noon with television and radio coverage attending.
This event will take place at the old library on the corner of Pennsylvania Avenue and
Cedar Street

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 — REQUEST TO USE OLD LIBRARY BUILD ING —
PRESENTATION BY MARION SENIOR SERVICES —JENNIFER MARTINEZ

Ms. Martinez providedh backgroundnd history of Marion Senior Servicaad herself

She stated thagency’smission is to help seniors remain independent. She said Marion
Senior Serviceshas been around for approximatdiyty (40) years and here are
approximatelyten (L0) sites in Marion CountyShe saidhey have identified transit and
meals athe two biggest needs in the Dunnellon arbés. Martinezdescribechow the
dinning sitegrovide an opportunity for the seniors to socialishe expressedterest in
forming a partnership between the City and Marion Senior Services.

Council and staff engaged in discussion wills. Martinez regarding kitchen needs,
liability insurance, trasportation andn agreement.

Councilman Dillon discussed the possibility and benefits of an “artisbpto
sharing/pigging backing with the seniors in the buildivgalter McClellan was present
to provide information abouhe artist groupn Rainbow Springs.

Council and staff engaged in discussion regarding the status aérthatscurrently
occupyingthe old library building.

Attorney Handstated hewill provide an update on thisubjectat the April 11" council
meeting.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 —REQUEST TO PURCHASE OLD LIBRARY BUILDING
—PRESENTATION BY ELIZABETH CHRYST —ROBERTS REAL ESTATE

Ms. Chryst Chairman of the Building Committee of United Methodist Chustdited the
committee wouldike to encourage the City to consider sglthe old Ibrary building.
She explainedheir intention would be to move and expand their Secondstifeeand
possibly add Christiarbook gore to the location.

Councilman Dillon asked MsChryst if they had an estimate or range of what the
building would be worth.She repliedyes, but sheidn’t have the authority to provide
those numbers yet.

Mr. Esch explained both the Marion Senior Services and Building Committee of the
United Methodist Church have timelines and he is hofiagncil can providedirection
during Monday’s council meeting.
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Vice-Mayor Green stated his concerns regarding the tenant @stiee old library
building.

Council and staff engaged in discussion regarding Florida Cable.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7—-REQUEST TO APPOINT TREE BOARD MEMBER
Staff recommended Council appoint the following members as presented:

TREE BOARD
APPOINTMENT WORKSHEET

Council Workshop Date: 04/06/2016 Reqular Meeting Date: 04/11/2016

=
&
App Current/Recent Current @ New Recommended Adion
Noe Acdrws Board Member Position s Position
=
1 _ i &B25 SW 207h (Ot Appaint 10 tull Member for the rerm of
Cendy Craig Phiedtion ! Yes 1+ Altemate | No Member Apeif 11, 2016 = dprll &, 2019
previous term expired Morch B, 2014)
2 ] 11937 Hale St Appaint 1o 19 Altarnate for the
Sally Chesterfield [}unnellonc Gt Mo MNone Yes 1" Aternate | unengired term Aprd 11, 2016 -
December 38 2007
i Cerfity Voconcy, previows term expired
: Yoot Alt:nme e

Planning Commizsion Only: The ofy planning commission consists of five members plus two alternote members, appainted by the oy
council. A maximum of two members and one oliernate may be non-residenf properfy owners and/or non-resident business awners. Non-
resident property owners and/or non-resident business owners must hove owned property and /or owned a business within the cify for three
years prior fo being eligible for soid appointment.

Council agreed to place this item on the consent agenda.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 — SCHEDULING OF FUTURE WORKSHOPS TO
DISCUSS CITY FINANCES — COUNCILWOMAN SOLDATO

CouncilwomanSoldato discussethe schedulingof workshopsto discuss the City’s
finances She provided Council a list of items regarding the City’'s expenses and revenue
as follows:
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To: Dunnellon City Council
From: Councilwoman |ohanna Soldate,
Date: April 6, 2016

RE: Budget to actuals and the Water/Sewer funds

The council, other boards and residents, have to realize that adding additional debt
or switching debt from one fund/account to another has global effects on our
budget. If you take money from one area you will ultimately impact another. 1 agree
that we are morally obligated to pay back monies to the water/sewer fund that
should not have been taken in the first place but how we do this needs to be
carefully analyzed. If you don't you may have catastrophic eﬂ"ects that you may not
be in a position to handle in the future.

I believe that you will find when the audit is complete, that we are doing OK right
now however, we have much to consider before we make another
commitment/resolution to pay back money to the Water/Sewer fund. [ also believe
that we cannot set an amount to the payback until the end of year audit (each year)
is done. Please consider the following:

Expenses:

1. We can anticipate an approximate $354,609 loss of gas tax revenue for roads,
(Operating loss $213,235. Capital loss $141,374)

2. We are obligated to meet the requirements of the Rainbow Springs
Settlement and pay the 2 and final installment of §212. EBS 48 no later than
February 12, 2017.

3. We are required to pay back a total of $1,362,664.83 bond money. This was
originally budgeted at $50,000 for FY 2015-2016 but was reduced due to
budget constraints. Based on audited surplus a budget amendment should
be done to transfer funds from general fund to water/sewer bond proceed
reserve.

4. We have to come up with another % of the police chief's salary, ¥ of the fire
chief's salary and % of the fire/rescue lieutenant's salary. Police Dept.
revenue, fines and forfeitures, is under budget 37.1% as of 3/31/16. The
majority of these revenues help fund the police department.

5. According to our accountants, we should have approximately 4 months of
unassigned fund balance on hand for emergencies. (i.e. 4 months of operating
budgets)

6. Other balloon bond payments will be coming due. We have to have money in
reserve so that a bank will consider us a good risk for refinancing.

7. The previous resolutions signed by council {(and new ones) are committed
monies just like the $1.4 million debt to the Water/Sewer fund,



City of Dunnellon
City Council Workshop

April 6, 2016
Page6
8. Council often develops resolutions without understanding the full impact of

10.

11.

12

13.

these financial decisions. Once financial decisions are put in writing they
become committed monies.

We have to more accurately reflect our capital assets so that they match the
financial ledger and are correct on our depreciation schedule, Finance was on
track to complete this at end of FY 2014-2015 until the resignation of the
Finance Accountant. This audit finding will be resolved by end of fiscal year
2015-2015.

We have to make sure our current inventory list is correct in order to save
monies for our auto insurance premiums.

All amortization schedules {and interest] need to be reflected in our budget.
Annual debt service is currently reflected in the FY 2015-2016 budget.

We need to know what large expenses, both operating and capital, we will
incur by fund in the next five years in order to determine our cash flow
needs. (example: fire truck, water tower inspection, fee study, attorney fees)
Currently accruals for compensated absences equal $122,438.65 General
Fund and $165,622.63 Water and Sewer Funds. A transfer needs to be made
to a committed reserve for compensated absences ata minimum annually.

Revenue:

1.

We may be able to use the remaining Public Safety Building Fund reserve -
$156,747.96 and end of year surplus monies $[will know exact amount when

- audit is complete) this year however, this income will not be available next

o

year unless we sell some assets. This would leave us with $12,323.75
emergency reserve funds for an emergency.

We may receive approximately $100,000-5200,000 in FY 2017 from the new
1 % infrastructure surtax. We will receive an estimate of this around June 30
from the Office of Economic and Demographic Research. These funds are for
capital items only for Police, Fire/Rescue and Roads & Streets,

We may receive approximately $38.000 in new revenue from the hotel.

We could do a fire assessment fee to add revenue.

We may be able to cut staff or reduce their hours for a reduction in salary and
benefits faccruals,

We can and probably should reduce all empioyee benefits. We currently pay
100% of their health insurance premium. Their retirement is generous.
Some benefits have already been reduced. This must be weighed against the
cost to hire and train new employees, estimated at 1 year's salary as this will
most likely have an impact on employee recruitment and retention.

We need to closely analyze grant requirements. There are specific
requirements and if we don't meet them we will lose monies or have to pay
the grant back (ex. We had to pay back 513,145 for a policeman's salary
because one left and it took to long to hire the next).

There are minimal expenditures that could be removed from the budget.
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My recommendation with the support of our accountants and Jan Smith (Finance
Director) is to do a resolution for pay back of the $1.4 debt, This resolution will
allow council to approve the transfer of GF monies after the accountants have closed
our books at the énd of the year. The monies would be transferred from the General
Fund unassigned reserve to the Water/Sewer committed (Capital Replacement)
reserve. | have asked Jan and our accountants to develop a resolution that will be
given to you for consideration. Once you receive this resolution, we can meet with
the Utility Board for a discussion.

She said thepurpose of th first meeting vill be to educate¢he residents on the City’'s
budget and finances.

Council and staff engaged in discussion and agreed to schedule the first wavkshop
Wednesday, April ZDat 5:30 p.m.

Councilman HancoclanticipatedCouncil would agree to meet every Wednesday until
such time Council had lzetterunderstanding oivhat the City’s situation jsand a feel for
whatthey are going to dabout it. Councilman Hancock stated Council is not doing a
service to the public by méing once a month and not taking action the first time we
meet. He said he would like to have a debt schedule to discuss at the first workshop and
copies of Councilwoman Solda&omaterial shehas collected prioto the meetings so
Council can begin to veew and educate themselves.

Councilman Hancock statedouncil and staff have talked about refinanciwhjch he
believesisn’'t the answer. He said we have to spread our paymemis He said ve
should not be adding to the delte have to reschedule debnd not refinance it.He
said Council mustake action and stacbnsidering the options.

Councilman Hancock addressed the budget processsaddt should not take four
months topreparethe budget. He said we need to find way simplify the proess by
establishing the parameters of what the budget process should look like.

Vice-Mayor Green and Mr. Esch thanked Councilwoman Soldatoher energy and
effort regarding this projecand stated they are very grateful for what she brings to the
table.

Mayor Whitt thanked Councilwoman Soldato and said he applauds her optimism and
original scope. He said he believes the City is on the right track and hasqdlerork
to do.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 —TOPICS OF DISCUSSION—VICE -MAYOR GREEN

Council Meeting Agenda

Vice-Mayor Greenaddressed the extended length of the council workshops and meetings.
He saidthesemeetings shoulahot extend more than two hoursHe recommendedf
Council or staff perceives that an itenfor the agendas going to be legthy, to either
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movethe item to he next meeting or to call the meeting after two hours and schedule a
follow-up meeting.

Council and staff engaged in discussion and agreed to target “two hour” meetings.

Dunnellon Memorial Gardens street repair

Vice-Mayor Greendiscussed theoads in the newer section of the cemetery. He
expressed thargency tohave the roadseepavel soon because delayed it may costhe
City morein the future.

Council and staff engaged in discussion regarding the cost of repaving the roads and
using the funds in reserves. Mr. Esch estietathe cost of the project to be
approximately $30,000.

Council agreed towthorizeMr. Eschto prepare afRFPandadvertisgor this projectand
to place this item on the consent agenda.

AGENDA ITEM NO. — 10 —TOPICS OF DISCUSSION — COUNCILMAN

DILLON

Ninelsland Cove

Councilman Dillon described a situation he discovered when asked to build a home on
Nine Island CoveHe stéed there are sewer linés Nine Island Coveput no sewer
service He askedstaff to researchndfind out if thisis a private subdivisigrand if not

to look at some type of assessment. He said there are 20 lots in Nine Island Cove and he
does not want septic tanks on the river.

Rainbow River Ranch

Councilman Dillonstated thaBWFWMD has agreed to purchase the property. He said
they had an appraisal doménich came in undethe priceMr. Dodd is askingor the

property. He suggested having someone contact conservation based organizations such as
Sierra andnquire if they canassistand perhap$orm a partnership as they did at Three
Sister SpringsHe said we need torm aconsensus. He said Mr. Dodd wants to sell the
property and heés frustrated.

Councilman Hancockaidheis okay with continuingo purse discussion with angr all
parties to try and come tresolution.

Councilman Dillon stated his greatest concern is that the Planning Commission and the
City Councilwill have no sayin the development of this property.

Council provided their consensus witbouncilman Dillonacting as a liaisomo purse
such alternative
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City Liens

Councilman Dillon stated he reviewed the liens on the propertigheinCity and
concludel thereis only one worth pursuing. He said the City is in need of parking and
this property could be used as a parking ite. stated the lien amount far exceeds the
value of the lot antie may be able to persuade the owner to deed the property taythe Ci
in lieu of foreclosing.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 —DISCUSSION — CITY ENTRANCE SIGNS — CITY
MANAGER

Mr. Esch stated in psr meetings there has bediscussiorregardingtrying to keep the
signs maintenance fread possibly made witboncreteor marble. He said he ceived
commentdrom the Historic Boardregardingtheir desire to have the sign materiato-
based’ He stateditizenshave also commentehley like theappearance of thglue Run
Park sign which he discovered is mea with urethanewhich he saidwould be more
durable.

Mr. Eschrequeste@pproval from Council tprepareanRFP toacquirethat type of sign

Council and staff engaged in brief discussimmd agreed to place ¢hmotionon the
consent agenda.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 — VOLUNTARY COOPERATION/OPERATIONAL
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT _#AGR2016-18 WITH MARION COUNTY
SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Mayor Whitt explained this agreement is consistent with those that the City teasden
into with various other surrounding county and municipal agencies annually.

Council agreed to place this item on the consent agenda.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 — RESOLUTION #201612, LOCAL MITIGATION
STRATEGY (LMS) PLAN

Council and staff engaged in discussion and agreed to table this project until May to
allow Councilmoretime to revew.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 —COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilman Dillon stated Attorney Cassaatyd Mrs. Smithhave beerworking on the
City’s propertyliens. He saidifter further consideratioe thought it would be Iséto
wait and negotiate tharice when the property is purchased.

Council and staff agreed.
Other council comments received:

Councilman Hancock apologized for anything he may have said that offended
Councilwoman Soldato or the audiendé¢e explained his inten
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Mayor Whitt provided an update orthe Withlacoochee River Basin Economic
Development Partnership group that he has been working with.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15-CITY MANAGER CO MMENTS

Mr. Esch provided his report on the following:

Collapsed manhole in Rainbow Springs

Tyco Integrated Security agreement

180" force main water/sewgroject

SWFWMD and Florida Rural Water Associatiomattempting to reduce
consumption water loss

e Changing outvater meters from manual read to radio read meters

e Proposecextra meetings

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16-PUBLIC COMMENTS

Joan Duggins, 19687 SW '88Loop, discussedher discouragementegarding
presentations. She commentedttom presenters exiig soon after their presentation and
how this doesn’t allow the public to askem questions. She also té a question
regarding thevater main project by th&/inn Dixie.

Attorney Hand lefthe meetingapproximately 8:30 p.m.

Mary Ann Hilton, 12078 Palmetto Coudiscussed the old library building and the
Rainbow River Ranch.

The meeting was adjourned at approxima887 p.m.

Attest:

Dawn Bowne, MMC Nathan Whitt, Mayor
City Clerk

PAminutes counciWws\20160406.doc



CITY OF DUNNELLON
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

DATE: April 11, 2016
TIME: 530 p.m.
PLACE: City Hall
20750 River Dr., Dunnellon, FL 34431

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Whitt called the meeting to order at approxima&eB6p.m. and led the Council in
the Pledge of Allegiance. Pastor Tom Wetchvided the invocation.

ROLL CALL

The following members answered present at roll call:
Nathan Whitt, Mayor, Seat 1

Vacant, Seat 2

Chuck Dillon, Councinan, Seat 3

Walter GreenVice-Mayor, Seat 4

Richard HancockCouncilman, Seat 5

STAFE PRESENT

Eddie Esch, City Manager
Dawn BowneCity Clerk

Jan Smith, Finance Officer
Mike McQuaig, Police Chief
Lynn Wyland, Staff Assistant

LEGAL COUNSEL
Andrew Hand
Shepard, Smith & Cassady

PROOF OF PUBLICATION
Mrs. Bowneannounced for the record thgenddor this meetingvas posted on the City’s
website and City Hall bulletin board émiday, April 8, 2016.

Mayor Whitt called for public comments on agenda items only.
Kathryn Taubert, 19436 SW 19Place Rd., provided a handout to Council and staff
regarding the Suwannee - St. Johns Group Sierra Club and provided a brief presentation.

Janet Barrow11791 SW 164 Avenue Rd, discussed the propos&hbel TrailPipeline
She wanted to raise attentiaboutthis issue and the effects the pipeline could impose on
the environment.

Mary Ann Hilton, 12078 Palmetto Ct., discussegnddtems #6 and #@nd asked that they
be removed from the agenda.
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JoanDuggins, 19687 SW &8Loop, addressedgenddtem #8.She asked several questions
regarding the entrance signs.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1.

(Note:

City Council Workshop Minutes
February 17, 2016 Special
March 9, 2016

City Council Minutes
February 8, 2016
February 17, 2016 Special
March 6, 2016 -Special
March 14, 2016

Approve Proclamation #PR02016-08ational Day of Prayer

Approve Proclamation #PR02016-06, Arbor Day

Tree Board Appointments

Appoint Candy Craig as a regular member of the Tree Board effectivielApri
2016, term to expire April 11, 2019. (Term previous held by P. Marraffino —
expired March 8, 2016)

Appoint Sally Chesterfield as®lalternate member of the Tree Board to fill
unexpired term formerly held by Candy Craig effective April 11, 20&6n tto
expire December 28, 2017.

Authorize Mayor to sign Voluntary Cooperation/Operational Assistance
Agreement with Marion County Sheriff's Office.

Authorize Mayor to sign Agreement #AGR20121, Tyco Security Renewal.

Authorize staff to prepare specifications and bid for the design and production of
City entrance signs.

Authorize staff to prepare specifications and bid for resurfacing of the ma
cemetery street in Dunnellon Memorial Gardens.

Motion to approve items on the consent agenda rnsotion to approve the

recommended actions.)

Councilman Dillon noved the consent agenda be approasdpresented.Councilman
Hancockseconded the moticand all were in favor. The vote wa<0
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REGULAR AGENDA
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 —SPECIAL PRESENTATION BY DUNNELLON CITY

COUNCIL TOLT. TODD SPICHER
Mayor Whittpresented a plaque and read the following:

“In recognition of your professional leadership and service to the City of Dunnelln whi
serving as Interim Police ChiefYyour commitment to CitCouncil, community and staff to
effectively maintain police operations, strengthening the City’s paHipersith Marion
County’s Sheriff's Offices sincerely appreciated. April 11, 2016.”

Chief McQuaig presented Lt. Spicheith a shadowbox containing l@adge,and thanked
him for stepping in as Dunnellon’s Interim Police Chief.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 -PREPARATION FOR UPCOMING HURRICANE
SEASON — MSG. ROBERT R. JOHNSON, MARION COUNTY DEPUTY
DIRECTOR —EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Lt. Chip Wildy, Marion County Enmgency ManagemenDirector was presenand
introduced MSG. Robert R. Johnson.

MSG. Johnson provided details abaantupcoming hurricane exercise to be held on May 18,
2016 from 8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and a breakfast on Juhat7330 a.m. Hencourged
Council and staff to participate.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 —PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION #PR0O2016-05,
NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER —PASTOR TOM WELCH

Mayor Whitt read the following proclamation and presented the same ta PastdoNelch
and his wife, Marylin Wedh:

“PROCLAMATION #PR0O2016-05
NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER

WHEREAS, prayer to the Almighty God is regarded by millions as the most important
utterance of mankind for its benefit; and

WHEREAS, our nation was founded by singleinded men and women seeking wisdom
and guidance through prayer to the God who has ears to hear; and

WHEREAS, prayer has aided us in all times where support and guidance was needed; and
WHEREAS, it is fitting that we bould give thanks for the freedom and prosperity which

our nation and state enjoys and to pray for the continued guidance and comfort which God
has graciously bestowed upon this nation since its inception; and
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WHEREAS, the Day of Prayer is a time set asifibr Americans to pray to their heavenly
Father and to reaffirm the spiritual principles upon which our nation was founded; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida and the United States of America can and will benefit from
prayer by its faithful and prayerfutsidents; and

WHEREAS, this year’s theme is, Wake Up America”, emphasizing the need for
individuals, corporately and individually, to return to the God of Fathers in reveianides

Holy Name. To further highlight the theme, Isaiah 58:1a has been chosen as theescriptur
for this year?Shout it aloud, do not hold back. Raise your voice like a trumpet;’and

WHEREAS, across our land on May 5th Americans will unite at specific times in prayer for
our nation and state to acknowledge our dependence upon God, to give thanks for the many
blessings our country has received from Him, to recognize our need for personal and
corporate renewal of moral values and to invoke God’s blessings upon our leaders.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it proclaimedhe City Council ofthe City of Dunnellon, Florida,

does hereby recognize May 5, 2016 as th@TIONAL DAY OF PRAYER " and urges all
citizens in Marion County to pray with diligence and obedience and seek the face of
Almighty God to direct our paths in the days and years ahead.

PASSED and PROCLAIMED this 11th day of April 2016.”
AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 —PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION #PR0O2016-06,

ARBOR DAY — CANDY CRAIG REPRESENTING THE TREE BOARD
Mayor Whitt read the following proclamation

“THE CITY OF DUNNELLON
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
A PROCLAMATION

#PRO2016-06

WHEREAS, 2016 marks the 194rd anniversary of Arbor Deycl

WHEREAS, trees are among Florida’s, and more particularly the City of Dunnellon’s, most
beautiful natural resources; they bestow fine opportunities for aestpgireciation and
recreation as well as improvements for our homes and communities, and arensab$pe

to our ecology as providers of wildlife habitat, erosion control, air filters andenoi
inhibitors and

WHEREAS, the demands on our environment and on our environmental resources
necessitate an increased awareness of ecological values, as well as individuaheotio
the study and appreciation of trees and their maintenance.
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NOW, THEREFORE, I, Nathan Whitt, Mayor of the City of Dunnellon, in tistate of
Florida, do hereby proclaimFRIDAY, APRIL 2 9, 2016 asARBOR DAY in the City of
Dunnellon, State of Florida, and | commend this observance to all citizens.”

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 — PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE #ORD2016-01,
AMENDMENTS TO THE ZONING CODE — ALLOWING CHICKENS TO BE
KEPT IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS - Advertised on the City Website on 3/21/2016 and

in the Riverland News on 3/31/2016 and the Ocala Star Banner on 3/31/2016

Mayor Whitt stated;All persons wishing to address the City Council will dmked to limit
their comments to the specific subject being addressed. Public opinions and inplutemre va
by the Council. However, it is requested that comments are directed at sgsuiis father
than personal comments directed toward the Counermbers or staff in order to foster
mutual respect between council members and the public.

Members of the public in attendance at public forums should listen courteously and
attentively to all public discussions before the body; and focus on the busihasslathey

shall refrain from interrupting other speakers; making personal commenggemoane to

the business of the body; or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct bhgsee

Members of the public addressing City Council and boards/comnsssiona specific
project or proposal are requested to disclose any personal interest or relatiandhany
business, professional, or financial interests with any individual, group, project or glropos
regarding the subject matter under review. Members of the public should alwaystlee
side of more public disclosure, not less, in order to provide integrity to the public process. “
Mayor Whitt gavel down and said, “It is nd&v30p.m. and | close the regular meeting and
open the public hearing tostiuss

Ordinance#ORD201601, Amendment to the Zoning Code, allowing chickens to be kept in
residential areas. dvertised in the Riverland News and in the Ocala Star Banner on
3/31/2016 on 3/3/2016 and on the City’s Website on 3/21/2016 .“

Mayor Whittcalled for staff comments.

Mr. Esch stated this ordinance was requested by a citizen thxoogtMayor Green. He
explainedthe ordinance will allow up to six (6) chickeasd they must be hens only. He
explained the other requirements.

Mayor Whitt alled for public comment. There was none.

Mayor Whitt gavel down and said, “It is now 6:32 p.m. and | close the public hearingpheld t
discuss @inance #ORD2016-01 and reopen the April 11th council meeting.”
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 15 — SECOND AND FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE
#0ORD201601, AMENDMENTS TO THE ZONING CODE - ALLOWING
CHICKENS TO BE KEPT IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS

Councilman Dillon moved Ordinance #ORD2006 be read by title only. Vieklayor
Green seconded the motion and all were in favor. The vote was 4-0.

Mrs. Bowne read the following into the record:
“ORDINANCE #0ORD2016-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA, AMENDING
THE DUNNELLON CITY CODE, CHAPTER 14, “ANIMALS,” TO
ALLOW CHICKENS TO BE KEPT ON LOTS OR PARCELS WI TH SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DESIGNATIONS; AMENDING
SECTIONS 7.1 AND 7.2 OF THE ZONING CODE TO ALLOW CHICKEN -
KEEPING AS AN ACCESSORY USE IN CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICTS AND DEFINING CHICKEN -KEEPING; PROVIDING
SPECIFIC CRITERIA FOR CHICKEN -KEEPING; AMENDING VARIOUS
SECTIONS OF THE CODE AND ZONING CODE TO BE CONSISTENT
WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING
FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE D ATE.”

Vice-Mayor Green moved Ordinance #ORD2@1b6 be approved. Councilman Dillon
seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Mayor Whitt called for discussion. There was none.
The vote was taken and all were in favor. The vote was 4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16 — PUBLIC HEARING — ORDINANCE #ORD2016-04,
AMENDMENT TO SECTION 39 OF THE CITY'S CHARTER NEEDED TO
COMPLY WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MAILING OF OVERSEAS
BALLOTS (Published on the City website on 3/21/2016 and in the Riverland Newon
3/31/2016)

Mayor Whitt stated, “All persons wishing to address the City Council will bedagk limit
their comments to the specific subject being addressed. Public opinions and inpluteate va
by the Council. However, it is requested that comments are diredpddatic issues rather
than personal comments directed toward the Council members or staff in oridster
mutual respect between council members and the public.

Members of the public in attendance at public forums should listen courteously and
attentiely to all public discussions before the body; and focus on the business at hand. They
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shall refrain from interrupting other speakers; making personal commengemoane to
the business of the body; or otherwise interfering with the orderly conducetings.

Members of the public addressing City Council and boards/commissions on a specific
project or proposal are requested to disclose any personal interest or relatiandhany
business, professional, or financial interests with any individual, group, project or gdropos
regarding the subject matter under review. Members of the public should alwaystlee

side of more public disclosure, not less, in order to provide integrity to the public process. “

Mayor Whitt gaveled down and saitl is now 6:35p.m. and | close the regular meeting
and open the public hearing to discuss:

Ordinance #ORD20164, Amendments to SectioB9 of the City’'s Charter needed to
comply with Federal requirements for mailing of overseas balloAgivertised in the
Riverland News on 3/31/2016 and on the City’'s Website on 3/21/2016.”

Mrs. Bowne stated the City was notified by tarion CountySupervisor oElections that

the City’s Charter requirements make it impossible for the elections office toFedetal

and Staterequiremerg in the evenof a run-off electionwith regard to mailingf overseas
ballots Shesaid the Site Statute would trump the City’'s Chartdrfor some reason the
referendum doesn’t pass. She explained the City would then be in violation of its own
Charter.

Mrs. Bowne also discussed the need to amend language in the City’'s Code regarding the
certification of election results.

Mayor Whitt called for public comment. There was none.

Mayor Whitt gaveled down and saltt is now 6:38 pm. and | close the public hearing held
to discuss Ordinance #ORD2016-04 and reopen the April 11th council meeting.”

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17 — SECOND AND FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE
#ORD201604, AMENDMENT TO SECTION 39 OF CITY'S CHARTER NEEDED

TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MAILING OF
OVERSEAS BALLOTS

Vice-Mayor Greenmoved Ordinance #ORD204®B! be read by title only. Councilman
Hancock seconded the motion. The vote was taken and all were in favor. The vote was 4-0.

Mrs. Bowne read the following into the record:
“ORDINANCE #ORD2016-04

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA,
SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS OF DUNNELLON A PROPOSED
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AMENDMENT TO SECTION 39 OF THE CITY CHARTER CHANGING
THE DAY AND MONTH OF A RUN -OFF ELECTION IN THE EVENT OF A
TIE VOTE TO BE CONSISTENT WITH FEDERAL LAW; PROVIDING
THE BALLOT TITLE, SUMMARY, AND TEXT FOR THE PROPOSED
AMENDMENT; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK;

PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CHARTER
AMENDMENT IF APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF ELECTORS;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND EFFECTIVE DATE
FOR THIS ORDINANCE.”

Councilman Hancocknoved Ordinance #ORD204®! be approved.Vice-Mayor Green
seconded the motion.

Mayor Whitt called for discussion.

Councilman Dillon asked Mrs. Bowrte explan if the Cityis amendhg the Charter by
ordinance.

Mrs. Bowne said if adopted by Council, the ordinance provides for a ballot referendum.
The vote was taken and all were in favor. The voteda@s

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18 — AMENDMENT #1 AGREEMENT #AGR2015-21
KIMLEY -HORN IPO#50 CHOICE HOTEL CDBG WATER MAIN EXTENSION
PROJECT CHANGE ORDER — RE-DESIGN BASED ON NEW RIGHT-OF-WAY
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY FDOT

Mr. Esch explained this amendment is &ne-designnear the Porter property andbiased

on new rightof-way (ROW) information provided by FDOT. He said FDOT provided
erroneous ROW information at time of contract award. He stated grant furanigebn
approved by DEO.

Councilman Dillon moved to authorize Mayor to sign Amendment #JAdceement
#AGR201521 for Kimley-Horn IPO#50 change orderre-design based on new rigbt-
way information provided by FDOT. Vice-Mayor Green seconded the motion

Mayor Whittreminded Council that DEO has signed off on the redesign.
The vote was takeand all were in favor. The vote was 4-0.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 19 —AMENDMENT #AGR2015-21 KIMLEY -HORN IPO#50
CHOICE HOTEL CDBG_WATER MAIN EXTENSION PRO JECT CHANGE
ORDER —RELOCATION OF GOPHER TORTOISE

Mr. Esch explained prior to finalization of the permittirigere was no discovery of any
type of endangered species. He explained when staking the site, the cohiegetorto
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notice gopher tortoise holes that were fairly new. He stated this hasemapproved by
DEO, but Council would approve this conditional upon DEO funding.

Councilman Dillon moved to authorizeMayor to sign Amendment #2 to Agreement
#AGR201521 for KimleyHorn IPO#50 change order relocation of gopher tortoise
contingent upon DEO approvaCouncilman Hancockeconded the motion.

Mayor Whitt called for discussiohere was none.
The vote was taken and all were in favor. The vote was 4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 20 —COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS

Vice-Mayor Green explainethe Dunnellon Police and Fire Citizens Academy. He said this
is a program Chief McQuaigndLt. Slattery in partnership with the Dunnellon Chamber of
Commercedevelopedn an effort to helghe community nderstandheir roles andvhatit
takes to be a police officer or a firghter. He saidMayor Whitt has offeredo provide
transportation.

Vice-Mayor Green addressed parking isseemeresidents havérought to his attention.
He said if the first parking space along East Pennsylvania Averitantrof GoFor-Donuts
is occupied, it is nearly impossiktie see when pulling out of the lot.

Council and staff engaged in discussion regarding two géwingspacesalong Hghway
484 near the Blue Cove dlisision entrance. He samhen thefirst two spacen the east
side of the entrancare occupiedtheyobstruct the view of cars pulling out orithghway
484 and creates a dangerous situation.

Mr. Esch stated he will contact Masood Mirza, Marion County Traffic Engiaedrrequest
the three parking spaces “striped out” and signs added.

Vice-Mayor Green discussed the roads in the cemetery.

Mr. Esch stated Council has provided consensus and lpeeparingan RFP for the
cemetery roads

Vice-Mayor Greempresentedouncil and staffvith an example of a proposed ordinance the
City of Belleviev will be presentingo their council The ordinancesstablishes a Youth
Council and provides the youth of the community an opportunity to participate in reviewing
and discussing challenges, needs and suggesting improvements for the comivilpeity.
Mayor GreerrequestedCouncil pass an ordinan@stablishing this type gdfrogramin time

for the next school term.

Council and staff engaged in brief discussion regarding proceaodeduties.



City of Dunnellon
City Council Meeting
April 11, 2016
Pagel0

Vice-Mayor Greenfurther discussed &paghetti Dinnerfund raiserthe Sudent Support
Foundation (SSF) clulill be sponsoring on Tuesday, April i8rom 5:30 p.m. to 7:30
p.m. in the Dunnellon High School cafetetlite explainedhe SSF club isequired to raise
fundsas part of the requiremergsthe Morgridge Family Foudationgrant.

Councilman Hancock remindexveryoneof the UAB meetingo be heldon Monday, April
18" at 3:00 p.m. He expressed his appreciation to the Chair of this board, Hugh Lpchrane
for his attendnceand participation in the council meetings.

Councilman Dillon discussed his frustrattomegarding lots of record and the high
percentage of residents who cannot buwitdtheir lotdue tothe square footage and street
frontagerequiremerd He stated he would like to direct the City Managetitect staff to
allow people to build on lots of recordde said Mr. Metcalf stated cities recognlaés of
records within the Comp Plan andhe believesit's a misinterpretationof the Code.
Councilman Dillonsaid he thinks it's a simple fix taddresmg it in the Comp Plan.

Councilman Dillon asked Attorney Hand he had any updates regarditige evictionof
occupants in the old library building.

Attorney Hand stated yes, he has a report.

Councilman Dillonfurther discussethe previousvorkshopwith the representatives from
the Marion Senior Services and First United Methodist Church of Dunnellon. He state
Council never provided staff any direction. He requested thatAfiid 20" special
workshopbe changed to aouncil meetingo thatCoundl may voteon this issue He stated

he believegheir proposals will be benefitfor Dunnellonbecause iwill bring people into
town and benefithe senior citizens

Mayor Whittstated hehought we were waiting on the eviction update.

Vice-Mayor Green aid theFirst United Methodist Church stated they no longer wish to
pursue their proposal.

Council and staff engaged lengthydiscussion regardintipe subject of lots of record and
thediscrepancies in theomp Plan.

Councilman Dillonstatedin one sectiorof the Comp Plait will say property ownergan
build on the lot and in another section it satfeey can’t. He explainedt’'s an easy fix an
easy interpretation that lots of recpade lots of recordand they can be utilized.

Mayor Whitt stated Council and staff did request thlt Metcalf include lots of recorth
his amendments.
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Councilman Dillon stated isn’'t necessarpecausavhen the firsComp Plan wasdopted
it took all the lots of record into consideration.

Mayor Whitt stded he was looking for some clarification from Mr. Metcalf ona=BAL is
revised and it acmes back to us.

Councilman Dillonasked Councito direct theCity Manager to direct his staff. He said we
need taagreeas a Councithatwe believe thisand we are gag to direct staff to do it.

Councilman Hancockommented on Council not beiggod “‘gatekeepers and notdoing
well with “takeaways” He said Counciwill discusstemsbutwill not end theconversation
and say,'okay what's the next stép. Councilman Hancockhallenge staff to challenge
Council to do*takeaways” He saidCouncilcan do a much better job of establishitake
aways through better atekeeping.”

Councilman Hancock stated the Planning Commission was established Verytipeirpose

of allowing the community to control what oGity would look like. He said the process
involves presemdtion to the Planning Commissignwhich allows the Board to identify
exceptionsfor representation t€ouncil He saidlet's support thosexceptionsif that
improves the overall presentation of a street, community and neighborhood and gét the inf
done.

Louise Kenny, 19970 lbis Courgxplaned her real estate back grouad said the real
estate history/law says that you cure an individual lot because you cannot takézse
property rights that are inordinate for use of that property. She stated its privadetypr
and that would be a taking. She said you cure it with a variamcehave theCity’s
attorneydeterminef there s a difference between a roanforming lot, which is a single
lot, or an aggregate lot that has been purchased for speculation.

Councilman Dillon stated his problem with a variance is (1) we are penalizingifens
because they have to pay more &)dt takes uswo to threemonths to do a variance.

Mayor Whitt askedf Councilwishes tocall for a vote to ask staff to exempt lots of record.
Councilman Dillonsaid hes ready to do that.

Attorney Handexplainedit is ultimately Council’s job tanterpret and he camnly provide
guidanceHe said Dunnellon has@omp Plarandwhen you enact a Comp PJaand @ an
amendment, it essentially undoes everything in the past that has been consibténe
Comp Plan.He said under Florida lawhe Comp Plan trumps and you have to be consistent
with the Comp Plan.

Councilman Hancock statelde City has a responsibility to the community to accommeodate
and its worth taking the time and getting it rightHe said he doesn’'t see the harm if
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someoneaequestsan exceptiorto havethe Planning Commissioetermineif they agree
and want to support it.

Mayor Whitt stated he doesn’t feel like it's a “sky idlifey” issue because we have
addressed it ithe EAL that Mr. Metcalf is working on He asked ifCouncil could votdor
exemptions.

Attorney Handprovided inputsayinghe is not telling him nphe’s telling him that either
way there are risksand you have to weigh those risks andttireatof litigation on either
side. He saidwhen the initial interpretation was madewas not made based on the idea
that there are 735 lots.

Mr. Esch stated for the record ththe City did receivenotification from DEO todayand
everything ign order. He said the Gfay clock startsiow.

Mary Ann Hilton, Planning Commission membstated the Planning Commissisa very
cooperative and caringroup SheencouragedCouncil and staff to bring requests before
them and allow them to do their jodndtrust they cag enough about both the City and the
people who wouldike to live here to do it well. Mrs. Hilton stated it should not take to
five months to complete.

After much discussion with Attorney Handouncilagreed to havkim draft language to be
used in the interpretation of exempting lots of record until the Comp Plan is amended.

Mr. Smith addressed the timing issue. He $2&D hasuntil June % to respondbut we
changed ta DEO letter to incorporate lots of recordHe saidwhen we get the respsa
back,we caninclude lotsof record

Attorney Handasked ifCouncilis specificallydirecting him todraft something in writing to
essentially weigh the two options.

Councilman Hancock said if we are simply interprgtots of recordthat’'s one thg. But,
Attorney Hand igalking about exemptions and all.

Mayor Whitt stated it would be case by case untilGbenp Fan amendmestare in place.

Councilman Dillon moved t@pproveMarion Senior Serviceand Rainbow Springs Fine
Arts Associationto utilize theold library building as a community type buildingith the
City Managernegotiatingwhatever tle terms nay be. Mayor Whitt called for a second.
Councilman Hancock seconded the motion.

Mr. Eschexplainedthe legal conditions stipulatedn that building. He said the building
was originally leased as two different pieces. The cable compathy one year lease on
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the part of the building Marion Senior Servigefterested irand a ter{10) or twenty @0)
year lease on the headd sedon.

Attorney HandexplainedAttorney Cassady provided him a very long memo with a lot of
backup on everything she hpgepared He said it is a lot more complicated than a simple
eviction because therare three B8) different documents that are in pla the Purchase
Agreement, Lease Agreement and the Pole Attachment Agreemtdat.provided the
amountsowed as of December 31, 2015 between the @itYunnellonand FloridaFiber.
Attorney Handstated the numbers will have to be agreed upefiore movingtowards a
resolution. He stated Attorney Cassady has a scheduled meeting with MonEBctrsday
and the next step would be meeting with FloFdzer s attorney.

Council and staff engaged in brief discussion regarding parking at the building.

Mayor Whitt called for a vot@approving the use of the building. The vote was taken and all
were in favor. The vote wasGl

Continuation of Council Liaison Reports and Comments:

Mayor Whittannouncedhe datesandtimes ofthe Dunnellon Citizens Academypril 21%,
April 28", May 8" and May 12' from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. at the Dunnellon Police
Department.

Mayor Whitt stated the Dunnellon Anniversary Birthday pavty be held onApril 21% at
the train depotHe said dtown photo” will betakenbehind City Hall at 5:3@.m.

Mayor Whitt addressed the resignation of former Councilwoman Soldxtancilagreed to
re-advertise for the position place this thie May 4" council workshop agenda.

Council and staff engaged torief discussion regandg the April 28" workshop. Mrs.
Bowne questioed what the title should be on the agen@auncil agreed to title: “City’s
Financials and Future Financial Pfan

AGENDA ITEM NO. 21 —CITY MANAGER'S REPORT
Mr. Esch reported on the following:

e BoomtownDaysevents

e Update 5 year mastptanfor water and sewer

Councilman Hancock questioned wheauncil will be receiving a report regarding the Fire
Assessment Study. Mr. Esch stated he has a final draft confepéoe call set for
Thursday morning with Tindale Oliver and the presentation will be scheduledfenn

Councilman Hancock agreed to step into the whdaison positions witithe TPO and the
Chamber of Commerce.
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Council and staff engaged in discussion regardirtya/specialworkshops andcouncil
meeting.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 22 -CITY ATTORNEY’'S REPORT
Attorney Hand stated he iis the process of making a copy of a presentation obthreshine
Law so Council and other boards will be able to vievitair computer.

Mrs. Bowne stated she mathering informatiorfor Council regarding council members
complying with the statute for educational requirements.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 23 —ADJOURNMENT

At approximately8:30 p.m.Councilman Dillonmovedthe April 11, 2016 City Council
meeting be adjournedRichard Hancockseconded All members voted in favor The
motion passed 4-0.

Attest:

Dawn Bowne MMC Nathan Wihtayor
City Clerk

PAminutes council meeting0160411doc



Official Use Only
Meeting Date:___May 4, 2016
Reviewed by

From (Dept):/ Finance City Attorney:
Signature: (I Council Action:

j)epa ent Pirec
Approved for Date:
Agenda: '

City Manager

SUBJECT:

Request For Approval: Change Order No. 1 for AGR#2016-12 GWP Choice Hotel Water Main Extension

SUMMARY EXPLANATION & BACKGROUND: Utility conflicts on 99™ Place, increase in valve vault size, reduced
length and rescheduling of jack and bore, and fencing removal and replacement due to water main realignment results in an
contract price increase of $11,137.35. Contract price amended to $469,519.95. DEO has approved contract change order No.
1.

FISCAL INFORMATION: 100% grant funded

PROCUREMENT METHOD:
PURCHASE REQUISITION NUMBER:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Mayor to sign change order #1 agreement AGR2016-12

Initiated by: EE/js



Pllok merrve | e—
SECTION 00850 - CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER
Change OrderNo. 1
Date of Issuance: April 8, 2016 Effective Date: April 8, 2016
Project: CHOICE HOTEL WM Owner: CITY OF DUNNELLON Owner's Contract No.:
EXTENSION
Contract: Date of Contract: February 8, 2016

Contractor: GWP Construction, Inc.

Engineer's Project No.: 042382040

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description: Utility conflicts on 99™ place, increase in valve vault size, reduced length and rescheduling of jack and bore,
and fencing removal and replacement due to watermain realignment.

Attachments (list documents supporting change): cost summary table

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:

Original Contract Price:

$___ 458,382.60

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved
Change Orders No. to No. 7

$

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

$ 458,382.60

[Increase] {Decrease} of this Change Order:

$ 11,137.35

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:

$ 469,519.95

Original Contract Times:  [_] Working days Calendar days
Substantial completion (date): May 15, 2016
Ready for final payment (date): June 14, 2016

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change Orders
No. to No.

Substantial completion {days):
Ready for final payment (days):

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial completion (days or date): ___May 15, 2016

Ready for final payment (days or date): __ June 14, 2016
[Increase] {Beerease] of this Change Order:

Substantial completion (days): 7

Ready for final payment (days): 7

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial completion (date): May 22, 2016
Ready for final payment (date): June 21, 2016

RECOM

ENQED: B
By: . ﬂzc h/@ By:

ACCEPTED:

EngineeyA?orized Signature)
Date: ‘/ 8//6 Date:

Approved by Fu;'lding Agency (if applicable):

Owner {Authorized Signature)

Choice Hotel Water Main Extension

END OF SECTION

Section 00850 - Page 1 of 1



Changi Amount Notes
4 5 Add cost of structure $1800.00
1{Valve Vault- increased size $2,100.00 Add cost of handling $ 300.00
2|Gopher tortoise excavation $800.00]1 day of excavation
3 Fencing removal and replacement $7,706.00Quote from Fences R Us
4SW 99th PL- Utility Conflicts $3,970.883/7/16 & 3/8/16 sta 137 conflicts
SW 99th PL- Utility Conflict Additional Lost time due to conflicts on 99th P| —
$799.47 ;
Delays Total time — 6 hours
100 ft = Revised Length of Jack and
6jJack and Bore- Reduced Length ($4,239.00)|Bore. $7,425 deduct, $3,186
remobilization cost
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TOTAL $11,137.35

CONTRACT PRICE

TOTAL

$458,382.60

$469,519.95




Jan Smith

From: Jamie.Zivich@kimley-horn.com

Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 2:46 PM

To: Eddie Esch

Cc: Lewis.Bryant@kimley-horn.com; Jan Smith

Subject: Fwd: CDBG # 15DB-0J-05-52-02-E02/City of Dunnellon - Change Order # 1 (RE: Choice
Hotel WM- Change Order No 1)

Attachments: image001.jpg

Eddie,

Please provide go-ahead for GWP to continue construction.

Thanks,
Jamie

Happy Connecting. Sent from my Sprint Samsung Galaxy S® 5

-------- Original message --------

From: "Court, Ted" <Ted.Court@deo.myflorida.com>

Date: 04/12/2016 2:39 PM (GMT-05:00)

To: fred.fox@fredfoxenterprises.com

Cc: "Anderson, Tammy" <Tammy.Anderson@deo.myflorida.com>, "Doherty, Roger"
<Roger.Doherty@deo.myflorida.com>, "Melissa Fox (Melissa.Fox@fredfoxenterprises.com)"
<Melissa.Fox@fredfoxenterprises.com>, jsmith@dunnellon.org, eesh@dunnellon.org, "Zivich, Jamie"
<Jamie.Zivich@kimley-horn.com>, "Bryant, Lewis" <Lewis.Bryant@kimley-horn.com>

Subject: CDBG # 15DB-0J-05-52-02-E02/City of Dunnellon - Change Order # 1 (RE: Choice Hotel WM- Change Order No 1)

Attention: Fred Fox, President, Fred Fox Enterprises, Inc.

Thank you for your e-mail inquiry (copy embedded below). | spoke with Jamie Zavich, P.E., of Kimley-Horn, and
consulted with Geoff Amison, Environmental Review Officer, for the Small Cities CDBG program. Based on the
understanding that approximately 1,000 linear feet of agricultural-style wire and three-board fencing is simply being
removed and replaced to facilitate an already-approved activity, it appears that the change order is allowable.

If you have questions regarding this matter, please call me at (850) 717-8429 or reply to this e-mail.
TC )

Ted Court, Government Operations Consultant Il
Region One Representative

Florida Small Cities CDBG Program

Bureau of Community Revitalization
Department of Economic Opportunity

107 East Madison Street, MSC — 400
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-6508

0: 850-717-8429

F: 850-922-5609



Ted.court@deo.myflorida.com

From: Doherty, Roger

Sent: Tuesday, April 12,2016 12:00 PM

To: Court, Ted <Ted.Court@deo.myflorida.com>

Cc: Anderson, Tammy <Tammy.Anderson@deo.myflorida.com>
Subject: FW: Choice Hotel WM- Change Order No 1

Ted:

Please review the attached change order for Tammy. If it is okay, please send an email approving it to everyone that
Fred copied on the original email.

Roger J. Doherty, CLEP

Planning Manager

Small Cities CDBG Program

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
107 E. Madison St.

Caldwell Building - MSC 400

Tallahassee, FL 32399-6508

O: 850-717-8417

F: 850-922-5609

roger.doherty(@deo.myflorida.com

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY

From: Fred Fox [mailto:fred.fox@fredfoxenterprises.com]

Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 11:54 AM

To: Doherty, Roger <Roger.Doherty@deo.myflorida.com>

Cc: Lewis.Bryant@kimley-horn.com; EEsch@dunnellon.org; Jamie.Zivich@kimley-horn.com; Melissa Fox
<melissa.fox@fredfoxenterprises.com>

Subject: FW: Choice Hotel WM- Change Order No 1

Roger:

The City of Dunnellon is requesting approval of the attached construction contract change order for the Choice Hotel ED
project as soon as possible. The contractor cannot proceed with the project until he get the attached change order
approved and is charging the City 310.00/hour while is crew is down. | received the change order yesterday and
forwarded it to Tammy. However, Tammy is out until Friday. | did not see any issues with the Change Order ; however,
the City needs the Department’s approval before they can authorize the contractor to move ahead.

Thank you in advance for your quick response to this request.

Fred D. Fox, President
Fred Fox Enterprises



221 Treasure Beach Road

St. Augustine, Florida 32080
Office Phone: (904) 810-5183
Cell Phone: (386) 937-1953

From: Fred Fox

Sent: Monday, April 11, 2016 12:13 PM

To: 'Anderson, Tammy' <Tammy.Anderson@deo.myflorida.com>

Cc: Jan Smith (jsmith@dunnellon.org) <jsmith@dunnellon.org>; Melissa Fox (melissa.fox@fredfoxenterprises.com)
<melissa.fox@fredfoxenterprises.com>; 'Jamie.Zivich@kimley-horn.com' <Jamie.Zivich@kimley-horn.com>; Lewis
Bryant (lewis.bryant@kimley-horn.com) <lewis.bryant@kimley-horn.com>; EEsch@dunnellon.org

Subject: FW: Choice Hotel WM- Change Order No 1

Tammy:

The City of Dunnellon is requesting approval of the attached Change Order #1 for the Choice Hotel CDBG Economic
Development pr



SECTION 00850 - CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Change OrderNo. 2
Effective Date:

Date of Issuance: April 27, 2016

Project: CHOICE HOTEL WM
EXTENSION

Owner: CITY OF DUNNELLON

Owner's Contract No.:

Contract:

Date of Contract: FEBRUARY 8, 2016

Contractor: GWP Construction, Inc.

Engineer's Project No.: 042382040

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

Description: Installation of 3” water service.

Attachments (list documents supporting change): Cost Summary Table

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:

Original Contract Price:

S 458,382.60

[Increase] {Beerease] from previously approved
Change Orders No. 0 to No. 1:

S 11,137.35

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

S 469,519.95

[Increase] {Becreasel-of this Change Order:

S 9,437.70

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:

S__ 478,957.65

Original Contract Times:  [_] Working days Calendar days
May 15, 2016

June 14, 2016

Substantial completion (days or date):
Ready for final payment (days or date):

[Increase] [Beerease] from previously approved Change Orders
No.Qto No. 1:

Substantial completion (days): 7
Ready for final payment (days): 7

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial completion (date):
Ready for final payment (date):

May 22, 2016
June 21, 2016

[Increase] {Becrease] of this Change Order:
Substantial completion (days): 7
Ready for final payment (days): 7

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial completion (date): May 29, 2016
Ready for final payment (date): June 28, 2016

RECOMMEED}ED ACCEPTED:
' /h\ ﬂ By:

o LIl g

Approved by Fundmg Agency (if applicable):

Owner (Authorized Signature)

Engmeeri(Ajt orized Slgnatu{e)
Date: / Date:

Contﬁtor (Autho/riéed

Date: \5 / (:9/ / (@

Choice Hotel Water Main Extension

Date:

END OF SECTION

Section 00850 — Page 1 of 1



Aern#24514 -/2-
GWP CONSTRUCTION, INC

GIVE)

N
N/

4269 NW 44t Ave, Suite A
Ocala, FL 34482
352-351-2412 Fax 352-351-2430

April 25, 2016

Kimley — Horn and Associates Inc.
Via Email: Jamie Zivich — Jamie.zivich@kimley-horn.com

RE: Choice Hotel
Proposed Change Order-
Added 3” Water main and water service
Revised 5/04/2016 — Gate Valve

Ms. Zivich:

As requested, attached is the cost summary for 500LF - 3 inch water main and
water services. Please note the contract includes one 1” water service in this
location, therefore this change order includes the cost of the second water
service.

We assume materials are to be 3” Sch 80, and a terminal blow off. There are
two- 1" water services off of this 3" main that will connect to existing services at

the existing service. Gate valve is included at the 12°x3” connection point.

This change order also does include open cut and replacement of asphalt
driveways.

This change order includes pressure testing and sodding of disturbed areas. It
does not include additional bacteriological tests.

The compensation request for this work is $8,858.00. Should additional water
samples be required, they shall be provided at a cost of $30.00 per sample.

Any questions, please contact us.
Best Regards,

Cheryl P. Riggs,
Exec. Vice President

> ) by (V9 Plensgee derrog Fr
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City of Dunnellon
Code Enforcement Lien #2015-02 19084 St. George Drive

Lien: #2015-02 Failure to connect to City central wastewater system

Lien Amount Connection Fees (Tap & Connect) 3,305.00 $3305 pd 4/27/16
Daily Fine $50 - 9/2/14-12/15/15 23,500.00 470 days x $50
Recording Fees:
Record Lien with Marion County FL 18.50
Record Satisfaction of Lien with Marion County FL 10.00
Total Due to City 26,833.50

1. This Schedule was sent to Matt Hinton-Sun Crest Florida Properties LLC www.SunCrestFloridaProperties.com 12/31/15
2. Property connected to sewer as of 12/15/15 per Lonnie and confirmation from City Building Inspector
3. 50% waiver of daily fine = $11,750. If the waiver is approved the total amount due including recording fees to satisy Lien #2015-02 is $11,778.50

N:\jsmith\Liens\PH IV-Sewer Connect Fees\19084 St. George Dr\\
19084 St George Dr-Lien Payoff Amts121515_Property now connected_CC Mtg 050915 5/5/2016 8:05 AM



- ?Tf-_-/f)@/( 20/6 - 02-

VOLUNTARY COOPERATION/OPERATIONAL
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT
FOR 2016-2017

“WHEREAS, The City of Belleview and The City of Dunnellon are public agencies as
defined in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, and each has the authority to enter into
interlocal agreements and exercise jointly with the other any power, privilege, or
authority which they share in common and which each might exercise separately, as
provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes; and

“WHEREAS, The City of Belleview is a municipality which maintains a municipal law
enforcement agency known as the Belleview Police Department; and the City of
Dunnellon is a municipality which maintains a municipal law enforcement agency known
as the Dunnellon Police Department; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of this agreement that because of existing and continuing law
enforcement problems and intensive situations, especially those that cross jurisdictional
lines, and in order to insure that the preparation of law enforcement will be adequate to
deal with such activity, protect the public peace and safety, and preserve the lives and
property of the people; and

WHEREAS, the subscribed law enforcement agencies are so located in relation to each
other that it is to the advantage of each to receive and extend mutual aid in the form of
law enforcement services in both intensive situations including emergencies under
Section 252.34(2), Florida Statutes, and routine services including but not limited to
follow-up investigation into cnmmal activity, backup services during patrol activities and
inter-agency task forces;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION [: In the event that a party to this agreement is in need of assistance as set
-forth above, they shall notify the agency or agencies from whom assistance is required.
The agency head whose assistancc is sought shall evaluate the situation and his available
resources, and will respond in a manner he deems appropriate. Where investigative
. priorities ansing during a law enforcement operation require crossing of jurisdictional
lines, 1t 1s the intent of the parties to this agreement that approval to cross jurisdictional
lines is presumed at all times uniess expressly stated to the contrary. Each party agrees to
notify the agency head or his designees of the agency involved as soon as is practical in
the event of a major investigation or if an intensive situation develops.

SECTION H: Each party agrees to furnish necessary equipment, resources and facilities
and to render aid and services to each and every other party to the agreement as set forth

Page | of 4



above; provided however, that no party shall be required to unreasonably deplete its own
equipment, resources, facilities and services in furnishing such mutual aid.

(a) MASS ARRESTS — In the event it becomes necessary to effect mass
arrests resulting from any intensive situation, including but not limited to
those aforementioned, unless circumstances make it impractical or
impossible, the procedure shall be as follows:

L. IDENTIFICATION: The evidence sections of the Dunnellon Police
Department and the Belleview Police Department shall be designated to
process for identification all persons taken into custody in any mass arrest
situation. The evidence technicians will be responsible for photographing
and preparing a log of all arrested persons and the respective arresting
officers, as well as for supervising the collection and preservation of any
and all evidence related to or associated with the incident necessitating the
arrest, or that may be required for effective prosecution.

2. TRANSPORTATION: Transportation of any arrested person-shall be the
responsibility of the arresting agency unless the number of persons
arrested is greater than fifteen (15). In the event that the number of.
persons arrested is greater than fifteen (15), the transportation shall be by
the Marion County Sheriff’s Office Corrections Officers. In the event the
resources of the Marion County Sheriff’s Office are inadequate to meet
the transportation requirements, additional vehicles for transportation may
be obtained from the Florida Correctional Institution, Lowell, Florida.

3. BOOKING AND DETENTION: Booking and Detention of arrested
persons shall be by the Marion County Shenff’s Office Corrections
Officers at the Marion County Jail. Whenever possible, advance notice of
mass arrests, or anticipated mass arrests, shall be given to the on-duty
supervisor at the Marion County Jail in order that adequate arrangements
may be made for orderly, efficient, and safe processing of all arrested
persons.

SECTION III: The party that furnishes any equipment pursuant to this agreement shall
bear the loss or damage to such equipment and shall pay any expense incurred in the
operation and maintenance thereof. The party furnishing aid pursuant to this part shall
compensate its employees while they are rendering such aid, including any amounts paid
or due for compensation due to personal injury or death while such employees are
engaged in rendering such aid unless otherwise provided. Nothing herein shall prevent
the requesting agency requesting supplemental appropriations from the goveming
authority having budgetary jurisdiction to reimburse the assisting agency for any actual -
costs or expenses incurred by the assisting agency performing hereunder.

SECTION IV: Each agency will bear the liability arising from acts undertaken by its
personnel pursuant to this agreement. All of the privileges and immunities from liability,
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exemption from laws, ordinances and rules, and all pension, insurance, relief, disability,
workers’ compensation, salary, death and other benefits which apply to the activity of
such officers, agents, or employees of any such agency when performing their respective
functions within the territorial limits of their respective agencies shall apply to them to
the same degree, manner, and extent while engaged in the performance of any of their
functions and duties extra-territorially under the provisions of this mutual aid agreement.
The provisions of this section shall apply with equal effect to paid, volunteer, and
auxiliary employees.

SECTION V: Each party shall provide satisfactory proof of police professional liability
insurance including public liability insurance in the amount of $100,000.00 per
occurrence or that it is a self-insured entity for purposes of Chapter 768.28(13) of the
Florida Statutes. Self-insured parties shall provide proof of $100,000.00 liability
coverage per occurrence. Should the coverage of any party be cancelled or undergo
material change, that party shall notify all parties to this agreement of such change within
ten (10) days of their receipt of notice of such change.

SECTION VI: The resources or facilities that are assigned by the assisting agency shall
be under the immediate command of a supervising officer designated by the assisting
agency. Such supervising officer shall be under the direct supervision and command of
the agency head or his designee of the agency requesting assistance.

' SECTION VII:  In accordance with' Chapter 23.127, Florida Statutes, whenever the
employees of any law enforcement dgency are rendering aid outside its jurisdiction and
pursuant to the authority contained in or to any written agreement entered under this part,
such employees shall have the same powers, duties, rights, privileges and immunities as
it they were performing their duties in the political subdivision in which they are
normally employed or appointed.

SECTION VIII: Nothing in this agreement is intended or is to be construed as any
transfer or contracting away of the powers or functions of one agency to the other.

SECTION IX: This agreement shall be in effect for a period of one year from the date
of signing. Under no circumstances may the agreement be amended, renewed, or

extended except in writing.

" SECTION X: Any party may withdraw from this agreement upon written notice to all
other parties. '
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the agencies hereto cause the duly authorized signatures to

Mike McQualgﬁ%%(
Dunnellon Police Depapfment

Witness . Terry Holland, Chief of Police
Belleview Police Department

Approved as to form and sufficiency for the use and benefit of the City of Belleview:

City Attorney (date) City Attorney (date)

“Mayor Christine Dobkowski  (date) Nathan Whitt {date)
Mayor Mayor .
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PROCLAMATION #PRO2016-07
Women’s Lung Health Week

WHEREAS, every five minutes, a woman in the U.S. is told she has lung cancer; and
WHEREAS, lung cancer is the #1 cancer killer of women in the U.S.; and

WHEREAS, the lung cancer death rate in women has almost doubled over the past 37
years; and

WHEREAS, advocacy and increased awareness will result in more and better treatment
for women with lung cancer and other lung diseases and will ultimately save lives; and

WHEREAS, LUNG FORCE is the national movement led by the American Lung
Association, with the mission of making lung cancer histenpiting women to stand together
with a collective strength and determination to lead the fight against lung Gartdor lurg
health.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it proclaimed the City Council of the City of Dunnellon
Florida, does hereby recognittee second full week in May as:

“Women’s Lung Health Week”

and encourageall residents oMarion Countyto learn more about the detection and
treatment of lung cancer.

PASSED and PROCLAIMED this"tday of May 2016.

DUNNELLON CITY COUNCIL

NATHAN WHITT, Mayor

WALTER GREEN, ViceMayor

CHARLES J. DILLON lll, Councilman

RICHARD HANCOCK, Councilman
ATTEST:

DawnM. Bowne, MMC
City Clerk, City of Dunnellon
State of Florida



CITY OF DUNNELLON

20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
(352) 465-8500
FAX (352) 465-8505

US Mail and Emailed
04-22-2016

NOTICE OF QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING #PZ1516-045 FOR
SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP1.2016-01

Dear Property Owner:

The Dunnellon City Council will hold a quasi judicial public hearing regarding #SP1.2016-01 site plan
review application #PZ1516-045 by applicant, Robert Ziegenfuss, for Dunnellon Real Estate, LLC, 11191
N. Williams Street, Parcel Number 33639-006-01. The public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City
Hall, 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, FL 34431, on Monday, May 9, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or as soon
thereafter as can be heard. If necessary, this public hearing may be continued to a time and date certain by
announcement at the scheduled hearing without any further written notice to you. Please be advised that
your failure to appear at this public hearing will likely result in your application being denied.

The application, filed as number PZ1516-045, by Robert Ziegenfuss on behalf of Dunnellon Real Estate,
LLC, together with any back-up materials may be reviewed during normal business hours 8:00 a.m. to
4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For further information please contact the Community Development
Department at (352) 465-8500, ext. 1010.

Pursuant to the City’s Land Development Regulations, owners of property adjacent to your property have
been sent notice of the public hearing on your application. Interested parties may appear at the meetings
and be heard with respect to the requested site plan review. Please be advised that all oral and written
communications prior to the hearing concerning the case between any member of the City Council and
the applicant or the public are strongly discouraged under Florida law.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made by any board, agency, or council with respect to any
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings. For such purposes,
any such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (Florida Statutes, 286.0105).

The City of Dunnellon Land Development Regulations are available for inspection at City Hall, during
normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in
any of these proceedings should contact Dawn Bowne, City Clerk at (352) 465-8500 at least 48 hours

prior to the date of the scheduled heaﬂn:@'L)
& ¥’Bowne, %W



From: Dawn Bowne

To: "bob@zdevelopmentservice.com"; “"jmercado@jaereagroup.com"”

Cc: Teresa Malmberq; Lonnie Smith; Loretta Barton; Mandy Roberts; Lynn Wyland; Eddie Esch
Subject: Property Owner Notice of Quasi Judical Variance Hearing Before City Council - Wendys
Date: Tuesday, February 23, 2016 6:02:00 PM

Attachments: PZ1516_028_Applicant_PropertyOwner Notice Variance 2016_02.pdf

Attached, please find the property owner notice for your Variance hearing scheduled for March 14,
2016 before the Dunnellon City Council.
| have also sent a notice via US Postal Service.

Dawn M. Bowne
Dawn M. Bowne, MM(

(ity Clerk

(ity of Dunneflon

20750 River Drive

Dunnellon, FL 34431
302-163-8300, ext. 1002
302-463-8305 fax
(howne @ dunnellon.org
www.dunnellon.ory

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city
officials regarding city business is public record and open to inspection including names,
addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, your email communication may be subject to public
disclosure.
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CITY OF DUNNELLON

20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
(352) 465-8500
FAX (352) 465-8505

04-22-2016

NOTICE OF QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING #PZ71516-045 FOR
SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP1.2016-01

Dear Adjacent Property Owner:

The Dunnellon City Council will hold a quasi judicial public hearing regarding #SPL2016-01 site plan
review application #PZ1516-045 by applicant, Robert Ziegenfuss, for Dunnellon Real Estate, LLC, 11191
N. Williams Street, Parcel Number 33639-006-01. The public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City
Hall, 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, FL 34431, on Monday, Monday, May 9, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or as
soon thereafter as can be heard. If necessary, this public hearing may be continued to a time and date
certain by announcement at the scheduled hearing without any further written notice to you. You are
receiving this notice because you are an adjacent property owner of the subject property.

The application, filed as number PZ1516-045, by Robert Ziegenfuss on behalf of Dunnellon Real Estate,
LLC, together with any back-up materials may be reviewed during normal business hours 8:00 a.m. to
4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For further information please contact the Community Development
Department at (352) 465-8500, ext. 1010.

Interested parties may appear at the meetings and be heard with respect to the requested site plan review.
Please be advised that all oral and written communications prior to the hearing concerning the case
between any member of the City Council and the applicant or the public are strongly discouraged under
Florida law.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made by any board, agency, or council with respect to any
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings. For such purposes,
any such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (Florida Statutes, 286.0105).

The City of Dunnellon Land Development Regulations are available for inspection at City Hall, during
normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate
in any of these proceedings should contact Dawn Bowne, City Clerk at (352) 465-8500 at least 48 hours
prior to the date of the scheduled hearing.




RESOLUTION #RES2016-11

G
a

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
DUNNELLON, FLORIDA, MAKING RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY
COUNCIL TO @BAPPROVE; [ DISAPPROVE WENDY’S SITE PLAN,
PURSUANT TO THE CITY OF DUNNELLON LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS APPENDIX A, “ZONING” AS REQUESTED BY APPLICANT,
ROBERT ZIEGENFUSS REPRESENTATIVE OF DUNNELLON REAL ESTATE,
LLC, OWNER OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11191 N. WILLIAMS
STREET, DUNNELLON, FLORIDA 34432; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on May 2, 2016, to consider a request by
Dunnellon Real Estate, LLC to recommend approval of a Site Plan pursuant to Land Development
Regulations, Appendix “A”, Zoning, Section 9.2(15) and (16) for property located at 11191 N. Williams
Street, being Parcel Number 33641-001-00; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that the Applicant, Robert Ziegenfuss, \_/ has,
- __has not met, the criteria for Site Plan approval and that approval of the Site Plan will not adversely

affect the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the Applicant ¥ has, _ has not, met the criteria
under Section 9.2 (15) and (16) of the Land Development Regulations for a Site Plan and has shown that
the approval of the Site Plan will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of the Land
Development Regulations, and such Site Plan will not be injurious to the area involved or otherwise
detrimental to the public welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, _L/has, ___has not, found
that the Site Plan is consistent with Dunnellon’s Comprehensive Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF DUNNELLON THAT: ‘

SECTION 1. The “Whereas” clauses above are adopted as part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2. A recommendation of ¥ approval _ disapproval will be forwarded to the City Council
for their consideration, with the recommended addition of a bicycle rack to the site plan.

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

seconded by Commissioner and upon being put to a vote, the result was as follows:

On May 2, 2016, by the Pl%'ng Commission upon a motion by Commissioner ( 'Qédm » and

[Voting result and signatures on following page]



Commissioner Brenda D’ Arville
Commissioner Lisa Sheffield
Commissioner Tracy Fero
Commissioner Wilber Vanwyck
Commissioner Paul Cowan
Commissioner Hilton - 1% Alt
Vacant - 2™ Alt

Attested by:

PLANNING COMMISSION,
CITY OF DUNNELLON

d €S
e

I?J es
m5es
€es

OYes
WYes

[ONo [JAbstain LDid Not Vote
[ONo [JAbstain dDid Not Vote
[ONo [JAbstain [ODid Not Vote
[ONo [JAbstain Did Not Vote
[ONo [Abstain [ODid Not Vote
[ONo [JAbstain [ODid Not Vote
[ONo [Abstain [ODid Not Vote

Approved as to Form and Legality

e

BY: @MA«M@A@MA
Brendd D’ Arville, Chairwoman

Planning Commission, City of Dunnellon

Thistay of , 2016.

BY: &

.'Andr\ew Hand 7
City Attorney
This 5p4 day of {4/»/ , 2016.




CITY OF DUNNELLON
STAFF REPORT

APPLICATION INFORMATION

DATE OF HEARING : May?2, 2016

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF: Site Plan as submitted
PUBLIC HEARING: Quasi-Judicial

PROJECT NAME: Wendy’sRestaurantv/drive-thru
PROJECT NUMBER: SPL2016-01,PZ1516-045

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE(S):
Applicant: RoberZiegenfuss
Property Owner: Dunnellon Real Estate LLC

PROPERTY LOCATION:

Project Address(es): Rzl ID Number(s):

11191 N. Williams Street 33639-006-01

Dunnellon, FL 34432 33639-006-02

PARCEL SIZE: .78Acres

EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE MAP: Commercial

EXISTING ZONING: B-4

EXISTING USE: Restaurant/Car Wash - Inactive




STAFF EVALUATION AND FINDINGS

1. REQUEST:

e The Applicant is seeking approval of a site phainsuant to Land Development Regulations, Appendix
“A”, Zoning, Section 9.2(15) and (16) and Sections 9.3-1 for a Restaurant on the subject property.

2. REVIEW REQUIREMENT:

Appendix A — Zoning, Section 9.2
15. Site development plan approval.

B. ContentsThe site development plan required to be submitted under subsection A above and the requirements
of these zoning regulations shall inclutie following elements, where applicable:

(1) Statement of ownership and control of the proposed development.
(2) Statement describing in detail the character and intended use of the development.

(3) A dimensioned site plan based on exact survey of the property drawn to scale of sufficient size to show
(a) exact location of all buildings and structure3,albmeans of ingress and egress, (c) all screens and
buffers, (d) off-street parking anddding areas, (3) refuse collectioras, (f) access to utilities hook-up,

and (g) natural features such as stredak®s, or other topographic features.

(4) Storm drainage and sanitary sewage plans.

(5) Architectural definitions for buildings in the development; exact number of dwelling units, sizes and
types, together with typitoor plans of each type.

(6) Plans for recreation facilities, if any, including buildings for such use.
(7) A determination of radon emissions level.

(8) Such additional data, maps, plans or statememmgde required for the particular use or activity
involved.

(9) Such additional data as the applicant may belgepertinent to the site development plan. ltems (3),
(4), and (5) above shall be prepalsda registered surveyor, enger, or architect or practicing land
planner as may be appropriate to the particular item.

16. Duties of planning commission in site development plan approeaiain uses permitted in zoning districts, as

shown on the schedule of district regulations, require approval by the planning commission of a site development plan
prior to the issuance of building permits by the building official. In reaching decision as to whether or not the site
development plan as submitted should be approved with a directive to the building official to issue building permits,
the planning commission shall follow the procedure set outhisesiiion 14 [15] of this section and shall be guided in

its decision by the following standadnd shall show in its record tlestch was considered where applicable:

A. Ingress and egress to the property and proposed sasith@reon, with particular reference to automotive and
pedestrian safety, traffic flow and control, provision of services and servicing for utilities, and access in case of
fire or catastrophe.

B. Manner of drainage on the property, with particaderence to the effect of provisions for drainage on
adjacent properties and the cegsences of such drainage overall city capacities.

C. Conditions on ownership, control and use generally, and conditions on ownership, control, use, and
maintenance of open space or common lands to insure preservation of such lands for their intended purposes.
D. Utilities, with reference to hook-in locations and availability and capacity for the use projects.




E. Off-street parking and loading argesth attention to automotive andgestrian safety, traffic flow and
control, access in case of fire and satgphe, and screening and landscaping.

F. Recreation and open spaces, with attention to thédocaize, and development thie areas as to adequacy,
effect on privacy of adjacent and nearby comityawide open spaces and recreation facilities.

G. Density and/or purpose of the development, with attention to its relationship to adjacent and nearby properties.
H. General site arrangement, amenities, and convenience, with particular reference to insuring that appearance
and general layout of the proposed development will be compatible and harmonious with properties in the general
area and will not be so at variance with other devetoyinm the area as to cawssubstantial depreciation of

such property values.

I. Loss of pervious surfaces with attention to thedong of recharge capabilities and increasing runoff.

J. Such other standards as may be imposed by these zoning regulations for the particular use of activity involved.

K. Consistency with neighborhood and historical character.

3. BACKGROUND:

In 1993 the subject property was originally usedaf@heckers restaurant. In 2002 a car wash was built
on the adjacent property 33639-006-01. The twogdatttave been purchased and a new Wendy’s
restaurant is being proposed for twenbined site. The applicant submiteedonceptual site plan for an
initial feasibility deermination. A pre-application meeting sveonducted and it was determined that a
landscape buffer depth variance wobkrequired. Planning council@&ity council both approved a
workable landscape buffer dimension.

The applicant has now submitted a site plan for review and approval for a 2,247 S.F. Restaurant on th
subject property.

4. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

FOURE LAND USE ELEMENT GOALSOBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES

Policy 1.4:

TheCommercial land use category includes retail, entertainment, eating establishments, office:s
medical facilities, pemnal services, trade services, wholesale and discount establishments
storage facilities, lodging estahments, recreational vehicle parks, fueling facilities, rental
establishments, religious facilities, and facibtieor repair and maintenance of vehicles and
equipment. The maximum impervious surfacé3spercent and the maximum building height is

forty (40) feet.
The subject property is located irettand use designation of Commercial.

Site Area is 34,274 S.F. Impervious area is 20,871 S$R62.8%
Proposed Building height24 feet




The Zoning classification is B-4 and is one of thenptted classifications in this land use category. The
nature and type of building development is canisidered inconsistent with the comp plan.

Future Land Use Map (below)

Zoning Map (below)

[ A1
[ B2
[ B3
[ B4
I &5
I 56
= mH
[ |F
[ IPK
[ RlE
[ IR
[ R1A
[ 1R3
[ R3a
I R5




5. REVIEW OF APPLICATION:

Relevant Sections of the Code

Article V Section 5.3(18) Amount of off-street parking.

The off-street parking required by ttagticle shall be provided and maiim@ad on the basigf the following
minimum requirements:

18. Restaurants, bars, beer gardens, clubs, nightclubs: One parking spaceftarresszisin the rooms
for customer service.

Building seating capacity 55 (indoors) + 12 (outdoors) = 67 seats divided by 4 = 16.75 required
17 spaces have been provided

The Applicant meets the off-street parlng requirements as set forth above.




Wendy'’s Site Plan
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Landscape Plan

‘ “-ﬂ——'ur 11117y PLACE #5PHaL SAN MH-1
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Front Sides Rear
Landscape Buffer Variance 25ft 12.51t Tt
Landscape Buffer Provided26.3ft 12.9/14.5ft 7.8ft

The Applicant meets the landscape buffer vdance requirements as set forth above.




Duties of planning commission gite development plan approval

A.

Ingress and egress to the property and proposed sesi¢hareon, with particular reference to automotive
and pedestrian safety, traffic flow and control, provisib services and servicing for utilities, and access in
case of fire or catastrophe.

Response: Addressed on she€t1 of the site plan

Manner of drainage on the property, with particuéderence to the effect of provisions for drainage on
adjacent properties and thensequences of such drainage on overall city capacities.

Response: Addressed on she€t3 of the site plan

Conditions on ownership, control and use generally, and conditions on ownership, control, use, and
maintenance of open space or common lands to insure preservation of such lands for their intended purposes

N/A
Utilities, with reference to hook-in locations and availability and capacity for the use projects.
Response: Addressed on she€t2 of the site plan

Off-street parking and loading areasth attention to autmotive and pedestrianfeay, traffic flow and
control, access in case of fire andastérophe, and screening and landscaping.

Response: Addressed on sheet C-1and L-1 of the site plan

Recreation and open spaces, with attention to the lo¢aiiz®) and development thfe areas as to adequacy,
effect on privacy of adjacent and nearby comityawide open spaces and recreation facilities.

N/A

G. Density and/or purpose of the development, with attention to its relationship to adjacent and nearby properties.

G.

Response: Addressed on sheet C-V of the site plan

General site arrangement, amenities, and convenience, with particular reference to insuring that appearance
and general layout of the proposed development will be compatible and harmonious with properties in the
general area and will not be so at variance with ateeelopment in the area as to cause a substantial
depreciation of such property values.

Response: Addressed in the body of this report
Loss of pervious surfaces with attention to the lémgeof recharge capabilities and increasing runoff.
Response: Addressed on sheet C-0 and C-3 of the site plan

Such other standards as may be imposed by these zoning regulations for the particular use of activity
involved.

N/A
Consistency with neighborhood and historical character.
Response: Addressed in the body of this report

6. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Planning Corasidon recommend City Council to apprdie site plan as presented.
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DEMOLITION NOTES

1. PRIOR 10 THE START OF CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDWATE
ACTMTES WTH ALL UTLITY SERVICE PROVIDERS IN THE AREA. THE LOCATION OF ALL
DASTING UTLITEES SHOULD BE VERFIED PRIOR 10 ANY EXCAVATION ACTIVITIES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETELY REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL STRUCTURES AND

SHOWN OR REASONABLY UPLED I THE DRAWNCS.

3. EXCEPT W AREAS WHERE EXISTNG TREES SHALL B PRESERVED, A MINIMUM DEPTH OF
REMOVAL EE!::H.!E;SE.E:SB(} AREAS AND 10 ORIGNAL SOLS

ON PLANS). THE CONTRACTOR (5 RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER DISPOSAL OF ALL WASTE
MATERIAL

4. WHERE PAVHG OR STRUCTURES ARE TO BZ REMOVED WHICH ABUT OR ARE A PART OF

BE INCIDENTAL 0 OTHER CONSTRUCTION ANO NO EXTRA COMPENSATION WAL BL ALLOWED.

5. THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTUITES AND TREES SHOWN ON THE PLANS HAVE BEEN
OETERMMNED BASED UPON THE BEST AVALABLE MFDRMATION. THE ENGINEER AND OWNER
ASSUE NO RESPONSBILITY FOR ACCURACY ALL UTITIES, SURFACE BIPROVEUENTS AND
TREE LOCATIONS SHOULD B€ VERWED BY THE CONTRACTOR

6. THE COMTRACTOR SHALL COORDNATE THE RELOCATION OR REMOVAL OF ALL
QVERHEAD/UNDERGROUND UTITIES, LTIITY POLES, LIGHTS AND LIES I THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ON THE PROPERTY WTH THE APPROPRIATE SIRVICE PROVIDER.

7 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE AND RESTORE PROPERTY CORNERS AND LAND
MARKERS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION. (UNDER THE DIRECTION OF A REGISTERED LAND
SURVEYOR),

6. ALL EROSION CONTROL WEASURES NOTED BELOW AND W THE PLANS SHOULD BE IN
PLACE PRIOR T0 THE START OF DEWOLITION.

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL REWAN IN PLACE UNTL COMPLETION OF
CONSTRUCTION.

1 AL ERDSION AND SEDIUENT CONTROL WORK SHALL CONFORM WTH LOCAL CITY/COUNTY
AND WATER MANAGEWENT DISTRICT SPECFICATIONS, SUBJECT 10 AUTHORIZED AND
APPROVED VARIANCES, WAIVERS ANO/CR CONDIONAL CHANGES.

2 RS04 iy SETRANT, COTHL VEASURES KL B PACED PR To Of JsinE

3. ML AREAS ATTECTED BY THS WORK SHALL BE RESTORED TO A CONDITION EQUAL 10
OR BETTER AN EXISTING CONDITION, UNLESS SPECFICALLY EXEMPTID BY THE PLANS. THE
COST FOR SUCH RESTORATION SHALL'BE INCIDENTAL TD OTHER CONSTRUCTION AND NO
ADOMONAL COMPENSATION SHALL BE ALLOVED.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTWY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES
BETWEEN THESE PLANS ANO FIELD CONDITIONS PRIOR T0 CONSTRUCTION.

5. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVOE TREE PROTECTION BARRIERS
0 MEET THE REQUREENTS OF LOCAL SPECKICATIONS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SELLCTIVELY CLEAR DMLY THE AREAS REQURED FOR
CONSTRUCTION AND STABUZE ANY POTENTIAL EROSION AREAS BAEDIATELY FOLLOWNG
COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP ANY AND ALL SAND, SLT OR OTHER DEBRIS FROU MOVNG
OFF-STE. USE AND MANTAIN SKT FENCE JUST NSDE THE LIWATS OF CONSTRUCTION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BLOCK NTRUSION OF SAND, SLT OR OTHER DEBRIS INTD ANY
DRANAGE OR SANITARY SEVER STRUCTURE OR PIING ON DR ADMACENT 10 THE SITE.

9. AL GLEARED AREAS FOR NPROVENENT AND/OR CONSTRUGTION SHALL BE WATEREO TO
PREVENT WND ERCSION

10. FOR ADDITONAL BFORMATION AND DETALS, SEE F.0.0.T MDEX NO. 102
11, UNLESS SPECFIED, SILT FENCES MAY BE USED N LIE OF SYNTHETIC BARRIERS.
12. ADDITIONAL POSTS ANO RALS UAY BE NECESSARY T0 SCURE AND SUPPORT BARRERS.

13. ADDITIONAL BARRICR LENGTHS MAY B[ REQUIRED BY THE GOVERMNG JRISOICTION OR
@Y OTHER REGUATORY AGENCES.

74 ALTER FABRIC MUST BE INSTALLED UNDER ALL NLET GRATES, AT ALL TWIES WHEN
INLETS ARE NOT PROTECTED BY SILT FENCE OR SYNTHETIC BALES/WATILES, UNTL THE
LBIEROCK BASE (5 FWISHED AND PRIED.

13, T BOTTOU A SOE SLOPES oF RETENTION PONDS SUALL OF UMDER CRCAVATLD BY
DEPTH

R SPECPED W THE LANDSCAPHE PLANS. WO WK GROW

GENERAL NOTES

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMLIARIZE HMSELF WTH THE SITE CONDITIONS AND THESE PLANS
PRIOR 10 THE START OF CONSTRUCTION, ANY CONFLICTS BETWEEN CONOTIIONS IN THE FIELD
AND THESE PLANS SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE ENGNEER OF RECORD AT ONCE.

A__GENFBAL
1AL NFRASTRUCTURE AND BPROVEENTS SHALL CONFORM TO THE STANDARDS AND
SPEGFICATONS OF THE LOCAL URISDKCTON A0 WL BE SUBECT 10 THER NSPECHON

2. SITE LOCATION: 11191 NORTH WALLIAMS STREET, DUNNELLON, MARION COUNTY, PLORIOA.

3. THIS SITE LIES IN 20K X", BASED ON FLOOD SURANCE RATE UAP NO. 12083008620,
CITY OF DUNNELLOW, FLORIDA AND HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF AUCUST 26, 2008

4. BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, ANO TREE SURVEY BY ALTAMAY SURVEYWG, 910 BELLE
AVENUE. SUTE 1140, CASSELBERRY, FLORDA.

5. BENCHUARK - REFER TD TOPOCRAPHIC SURVEY BY ALTAMAX SURVEWING.

6. AECAL DESCRIPTION SHOWN HEREW IS FURNSHED BY SURVEYOR, AND IS INCLUDED FOR
PERUITING AND APPROVAL PURPOSES, AND AS A COURTESY FOR THE CONTRACTOR. THE
ENGWEER ASSUMES NO LIABUITY FOR ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS.

7. SITE GEOTECHMCAL WVESTGATION PERFORMED BY GHD SERWICES. THE CIML ENGINEER
ASSUNES NO RESPONSIBLITY FOR THE CORRECTNESS, ACCURACY AND COUPLETENESS OF
THER WORK  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DBTAM A COPY OF THE GEQTECHMCAL ENGNEER'S
REPORT FOR THIS SITE AND COUPLY WTH RECOMUENDATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN. ¥

ADOAONAL SERVCES ARE REURED, THE GONTRACTOR SHALL UAKE A REQUEST 10 THe

B CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND NSTALL [ROSON CONTROL DEVCES (SAT FENCE OR
OTHER WETHOOS) AT LIATS OF CONSTRUCTION AND AROUND EACH STORM WLET PRWR TO
CONSTRUCTION, AND SHALL MANTAN SAD ERQSON CONTROL DEWCES DURNG

CONSTRUCTION, AL IN CONFORMANCE WTH CURRENT LOCAL COUNTY ANO STATE CRITERIA.

9. THE ST SHALL GE CLEARED AS WAY BE NOTED ON THE PLANS, OF ALL DBSTRUCTIONS

ACCORDANCE WTH APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND FEOERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS.

10, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MUEDIATELY NOTFY THE ENGREER OF ANY DISCREPANCES.
BETWEEN THE PLANS AND FIELD CONDITIONS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION,

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMAN SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DESIGN CHANGES
WHICH HE MAY INCORPORATE INTD THE PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT AND/OR
APPROVAL FROM THE QUMER AND THE ENGINTER,

12, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL WORK WITHIN EACH EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY
WITH MARION COUNTY AND THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

13, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE OVF-SITE AREAS 70 A CONOITION EQUAL TO OR
SLTIER THAN THE CONOITION EXISTING PROR TO COMUENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.

4. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SD0OED,
15, AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR 10 ANTICPATED COMPLETION OF SITE CONSTRUCTION, THE

WATER DISTRIEUTION AND/OR WASTEWATER COLLECTION/TRANSUISSION STSTEMS,

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE TWO (2) SETS OF AS-BULT PLANS, SIGNED ANO SEALED BY
SURVEYOR OF RECORD, ON SITE THE DAY OF THE CIWL ENGEERWG FINAL PUNCH LIST
INSPECTION. THE GINERAL CONTRACTOR IS TO GIVE THE TWO AS-BULT PLANS 10 THE
REPRESENTATIVE FROM Z DEVELOPMENT SERWCES COMPLETG THE INSPECTION, I ANY
DEFICIENCIES ARE NOTED, ONE SET OF RED-LINED AS-BULT PLANS VALL BE GIVEN T0 THE
GC FOR REWISIONS TO BE WADE. REWSED AS-BULTS WL NEED 10 BE FORWARDED TO THE
ENGINEER BETORE ANY CERTIICATONS CAN BE IMTIATED,

98. AL TRAFIC CONTROL DEWCES, EQUPHENT AND INSTALLATION SHALL WEET THE
REQUREUENTS OF TH LOCAL JLRISIICTION ANO/OR FLORIOA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION.

17. VEHICLE PARKING SPACES SHALL CONFORM WTH LOCAL CODE. ACCESSBLE PARKING
SPACES AND ACCESS ROUTES SHALL FURTHER CONFORM WITH CURRENT ADA REQUREMENTS,

18, HANDICAP PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND SIGNAGE SHALL CONFORM WITH CURRENT ADA
REQUIREUENTS AND LOCAL ORDINANCE.

19, LANOSTAPE SHALL 6 TRMAED T0 ENSURE SCGHT WSBLITY OF TRAFFC CONTROL
20, ALL PAVEMENT IS DIENSONED TO FACE OF CURS.
21, AL BULDNG DUENSIONS AND TIES ARE TO FACE OF BULONG. SEE ARCHTECTIRAL

22, AL PARKING LOT CURS RETURN RADE ARE 3' UMLESS OTHERWSE NOTED,

23. BULDNG AND SITE IUPROVEENTS ARE PARALLEL AND PERPENDICULAR TO THE SOUTH
PROPERTY LNE UNLESS DTHERWSE NOTED.

UTILITY NOTES

PRIOR 70 COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERFY ALL

AS WATER MANS, SEWERS, GAS LNES,
o ALABLE NFORMATION AND ARE
"W CONTAALTOR, THE. DIGHEER AND. OWER ASSIE MO
e CONACTON'S FEPONSBUTY T0
'S PRIOR T0 COUMENCEMENT OF
e 0% FAGUTES LOGHED W € Mo PRoR

DRAWNG SCALE, ALL STORU SEWER, DRAINAGE,

PROVEMENTS, NCLUDING ANY REDUISTE COORDNATION WITH THE RESPECTIVE GOVERMING.
AGENCY/UTUTY PROVOER.

3 AL WATER AND SEWER CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM 10 THE STANDARDS AND
SPEONCANS OF ORUNGE COTY UTISRES, A0 WLL BE SUBLECT 10 THER MSPLCTON
i

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT PPWG AND MATERIALS BEFORE INSTALLATION TO DETECT
APPARENT DEFECTS. MARK DEFECTVE MATERIALS WTH WHIITE PAINT AND PROUPTLY REMOVE
FROM SITE.

5. LAY SEWER PPING BEGNMING AT LOW POINT OF SYSTEM (CONNECTION T OFF SITE
SYSTEN OR PULP STATION), TRUE T0 GRADES AND AUIGNUENT NDICATED WTH UNBROKEN
CONTAUTY OF INVERTS. PLACE BELL ENDS OR GAOOVE ENDS OF PPNG FACNG UPSTREAM

B CLEAR WTERIOR OF PRE OF OIRT AND OTHER SUPERFLUOUS MATERIAL AS WORK
PROGRESSES. UAMTAN SWAB OR DRAG N LINE AND PULL PAST EACH JONT AS IT IS
COMNPLETED PLACE PLUGS N )05 OF UNCOMPLETED CONDUIT WHENEVER WORX STOPS.

7. MANTAN 36° COVER OVER UANS, AND 30° OVER SERVICES/LATERALS LMLESS
OTHERWSE NOTED.

& WHEN PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OCCURS AT EXISTNG MANHOLES, NLETS, VALLTS, AND
OTHER STRUCTURES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MOODIFY THE STRUCTURES, FRAMES, AND
GRATES 70 WEET THE PROPOSED GRADES UNLESS OTHERWSE DIRECTED.

9. INSTALL CONTINUOUS LOCATOR TAPE/WRE, LOCATED DIECTLY OVER POTAGLE WATER
MAINS AND SAMITARY SEWER MANS AT 67 10 8% ABOVE PIPE.

10. WHERE APPLICABLE, UTISTY TRENCHES CROSSNG PAVEMENT AREAS SHALL BE BACK
FULLED WTH COMPACTED CRANULAR MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WTH AASHT0.-T-90,

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVOE SLEEVES FOR SRRICATION LNES AND SITE LIGHTING UNDER
PAVEMENT. COORDINATE WTH GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

12. AL TRENCHES EXCAVATED FOR THE PURPOSES OF UTLITY/STORM INSTALLATION SHALL
BE KEPT DAY FOR THE DURATION OF UTILITY/STORM CONSTRUCTION. DEWATERING OF
UTLTY/STORM TRENGHES WAY BE REQURED TO PREVENT FLOATATION OF UTLITY/STORM
PIPES DURING INSTALLATION

.y:ﬁaﬂ?ﬁi!ﬁzgguﬁssﬁi«sfﬁéqs
SATER, WASTIWATER 0 STORUNATER STSTEUS €0 LY CERIICATONS UAY
I ot LT

14, SUTABLE COUPLINGS COMPLYING WITH ASTM SPECFICATIONS ARE REQURED FOR
JONING DISSMEAR WATERIALS.

15 OLFLECTION TESTS ARE REQUIRED FOR ALL FLEXIBLE PPE. TESTING REQUREMENTS: 1)
40 PPE SHAL THCEED A DEFLECTON OF 5%

OR AVERAGE INSIDE OIAUETER OF THE PIPE; 3) PERFORMING THE TEST WITHOUT MECHANICAL

PULUNG DEVKES.
. _MATFBIALS (WATFR)
1 SERVCE PPE SHALL BE POLYETHYLENE (PE) TUBING, DRO MNMUM.

2. WATER WAINS SHALL B[ PVC ASTM (900, DR 18 WITH WTEGRAL BELLS AND
ELASTOUERIC JONTS PLR ASTU C3136 AND GASKETS PIR ASTM F477.

3. DUCTILE RON PIPE (DLP.). F REQUIRED, SHALL CONFORM TO ANSI/AWWA AZ! 51/C181,
CLASS 50 (WI.) PIPE FOR ALL SZIS.

4. CORPORATION STOPS SHALL BE BRASS, SZED T0 MATCH THE TAP DIAMETER, EQUPPED
WTH CONNECTIONS COMPATIBLE WTH SERWCE PPE AND THREADED IN ACCORDANCE WTH
SPECIICATIONS N AWWA C30D. CURB STOPS SHALL BE SZED 10 MATCH THE METER SZE
AND CONFORM WTH AWWA CBOO AND AWWA C901,

5. FITINGS SHALL BE BRASS, CAST AND WACHINED IN ACCORDANCE MTH AWWA C300 AND
AWWA CS01. MTH COMPATIBLE FIPE CONNECTIONS.

6. TAPPING SADDLES SHALL BE USED FOR ALL SERWCE LINE TAPS. SERWCE SADDLES
SHALL BE DOUBLE STRAF, ANCHORED BY A WNILUW FOUR (4) BOLT PATIERN ON A DUCTRE
RON SADDLE 800Y FOR PVC PPL. DOUBLE STRAPS SHALL BE CORROSION RESISTANT
AlLov STERL S2ED DUCHLY 70 THE P OUTSOE DINACTER. SEABIG GASKETS SHALL 0

7. AL FOTABLE WATER PPE AND PIPE FITINGS INSTALLED UNDER THIS PROJECT SHALL BE
BLUE I COLOR VIA NTEGRAL PPL COLOR, STRPING, OR OTHER METHODS.

G MATERIALS (SEMER)

1 AL GRAVITY SEWER PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL BE NOW-PRESSURE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
PIPE (PVC) CONFORMING 10 ASTM D 3034, SOR 28, WITH PUSH-ON RUBBER GASKET JONTS.
2. AL ATTINGS AND ACCESSORES SHALL BE MANUFACTURED DR SUPPLIED BY THE PP

MANUFACTURER DR PRIGR=APPROVED EQUAL.

3. BEDDIG AND INTIAL BACK FLL OVER SCWER UAINS AND SERWCES SHALL BE SAMD WM
HO ROCK LARGER THAN 1° M DIAMETER.

D_MATFRINS {ST0RUY

1 REWFORCTD CONCRETE PPE (RCP: O-RING PIPE SHALL CONFORM 10 ASTM C 76
(CLASS B, UNLESS OTHERWSE SPECFIED) AND AASHTO M 170 STANDARD SPECIICATONS,
AND ASTU C 443 STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR JOINTS FOR RCP USWG RUBBER GASKETS.

2. ELLPTICAL RCP SHALL CONFORM TD ASTM C 507 (CLASS E) AND AASHTO M 207
STANDARD SPECFICATIONS.

3. HOPE PPE AND FITTINGS SHALL MELT THE REGUREMENTS OF AASHTO M-252 {3'~107),
M=-294 (17" AND LARGER), TYPE S (CORRUCATED OUTSIDE — SMOOTH INSDE, 47-807) AND
w7 (80" TYPE ).

A BELL/SPIGOT GASKET FOR HDPE PIPL SHALL BE SOL/SLT TIGHT PER AASHTO
SECTION 26 WITH RUBBER GASKET WMEETING ASTW F-477

4. PVC STORM SEWER PIE (127" OR LESS) AND FITTINGS SHALL BE NON-PRESSURE
POLYWNYL CHLORIE PIPE (PYC) CONFORUING TO ASTM D3AM, SDRZS, WIH PUSH~ON
RUBBER GASKET JONTS.

UTILITY DISINFECTING
& TESTING NOTES

WATER UAINS THAT ARE INCLUDED 1N THIS PROECT THAT WLL BE CONSTRUCTED OF
POLYWNYL CHLORIDE PPE WL BE PRESSURE AND LEAKAGE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WTH
AVWA STANDARD CEOS. WATER WANS WCLUDED IN_THS PROECT WLL BE
PRESSURE. AND LEAKAGE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WIH AWWA STANDARD C500.

LEAKAGE TESTS ARE REQUIRED AS FOLLOWS: 1) THE LEAKAGE EXFLTRATION OF INFILTRATION
DOES NOT EXCEED 200 GALLONS PER INCH OF PIPE DIAMETER PR NLE PER DAY FOR ANY

ASTM F-1417 FOR PLASTIC PPE, AND FOR OTHER MATERIALS APPROPRIATE TEST
PROCEDURES.

DISNFECTION OF THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WETH AWWA C6S1 DISWTECTNG WATER MAINS. SATISFACIORY BACTERIOLOGICAL TEST
RESULTS SHALL B2 SUBNITTED TO ENGNEER PRIOR 10 FINAL CERTHICATION.

THE CONTRACIOR SHALL UAXE PROVISIONS TO PROTECT THE ACTIVE EXSTING NAM FROM
BACKFLOW CONTAMINATION DURING FILLING, FLUSHNG, AND TESTING OF THE NEW WAN, AS
SPECFIED N AWWA C551-92.

CONTRACTOR SHALL UTLIZE A MPER CONMECTION DURING WATER MAIN TESTING,
ALTERNATE TYPES OF BACKFLOW PREVENTION MAY BE UTLZED AS APFROVED BY
INSPECTION STAFF AMD ENGNEER,

UTILITY SEPARATION NOTES

1. NEW OR RELOCATED, UNDERGROUND WATER MAWS WCLUDED N THIS PROJECT WLL BE

MAN AND THE DUTSDE OF ANY DXISTNG OR PROPOSED GRAVITY-TYPE SAMTARY SEWER I
THE BOTION OF TME WATER MAW IS LA AT LEAST SIX MCHES ABOVE THE T0P OF D
SCHER): A HORZONTAL OISTANCE OF AT LEAST SIX FEET BETWEEN THE OUTSOE OF THE
WATER WAIN AND THE OUTSIOE OF ANY EXSTG OR PROPOSED PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY

EXSTING OR PROPOSED “ON-SITE SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM.”
2 New OR RELOCATED, UNDERGROUND WATER MAIS THAT ARE CLUDED W THIS PROECT

SNATARY SEWERS, WASTEWATER FORCE MANS, OR PPILRES COMIEVKG RECLAWED WATER
HOT REGULATED UNDER PART 8 OF CHAPTER §2-510, FAC.

SITE DATA

FAX: (407) 442-0604

Z DEVELOPMENT
s e r v i c e s
CA 29354
708 E. COLONIAL DR, STE 100  PH: {407) 271-8910

ORLANDO, FL 32803

=

DATE | .

DATE | REVISION

p4/25/16

UTILITY CONTACTS

STORU DRAMAGE  LIARYON COUNTY OFTICE OF THE COUNTY ENGNEER

SCWER/ WATER

RECTRIC DUKE ENERGY

CONTACT: ANELICA KEATWNG

s TECD
702 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET

PHONE: 352-477-0743
CONTACT: CHUCK HUMPRHEY

PHONE. CENTURY Lo
PHONE: B55-859-8127
CONTACT: CUSTOMER SERVICE

SIEM8EA MZUST. (0868 Ac)
A Qr
PERVOUS ARTA
WPERVIOUS AREA
BULDING AREA
PAVEMENT
LANDUSE UM ~ MUMCPALTY
P B4 (CENERAL BUSINESS)
BAMDNG BOGHT PROPOSED 24 FEET (TOWER ELEMENT)
PROPOSEO 17.5 FELT (PARAPET)
MONG SETBACKS BEQURFD BROVDED
WEST (N. WLLAWS STREET) Y 74
SoUm 121 biaad
et 12 ap 1
HORTH (S, 141TH PLACE) 0T EEL
LANDSCAPE. BUFFER
VEST (N. WLLAUS STREET) s %31
Sum 5 F1e Ll
st 7R 78R
NORTH (SW. 31VTH PLACE) s m e
« PER APPROVED VARIANCE
BARKNG REQUAED
OV (1) SPACE PER FOUR (4) SEATS
= 55 INDDOR + 12 QUTOOOR = 67 TOTAL
=67 /41875
= 17 PARKING SPACES
BARKNG PROVDED
REGULAR 16 SPAcES
HANDICAP 1 SPACES
AL 17 SPACES
PROPOSED

PROPOSED CONTOUR —7150—
MECT EXISTNG GRADE

EDGE OF PAVEENT

SOEWALK

CRADE BREAK

SPOT ELEVATION

DIRECTION OF FLOW AND FERCENT SLOPE

[%%ﬂzn 25§

STORM SEWER & NLET
DOWN SPOUT DRANS. — 00—
SAMTARY SEWER & WANHOLE Iml@“
CLERIQUT
WATER SERVCE —w—d
FIRE HYDRANT

WATER METER

BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEMICE

GATE VALVE

REDUCER

UNCERGROUND TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

SITE LGHTING

TRANSFORMER

AR CONDITIONING UINIT

PARKING SPACE TOTAS

6 CURBING WTH DIMENSION (10 FACE OF CURE LUN.0)

®fewer{[ {11

ENDY'S RESTAURANT
11191 N. WILLIAMS STREET

(US HWY 41)

DETAL MUMEER
SHEET NUMBER

| REVision
[ v comens
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GC NOTES:
A SOPY.OF THS SHIET CO SHALL BE PROVDED 10 ALL B0D0CS
AND SUB~CONTRACTORS.
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DRAWN:BA
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APPLICABLE SITE PERMITS:

+ FLORDA DEPARTUENT OF TRANSPORTATION DRANAGE [DEUPTON REQUEST)
+ FLORDA DEPARTUENT 0 TRANSPORTATION LWADSCAPE (SOEWALK)

+  SOUTHWEST FLORIDA WATER MANACEMINT DISTRICT

- CY o ooV

SITE DIMENSION PLAN

LEGEND

D ronen

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:

THE GEMERAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PROPOSED DEVELDPMENT W 10

NORTH
20 0 20 40

GRAPHIC SCALE

PLAN NOTES

(1] Huwncap PARKS, STRPMG & HANDCAP ACCESS ASLE @

[2] e ramais sion (8 puace)
_M_wiﬁzsaaa@ .@

(3] 2 wre-pasn-soe o

E..:ﬁ.::.nﬁ:ﬁi@

[7] " smoe s gmi-1)

[&] o wor ever” s

[5] asraur pavnon %
Egls.a.;at!.@ @

@géuiaéia§§=§m®
(7] e s pae ATAYATA

VALY
(N 717
_m__t.aasna-.i@ (o)
18] sorvax wwace rue eh'ea

[17) ormauace srrucee (sex et )

18] ProposED oL WASTE EHELOSURE (SIE ARGATECTURAL PLAN}
[15] P20 uoemn RansoRER (SIE ELECTRCAL PLAM)
Euags.ﬁuguﬁa

@gv.s!azi.i.esﬁceug!:ﬁg?:k
L)

[22] cuesmmves an (sx ancavecTm pL)

[23] swery maame (sie arowrzcnan mw)

[23] A9 A0 RECYCLE ENCLOSURE (ST ARCHTECTARAL PLAK)
[25) oumoon seamc (ste ancurECTIAL PLAN)

[26] womnexn 961 (stx arcmEcnm sy

Hgﬁ
REFER T0 SHEET CO FOR GENERAL NOTES, SPECFICATIONS AND
LEGENDS IN ADOITION 70 SITE SPEQIAC NOTES AND REQUIREMENTS.

= 8§
Z mm
- z
mvmm
fSE
S-S
e £a
0. =8
Zz
N 33
vz
VI
z
§
s
&
E
g
§
3t
&
a
Bl
g
gE
Ed
[ -
Ll
o
<
zE 3
i =
= 9
i
w=SZ
2% Q
wo>3
sesd
—
zoL =
E“H__SU
=20
DATE: 03/14./16
DRAWN:BA

CHECKED: {K

@y

PROJECT NO-: 2015 216




NV1d NOILINTOW3A 31IS

IS JHAVHI

/

IHUS LS 52 4’ F

SKYS O “SAVd STI0d QYL SLRN kS 5
g

O MDY SV DS
b o)

R
i
22
gig
§
E
H

‘G0N 33 01 M)
HVIER0) SUSKG
(M0 GNONR! LY
TIOHR L0CED) MYASY 0L
TOHRANVLIYS DS
anomss 3 al

B G LS

OUIVY Toy g9
WY N

—_—

M.v2.ch.00n

—_

[ 1
aN3oa1

oYY 0L STRL
Qs 3 O ST

ANOR 3 01 LIvHeSY

NI:AINIIHD
VEINMWVYA
91/71/£0°31v0

1D

942 SIOZON 10370¥d

REVISION

WENDY'S RESTAURANT

11191 N. WILLIAMS STREET

(US HWY 41)

DUNNELLON, FLORIDA e

=27 DEVELOPMENT

s e r v i ¢ e s
CA 29354

708 E. COLONIAL DR, STE 100 PH: (407) 271-8910
ORLANDO, FL 32803 FAX: (407) 442-0604




NVId ALIILN 3LIS

02

0

HLHON

b

31¥IS JiRdvHa

—

.0z

: i
fih
|
a:zgp i |
gggg 2
e |
B 5 |O 4 m
A o
A S
-
3 BEE
=
‘Eg £t
3
i
E EREERE BE FE @HEEEHEDEE & S
= G 2E5§ s 38g§ 3 B B = H bl -
i g§§ AR LETHILE B H HHHN
i 1 B IR HEEHE HE H
o8 g st §§‘§§ finigdisieiainid g
W ] g il BETUHEGGEE TS
3 s 8 121xif  § i : 0
S g o i1 W P |
i 4B e g g
B °gnh“’ H é g = §§
% iy o¢ ! o
) :

N)APAIIHD
YENMWIQ
Si/74/£0°31va

912 S10ZON 130¥d

[

WENDY'S RESTAU RANT REVISION DATE | REVISION DATE | |
11191 N. WILLIAMS STREET Z Rt RN
(US HWY 41) CA 29354

DUNNELLON, FLORIDA o D CRANDD, L3208 BBt L EAX 0m 420004

e r v | ¢ e s




NV1d I9VNIVIA ANV ONIAVYD 3LIS

07

3¥IS NHdVHD
HLYUON

.07

07

- Nea

0.0 61 = A3

L2) 02y

ooy =4

13W GIROLS IS

Jags o X058 0 0% (77

SS040 307 QJ30x3 O 10N - 1ND¥ TIESSTIV dvavaNTH
NOUIRA ANY N 10T 30T
a1 a) Lon - 2eeand oo @D

(3440015 3404 51 01 NYHO LNOJSHADA LMD 0L MOIIVHINGD)

©® I—-—_

(N0 LNOSMOA) 3OH .2 = 11 8L
(3015 340H 51 02 NYHD LNOGSNADD LIINWGD UL HOLOVAINGD)

SY6h = AL

It O]
wssiemm s -nm (O
YT = () AN S ()
aTE = (1) AN R3]

{MvE0 LNOSSIMOT) 340H 8 = 1 81 @
oS = (100} AN 51 (N)

sTer= My

ek = it
W 005 0L v LT RS SsG e o v (O

12y = (1) W 0 ()
v (O

192y = (2n0) ‘A 81 {3)
1220 = (i) AM 95 (A}

wssie s -nn &)
{ousxd) WZvF = (100} ‘A vz (3}

wExe MM -ax (D
S31ON ISVNIVYEQ

“®
“®

A3AINIIHI
VENMVHEA
9L/ 9L/ee:31Va

HZ SI0Z“ON 12370Ud

WENDY'S RESTAURANT

11191 N. WILLIAMS STREET

(US HWY 41)
DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

REVISION

DATE

REVISION

DATE

A\ SWFWMD COMMENTS

loe /19716

EVELOPMENT

elEp F=y R Ilc Weig s

CA 29354

708 E. COLONIAL DR, STE 100  PH: (407) 271-8910
ORLANDO, FL 32803 FAX: (407) 442-0604




POST POSTION
(CANTED 20° TowaR FLOW)

FLTER FAGRC

POST (OPTIONS: 7* X 4"
2-1/ 2" N, DA WOOO;

STEL 133 LBS /P, ..:T/ 6 \?a- e

ELEVATION -
LI FENCE
(1) EROSION CONTROL DETALLS  wis .;

g 15

[JPARTIAL INLET

PROTECTION ~ AROUND

INLETS OR SIMILAR STRUCTURES

—_—
—_—
_—
—_—_—

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

LT

WbE Puape o L
§t.wi§nw#l

NORTH

GRAPHIC SCALE

FT = 3000
PSL (28 DAYS

(2)CRUSHED STONE CONSTRUCTION EXiTurs

POLLUTION CONTROL NOTES

1 MESS SPECFIED, SLT FENCES WAY BE USED B LU OF HAY BARRERS.

12, ADDONAL POSTS AND RALS UAY BE NECESSARY TO SCURE AND SUPPORT

BARRERS.

13 ADDITIONAL BARRIER LENGTHS WAY BE REQURED BY THE CONTY ENGIER

REGULATORY AGENCES.

TER FABRIC WUST BE NSTALLED UNDER ALL BT GRATES, AT ALL RAES

WHEN BLETS ARE NOT PROTECTED BY SAT FENCE OR SYMTHETC HAY BALES,

UNTL THE LAEROCK BASE 15 PMSHED MO

15, THE CONTRACTOR IS REQURED T0 HAVE
WA

17 THE CONTRACTOR 1S REQURED 70 SUBMET A NOTICE OF
FLORDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVROMENTAL PROTECTION LPON THE COMPLETION OF
CONSTRUCTON.

18 CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAN ALL RECORDS FOR A PEROD OF THREE YEARS.

TOTAL AREA | *DISTURBED IMPERVIOUS® | PERVIOUS®
SF) AREA Mmm AREA Mwmw AREA wﬂw
[AC) AREA (AC) | AREA (AC) | AREA (AC) | AREA (AC)

34,274 SF | 34,274 SF 0 20,87 5F [ 13,403 SF

0.787 AC | 0.786 AC [J 0479 AC | 0.308 AC

—_

“IMPERVIOUS + PERVIOUS = IXSTURBED

Startmetar Patution Provevion Pin Inpection Ragerl Form

e 0 vk and wibn 24 heurs of Uhe and of @ stom ent

FOLLOWNG THE NOTCE OF TERMMATION.

19. NON STORUWATER DISCHARGES SUCH AS FIRE HYDRANT FLUSHING, £1C SHALL
BE DISCHARGED 10 EXISTWG LNDERGROUMD STORWWATER FACUTY OR ON STE
RETENTOH POD,

ANY POTENTIALLY KAZARDOUS CHELECALS BROUGHT ON1O0 THE JOB SITE WAL,
UTED AND KEPT I ORGHAL CONTANER WTH USDS LABEL.

N0 SLT SHALL BE ACKED DHTO PUBLIC ROADWAYS.
PUBLIC ROADKAYS SHALL B REMOVED BY THE £ND OF THE

ANY SLT DEPOSITED DN
WORK DAY

DRI CONDMON / CORSEETVE ACPON

CE Ny
2 cartty wekr penclty of ow thol | undersand, and shel conply wi, e lermg.
pldpytyn Do o o o

c e s
FAX. (407) 442-0604

CA 29354

DEVELOPMENT

s e r v

V4
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DATE | REVISION
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OTES: 3 o
L SO 0L 00 s e ¢ s * =" g8
. 3) 5w
el SRR | B z. g
ki ! o0 W e ; = u NS
o RETLECIORZED LEGEND AND g . s 58
soRR. X £
HANICAP SWBOL | 3 gOTTIM PORTION OF SN SHALL = = o - o
{50 5" HoA} HAVE A REFLECTORZED T i P
g v o pary TIPE 5" ASPHALTIC CONCRETE EXTEND BASE §° BEYOND FOR APPUCATIONS Ov = e
O erar \\i.q.ﬁﬁs.g WG G & U, SOEWAS, BALOOGS =) S8
J— 4. TR NOTFICATON I SHALL Leiad ¥ b 2 o
HAVE A REFLECTORZED — 3 = e e —_—— — e g w
g | e {DNGHERNG CRATE) WATE ———— RN PR T T T ) S 3
BACKGROUMD WTH BLACK OPAOUE P . ) } S &
LEGEND & BORDER. o8 0. - b i Oy &
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERS'Y ! 1e) ir 7 i v a 2
FRIE AUOUNT & ORDNANCE WUMBER = T D 23
5 BEQ) SO REQURED (R EACH A - w ELd
REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE SUBGRADE
b AL JSSiT o SO1 SWL X 8 007 SHEPRATN, AT it LPURATIN AT OF UATERWL 45 SPECFED W 1V GEOTCHICAL REPORT N gz
W SECTO 24-2) O D WARUAL O 025 - 228 /50 wm
3:3__ ki TEWES (D) LIMEROCK /CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE COURSE. (LBR1DD) STABLZED SUBGRADE (LBRA0) COUPACTED 10 MMM DENSITY @ w
% Sukt W CEED Y S S0P Wy DRS¢ P 7R 7 H._E__ﬁ..h..ash.!:ia}nr DL oue, COPACT:D 70,38 REACT OF B MOOFED PRoCTUR VALK ¥5 FEREDNT OF B UCOJED PROCKR AN %Y 0D A eOnM
STMLE OF HAKDICA? RAUP. HANDICAP STRPNG SHALL CONFORM TO AT PROPER HEIGHT, F AUGIED WTHN 12° ~ O
FDOT INDEX 17346 {LATEST EDITION) CENTER OF PARKING SPACL. =N
(1) HANDICAP STRIPING wis|(2) HANDICAP SIGN wis|(3) PAVEMENT MARKINGS wis| (4) TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION s g
a
3 1 2 ASPHALT -
PAVEMENT
\. VAL L e s R
r “\ . N NOTE TDQUED EDCES TOOLED EDCES
. iy REASE REFDR 10 0w o 4,
i s EEe B My — \/ . z
e ] [ 3 k]
[ S 5 CONT. o wu
1) PORTLAND CEMENT CONC. PAVEM /[ e e s VR — 1 ) ¥ m
1. NN - i
RIGD PAVEMENT CONSISTS OF CONSTRUCTING A SPECYIED PORTLANO cleNT | m N . E ) panan Ll _
CONCRETE PAVNG ON A PRIPARED SUBGRADE. THE UTLUTIES AND OTHER Sootal X X XJ w u. = “
y (TEMS W AND BENEATH THE STREET MUST BE PROPERLY COORDINATED WITH 4, o > = 2
DM AL b T rUnsG O ) Srenen pag |1 K ) ® 1 GIST O 244 DS (COHT) SIAL B WLED. 3
MATERIALS, EQUIPWEN] AND NCIDENTAL NECESSARY FOR THE PROPOSED P 2 PROVOED 2-#6 SMOOTH BARS WH DXPANSON CAPS AT EACH
RICD PAVEMENT CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WTH THE J
1. 7"~ 4000 PS COVGRETE W/ FBERUESH RON ORCEMENT Boseds 0 SECPOATON R F e G e
2 12 = VELL DRAMNG GRANULIR SUBGRADE, COMPACTED B AT SuiL AR ' ASNAM COUESSE SYENGH o 4100 e ARs _ dr e s s Won Do s e BEREChGR, A1 AL Dok crrumks W A1 156 %
10 685 OF THE UATERILS AMSHTO-1-180 (PG PSI K1 28 DAYS. COMFORUANCE 10 STRENGTH REQUREUENTS SHALL - SuscRE CONTRACTION JON1S SHALL BE SAW CUT 80 THE UPPER 1/ 3 OF el
MASIUM DRY DENSTY. MNAAAL LBRID EE OETERNED BY AC STANDARD 318, LATEST EDITIN, CURS AKD GUTTER W 24 HOURS OF PLACEUDIT EXPANSION JONT (1/ 4° PROUCLOED ASPHALT SIRW) SHALL BE
3 1/4° PROVOLDED ASPHALT EXPANSON JONT STRP  SET 1/2° SECTONS 423 0 481 ' P B U A £ =
BELOW PAVEUENT T0P @ 20-07 QL MAXMM. 4. DIDS OF VIRTICAL CURS SHALL TRANSIION FROM FULL T0 28RO SHMLC £ (uAY) 5. ]
HEIGHTS W 3 FEET a
PL STUBL W
(5) CONCRETE PAVEMENT ws | (8) CONCRETE APRON ws  |(7) monouTHIC cuRs & sibEwaik| (B) 6" VERTICAL CURS ws [(9) concreTe waLk NS
3,500 PSI (M) CONCRETE {3500 P31 (W) NTS (1500 PS () %
]
NOTE 1+ NOTE 3 - . a2
NOTE 1: REFERENCE FDOT BOIX 304, PACE 1, CEMERAL AND DESCH ] WAL GATAT Wik A7E" SE OECUREE [ P CROW CONCRETE g
NOTES FOR RAPS M RO b A L I 'y WM&# : AL g
NOTE 2: COMSTRUCT RAMP TO LEAST POSSBLE SLOPE {WAX = 112), RAPS W B NOTE 4 i & CONC. 70 APPROX. W1 s,
CROSS SLOPE OF RAUP AND LADWC SHALL NOT EXCEED 150, HOTE 2: INTRE RAMP SURFACE (OUTSDE OF & e ]
- e n Rty e o com, i
SR i CREATCL,THAL & 2ot s CROSS SLOPC OF RAP M0 RECOMMENOED COLORS ARE AED OR YELLOW e
HOTE 4 LANDNG SHALL NOT EXCEED 1:50. 0 MATCH THE COLOR CHOSEN FOR THE. ge
DITHE RAUP SURFACE (QUTSDE OF DETECTABLE WARWNG) SIALL CONTRAST X DETECTABLE WARMIG AT gt
M COUDR 8Y 70% FROM THAT OF THE SDEWAK. RECOUMENDED COLORS ARE s
RED OB YELLOW 10 UATCH THE COLOR CHOSEN FOR THE DETECTABLE 5]
WADDIG AT
oun Jowts
CURB RAPS | et
[ST]
RAP
are M
MSUALY CONTRASTMG. =
TSRS ) N [ A
2 IC CONCRETE M v =
%] o
PLAN VIEW PICTORIAL VIEW | SRR INT S (@]
|
e FLARED HANDICAP RAMP  wr1s HANDICAP END RAMP NTS @ SIDEWALK HANDICAP RAMP nts < m [T
3000 PSI (N} CONCRETE 3000 P (uN) CONGRETE .._\l-.l_
-
TR s & T . [ OOME PATIERN SWAL BE L = — z
OTS: - B 2z afe <7, 238 [ e arChon WL o W o)
e 1. BEDONG MATERIAL SHALL CONSIST O N-SITU GRAMAAR o T T x BETECHBLE WOl \\ R 1 CUNE RAUP PUNMNG SLOPLS SKALL KOT BE STEIPER THAY 112 010 <
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E.ﬂ?a.ln Lk optytot UARGER ROCKS. SHALL BC REUOVED B ACCORDANCE WTH ASTU Hls 3 y o 2 DETECTABLE WARNNG SURFACES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED BY TEXTURNG prd
APPROPEATE SECFICANONS OR W, 98X PR 02371, SN D . m.m o 7. | o] TRUNCATED DOVE. OR APPLYING A TRUNCATED DOUE MATERIAL N CONFORMANCE WITH THE US. > L
e e ke A ST (e PR o el o e o K.ﬁ DEIAL) DIPARTUENT OF WISTICE ADA_ STANDARDS FOR ACCESSBLE DESKH, ADA.
¥ oW 2. THE PIPE SHALL BE FLLLY SUPPORTED FOR 75 ENTIRE LENGTH FA B [ole) ACGESSELITY CUDELNES, SECTION 4 29.2. TRAXSITION SLOPES ARE 0T 10 Dl N
WTH APPROPRIATE COMPACTION UNDER THE PP HAUNGES. T Y Wl *| G| 4 a1clc HAVE OCTECTABLE. WARKANGS. Z o0 I =
UL BACLL PLCED 0 L THE PIPE SHALL BE PLACED M A ORY TRENCH. 150\ punsle 3. WHERE A CURB RAVP 15 CONSTRUCTED WIHN AN EXISTNG CLRS, CLR9 |
Frietnl vy oms M R Em.ﬂ 00O0O 52:95\355332555? Ll [9s] D
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PPL AT INTERVALS OF 400 F1. MAXIUM. i FOR REBAR LAYOUT REFER T0 FDOT EXTENT THAT NO REMADENG SECTION OF SOEWALK 15 LESS THAN 5
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UNFORM GLEARANGE (MULCH STRP) BETWEEN
PLANT FOLGE AN EDGE OF BEDLKE (TYP.}

SELECTVELY PLOE TOUANTAN FORM

MM T LALOH AS SPECFED AND 12.10° FRCM TRLANC

500 sacen
U BACK PLIRLAY CNE THED ¥ BALLED &
BUALIPYED REMOVE SYNTHETIC BURLAP COUPLETELY
T XZaP TP WOOD SINE

AL W OROLRD.

PUNTIG SOL MR VAN, S3PEAT

12 TOPSOR COMTRACTOR TO SuBMIT

Y PREPOSED SURSTIIUTE FOR APPROVAL.

'ROGY SAL OF 17 Cr{ ALL 50E3
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TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

PROVIOE AGRIFORL FERTLIZEN TABLETS

TWOSTEEL BANDS TOSECLRE BATTENS

OF 17 CHALL €3 MO T ONEOTTIM

PALM PLANTING DETAL

NOT TO SCALE

3GALITHABLETS. 1GALN TARLET

PRV & WIS CLEAMANCE AROLND
RO BALL (SDES MO BOTTOMY

Z110.CH NS -DONOT COVER AN STBY

17 MBI CEPTHOF PLINTNG SOL UKX
N SPLEICACLAOCTVER PLANTING BEI.

SHRUB O

TREET Ty 0P TP STNES

3oL sauceR

TURN BACK BURLAP ONE THRO & BALLED &
BURLAAPED. AEUOVE SYMTHETIC BLRLAP COMPLETRLY

MULTI-TRUNK TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NOT 7O SCALE

LANDSCAPE PLANTING NOTES:

TREE PROTECTION UNDISTURBED AREA SHALL BE PROVIDED BASED UPON TREE DBH. BARRIER
SHALL BE ERECTED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION IN GENERAL AREA OF TREES 70 BE

1
2
3
4
s
6
7
8
)

ALL PLANTS MUST BE HEALTHY, VIGOROUS MATERIAL FREE OF PESTS AND DISEASES

ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FLORIDA FANCY, AS GRADED IN FLORIDA GRADES AND STANDARDS FOR
NURSERY PLANTS

ALL PLANTS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER BEFORE, DURING.
AND AFTER INSTALLATION

ALL SINGLE-TRUNKED TREES SHALL BE STRAIGHT TRUNKED WITH ONE CENTRAL LEADER AND HAVE A
FULL, DENSE CROWN

ALL TREES SHALL BE STAKED AND GUYED AS SHOWN IN PLANTING DETAILS

ALL MULCH PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2 IN DEPTH

ALL PLANTING AREAS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 3" TOPSOIL.

ALL TREES SHALL BE FREE OF OPEN WOUNDS AND WOUND SCARS [N THE CLEAR TRUNK AREA.

ANY SYNTHETIC BURLAP AND/OR WIRE BASKETS MUST BE TOTALLY REMOVED PRIOR TO INSTALLATIGN
OF PLANT MATERIAL. IF NATURAL BURLAP (S USED, IT MAY BE TURNED DOWN 1/3 OF THE ROOTBALL

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR NOTES:

1

2

P

@

~

THE LANDSCAFE 18 E FOR L IN FULL, ALL L PLANTING
AREAS. UNTIL THE JOB IS ACCEFTED IN FULL BY THE OWNER "IN FULL® MEANS WATERING, PEST
CONTROL. MULCHING. MOWING. FERTILIZNG AND RESETTING TREES THAT ARE OUT OF PLUMB

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETELY GUARANTEE ALL INSTALLED PLANT MATERIAL FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE DATE OF 100% COMPLETION. ANY AND ALL
REQUIRED PLANT REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE MADE PROMPTLY AND AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE
OWNER,

THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL STAKE THE LOCATIONS OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL AND PLANTING

" BEDLINES FOR REVIEW BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER
. THE LA SHALL BE

E FOR VERIFICATION OF ALL WRITTEN PLANT
QUANITIES PRIOR TO INITIATION OF THE WORK. IN THE EVENT THAT THE PLANS CONTRADICT THE PLANT
LIST, THE PLANS SHALL RULE

. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE FAMILIAR WITH AND ACCEPT THE EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

PRIOR TO INITIATION OF THE WORK. ANY VARIATION FROM THE SPECIFIED WORK SHALL BE THE
LITY OF THE LAN B

THE LA SHALL BE LE FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES,

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, CURBS, SIDEWALKS, AND ANY OTHER OBJECTS WHICH MIGHT BE DAMAGED

DURING THE WORK.
THE LA SHALL BE E TO MAKE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY REPAIRS TO
DAMAGE CAUSED BY HIS WORK AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER OR LANDSCAPE

PROHIBITED WITHIN THIS AREA

1 PARKING OR USE OF VEHICLES, EQUIPMENT, OR MACHINERY

2. STORAGE OR DUMPING OF ANY MATERIALS OR LIQUID.

3. CONSTRUCTION, EXCAVATION. OR TRENCHING

EXISTING REMAINING FOR RIGHT
DURING THE

OF WAY, PARKING AREAS OR BE
CONSTRUCTION PROCESS
FOR EACH TREE TO BE PRESERVED, ESTABLISH AN UNDISTURBED AREA MEASURED FROM THE

CENTER OF EACH TREE. THE MINIMUM UNDISTURBED AREA IS A RADIUS OF 0.76' FOR EACH INCH

SHALL HAVE A 6 FEET ALSO SEE LANDSCAPE NOTES.
BARRIERS TO REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL ALL PAVING AND CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED.
UPRIGHTS - THE EQUIVALENT OF 4 X 4 LUMBER AT 3 MINIMUM HEIGHT ON & MAX, CENTERS.
xﬂﬂ%ﬁ#w « THE EQUIVALENT OF TWO COURSES OF 1/2° DIA. ROPE WITH YELLOW TAPE
Fi 3

TYPICAL TREE PROTECTION DETAIL
NOT 70 SCALE

CITY OF DUNNELLON CODE NOTES:

North Property kina adjecent to ROW 252 loss 26" {accass driva) = 224 inoar feot

Provided = 7 MG
226'7100 =228 x § = 11 3understory lress requirsd  Provided = 11LIT

Wost Praperty line adjacent to ROW 152 finear feet
527100 = 1 52 x 3 = 4.56 canopy Ueos fequired
152'/100 = 1 52 x § = 7.6 undarstary rees required

228'/100 = 2.26 x 3 = 6.78 canopy 1rees required

Provided = 8 UT

Provided = 3 Existing and 1 QV
Provided = 8 IT

. Provided =6 QV and 1 MG
217'/100 =217 x § = 10.85 undarstory ees required  Providad = 11 LIT

40% Sod maximum requirement
Provided: lezs than 40% of

o8 sodded area

THE LA} SHALL BE BLE FOR ALL NECESSARY PERMITS, AND
FOLLOWING ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL CODES PERTAINING TO THE PROJECT DURING THE COURSE OF HIS
'WORK

Py i
Provided: 20 canopy trees divarsity of spacies = (3) oaks, magnolias, and eims.

Provided = 2 Existing, 1 MG, and 2 UA

TOTAL SHEETS
11,12 L-3. and L4
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IRRIGATION DETAILS " 23
IRRIGATION NOTES = ag
18-24° COLED WIRE m o ]
WATERPROOF CONNECTORS (2) TALL MANLNE PEING SHALL BE BURED TO A KRR DEPTH CF 13" OF COVERL ALL LATERAL PPNG SHALL B BURED TOA u [
o g (DPen BuBsLER ozzLE ORI DEPTHOE 17 OF COVER. M g8
SCH 80 MIPPLE el e = ey
REFOTE COHTROL VALVE s N S aiss W o £%
INTERIOR (DFIMSH GRADE 0% £
SRTERIOR TIODEL ICV-(SIZE,SEE EQUIP L — ronsT AL .
FINIMUM CLEARANCE SCHEDULE)G WITH FILTER (@i 4 THREADED COUPLER Py = 2 8
FOR DOOR OPEMNG SENTRY (75) PRO FLEX SHING JONT: - aanmen [T < o
HUNTER 'PRO-FLEX' TUBING ¢ AL RISERS SHALL BE PANTED BLACK. - ~ w
FINSH GRADE Ohisae-mm0 cLoows (2), aso  O——sad i o= Jy— > <@
MODEL IC-XX00-H PUARLEX STREET ELBOW (1) a b} o
STANDARD VALVE BOX @uateRaL Tee ok B ELPPE K eortvh HA covma, [NN] o
CONTROL WIRE IN ELECTRICAL 3
o e Quimeme @ B || g S Fr e e Lol e i S o. 35
PER LOCAL CODE SCH 80 T.OE NIPPLE @repa Hov-sor-str AFEE. THE GAAWNG EHALL LOCATE ALL UANL NE AND VALVES BY SHOWSNG EXACT UEASUREMENTS FRO HAPD SURFACES Z
vairoer st o FAN LINE PIPE & FITTINGS CHECK. VALVE : Mo Z M I,
J BOX INSIDE CONTROLLER
COWECT PER LOCAL CODE BRICK SUFPORTS (4) . Y AL NS S B DETILED O T PALPETY 20 ASDE T DDSCE A AT Q e
-
/4% FINUS WASHED GRAVEL )AL USERLS SHALL B NSTALLED 17 FAOM Y WALL KA A NRULRS OF 0 FACA ANY SEWALK,PATID G RGAD A =
PLACE CONTROL HIRES UNDER HAI vt =
e Felo "
=
41THE CONTIACTOR 5441 EXERCES CARE 50A5 0T 10 DAMAGE ANY EXISTNG UTLITES. THE CORTRACTOR SHALL B
(A) I-CORE_WALL MOUNT CONTROLLER (B) Icv-151 OR 201 GLOBE VALVE (OPCN BUBBLER (0) HEAD DETAIL TSP CHELE FOR i AARDATE AEPARS A CEST G Y DALAGE CASED Y S WO 3
_uvfhﬂig 4
WAL OR ETRUCTURE PPAINT ALL RISERS BLACK' .
N iR forTionm, SYSTEN SENSOR AT LS5 T PO/ S S AN COHTRE WS PO P 0 L YRS
e (e I concas
ool 1 SRR posT or PoLE A s s
dmemmenne \l TIOUNTa I 611 ABOVE TURE T GLCED 1O PO A ALY PRCTINAL RARATION SYSTEL CAF AL F PRON BN 190 PERGEN) COVERABE WINIA S
N FecEnT Ot
Poset 1o o Mnon 4 BIRBGH BRI €7 svsten
SERramees amcer = SOISOR TO ET SySTEN SPRAY NOZZLE CHART

MODEL ET SYSTEM MODULE
TOUNT LESS THAN &' AWAY
FROM CONTROLLER

§
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ilx
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COMPATIBLE HUNTER s
CONTROLLERS .
SRC, PRO-C, I-CORE, ACC

COMTUMNICATION WIRE o=ty
FROM SENSOR TO MODULE W -

X
POWER SOURCE [} o ARC

EQUIPMENT LIST

SYMBOL  DESCRIPTION
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¥
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. or rer (um 7). SLEEVING - SCH 40P V.C. MR DEPTHOF 24" seE PN —M - A
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ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY 7 pm
< - o
£ ETLa-
T Rkt tvorn
GENERAL SURVEY NOTES: & u%ﬁlﬁi
w3
1 BEARING STRUCTURE BASED ON THE MONUMENTED SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE m..!-nﬂ.u.!.nl
OF SW 111TH PLACE; BEING: SB3'4324°€ PER OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 2854, PAGE &V “gicaimy o winmm
403, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS FOR MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA v C B B
- B
2. THIS SURVEY REFLECTS ONLY MATTERS OF RECORD AS PROVIDED BY THE G = SRR TS
CUENT OR CLIENTS REPRESENTATIVE = cowat
- Ccnen s
3. THIS SURVEY WAS MADE ON THE GROUND. THE UNDERGROUND UMILITIES SHOWN o - aimiand
HAVE_BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. S - ST
THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UNOERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN e s o
COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. 2z gﬂ.ﬂ!ﬂ
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES - AN
SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT wg
THEY ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. Ry
THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. -
4. THIS SNTE LES IN ZONE “X", BASED ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO B - BER
12083C0662D, CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA AND HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF & - B2 maos
AUGUST 28, 2008. I Z s o twnon
B Tl s
5. ACCORDING TO FLORIDA STATUTES, CHAPTER 472025, A LAND SURVEYOR R e
SHALL NOT AFFIX HIS SEAL OR NAME TO ANY PLAN OR ORAWING WHICH DEPICTS 2 2 e o omr
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RECEIVED

City of Dunnellon MAR 15 2016
CITY OF DUNNELLON

Planning and Zoning Application  comHunT DEVELOPMENT

Date: _ 2\ ! ‘ )‘ ! ! g Application No.: PZ‘S l Q""’D L\6

Applicant Name: Y{BW ! M JfCh/L( Phone#_ 4D 2711 8410
Address: ' =R OV‘]'),( MFD/ V‘E’() Fax#_ 401 447 OleD

) Email Address:

Applicant is: 0 Owner %‘gent Q Purchaser [ Lessee Q Other

Owner(s) Name: L (, Phone # z| —&}0\7 Ll
Address: Fax# __N|A
;. w L 55%’] Email Addressdﬂagdﬂb_@c}hz@fﬂvw Lim

Application Type
Q Annexation Q Rezoning QO Comprehensive Plan Amendment
Q Lot Line Deviation Q Variance-Residential O Administrative Appeal

Site Plan Review Q Preliminary Plat Review [ Variance-Commercial -
Q Final Plat Q Special Exception Use 1 Construction Plan Review
O Road/Easement Vacation Qd Concurrency Review Q Planned Unit Development
Q Other:

Reason for Request: A\ plpin v VIEWD

Project Title (Site Plans, future/e‘xisting subdivisions only): D[ J/L(LU

Property Address: || {4 \ M, \)J\,L\ LO( “j" : Property Slze (acres) h 54‘

Parcel ID Number: 66 l 0 7) 0\ O()V o) \

Existing Use of Property: P v \)JM V\ .

Existing Zoning: \2; /-\' Current/Future Land Use: 0,5 WLy wlr

Current number of structures on the property: Z -

Type of structure(s) on property (house, shed, etc.): M v W MV\ ‘ ’FTL ¥ ‘ﬁbﬁd WMVMT
Proposed Use of Property: ,‘/&,&H' /PM) d AS\u1| A} )’l'r

Proposed Zoning: &\: Proposed Land Use: A{)Y\/\ mé 1 (LL&-Jl

Please Explain Your Request for the Proposed Zoning and/or Future Land Use:

N|A




What utilities currently exist on the site?

Water FS/ewer Q Well Q Septic O None
hat utilities dre proposed to be used?
Water ?KSewer Q Well 0 Septic 0 None

ve any previpus applications been filed within the last year in connection with this property?
%Ies U No
Ity

es, please describe and give Application Numbers: f\\.! A

Submittal Requirements: Check Box For Each Item You Are Attaching

All Applications MUST provide the following:
O Required advertising to placed in: 0 Riverland News (default) O Ocala Star Banner (expedited)
mpleted Planning & Zoning Application
Copy of the Recorded Deed(s) for the property
E/Copy of Property Record Card(s) (Available online at http://www.pa.marion.fl.us)
G Owner’s / Agent’s Affidavit (Last page of this Application)

All Applications MUST provide the following upon request by the City:
QO Lot Plan

O Survey of the Property

O Diagram

Specific Attachments:
O Annexation: Complete Electronic Legal Description in MS Word Format
Annexation Letter (sample attached)
Q Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (LSCPA): Complete Electronic Legal Description in MS
Word Format
O Variance: Survey of property detailing variance request
Q Special Exception: Survey of property detailing special exception request
Site Plan Approval: 7 copies of site plan and 1 electronic copy
Q Preliminary Plat Application: 7 copies of site plan and 1 electronic copy
Q Construction Plan Approval: 3 copies of site plan and 1 electronic copy
O Final Plat Application: 7 copies of site plan and 1 electronic copy
O Road/ Lot/ Parcel / Plat / Easement Vacation: Survey detailing request
Q Planned Unit Development (PUD) Zoning: 7 copies of site plan and 1 electronic copy
O Other:

NLY EXATION, REZONING, A MPREHENSIVE PLAN
AMENDMENTS ARE ALLOWED ON A SINGLE APPLICATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: PLEASE READ

The applicant is requested to be present during the public hearing before the Planning Commission and City
Council. Although a city employee may be present, they are there to give advice and answer questions only.
If for any reason you cannot attend the scheduled meeting, please contact the Community Development
Department at (352) 465-8500. Your application may be tabled until a new public hearing can be scheduled
and advertised.



Fee Schedule

Application Fees are required at the time the application is submitted.

Voluntary Annexation $500.00
Re-zoning $500.00
Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment < 10 acres $1,200 .00
Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment > 10 acres $2,500 .00
Variance $500.00
Special Exception Use $750.00
Vacation of Plat $750.00
Abrogation $750.00
Concurrency Application $1,000.00
Developer’s Agreement $6,000.00
Amendment to Developer’s Agreement $3,000.00
Site Plan

First 10,000 square feet | $250.00

Each Additional 10,000 square feet or portion thereof

$150.00 (maximum of $2,500.0(

Minor Site Plan Review (Improvements to existing site) $500.00
Subdivisions
Pre-Conceptual Plan Fee | $300.00
Preliminary Plat
First 15 lots | $250.00
16 lots or more | $500.00
Plus (per lot or parcel) | $25.00
Improvement (Construction) Plan Review $600.00
Plus (per 100 feet of roadway) | $30.00
Final Plat
First 15 lots | $250.00
16 lots or more | $500.00
Plus - per lot or parcel | $25.00
PUD (Required if Site Plan Approval was not part of the PUD Comp Plan Amendment
$2,500.00
Admin Appeal to the City Council $250.00
D.RIL $15,000.00
Written Zoning Verification $50.00
Admin Fee $50.00

The applicant shall pay all costs of advertising and other fees, including attorney fees in
accordance with the City of Dunnellon Code of Ordinances, Chapter 94, Planning, Article II,

Planning Commission, Section 94.37 (16).

Prior to Application Hearing before City Council ALL Incurred Fees to date MUST Be Paid to
the City Clerk’s Office. If you have any questions regarding any outstanding fees, please contact

the City Clerk’s office at (352) 465-8500.

es Are Non-Refundable, Unless The Application Is Withdraw

Df Submittal (No
. [N€e \‘ Manager Or By H-.“‘ \s 018~

Includina Citv-Observed 1.10“3\1\‘,,__

I N

n, In Writing, Wi
Unles:

Of The City puncil.

Applicant \ \/ Date | |



gg\E\b/\gm

MISCELLANEOUS PAYMENT RECPTH: 447208

SITY OF DUNNELLON
20750 RIVER DRIVE llé(flgw

DUNKELLDM FL 34431-0000

DATE: 03/15/14 TIME 16134
CLERK: B1271bar BEFT-
CUSTOKERY: O

COMHENT. 7 DEVELOFMENT/PZ1514

CHE: 32201 PERMIT ADMINIST 550.30
AROUNT PAID: 550,00
PAID BY: 7 DEVELOPMENT SERVIC
FOYMENT HETH. CHECK
2358
REFERENCE :
AWT TENGERED: 50.00
AMT AFFLIED: 550,00

CHANGE: .05



Property Owner & Agent Affidavit
Date: 2111

Before me, the undersigned authority personally i red; Snnw 4V (property owner’s name). who
being by me duly sworn on oath, deposes and says:

1. That said authority is the fee-simple owner of the property legally described in this application.

3 That said authority (property owner) has appointed (agent’s name) to act in his
behalf to accomplish the above, and before me the undersigned authorized agent lly appeared and being by me duly sworn

on oath, deposes and says:

24 That said authority desires to:

A. That he/she affirms and certifies that he/she understands and will comply with all ordinances, regulations, and
provisions of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, and that all statements and diagrams submitted herewith are true
and accurate to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, and further that this application and attachments shall
become part of the Official Records of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, and are not returnable.

B. That the submittal requirements for the application have been completed and attached hereto as part of the
application.

4. That the fees are NON-]
submittal (not including o
Council.

UNDABLE unless the Application is withdrawn in writing ¥ e (5) business days of
ge pjority vote by the City

STATE OF FLORIDA
: COUNTY OF MARTON ()¢
Subscribed and swom to (pr affirmed) before Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) befo

Me on 3“0(90!(0 (date) by me on 6\ D\ [U (date) by
mnf\,\/ W\C(md_aname) IQMOGW Zlmmf (name)

Of affiant, deponen or other signer. He/she is of affiant, deponent, of other signer. He/she is
personally known to me.#r has presented personally known to me or has presented
-’_’-—

as identification. f as identification. /

UBLIC

KELLEE KLUTHE
i MY COMMISSION # FF929003
EXPIRES October 21, 2019

SEAL:

Note: The Proper
Property Owner must sign the Affidavit.

an Agent is representing the case, both the Agent and the

>



CHECKLIST FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

CITY OF DUNNELLON RECE|VED
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MAR 15 21016
(352) 465-8500 x1011

CITY OF DUNNELLON
This checklist must be completed, signed and submitted with three (3) hard copies and oReNMYRRAFGH
of the site plan to the Community Development Department. Plans must be submitted at least 30 days prior to
the approval process. Except as otherwise noted, refer to the City of Dunnellon Code of Ordinances for specific
information on the items below:

Site plans must contain the following information:

Please refer to the City of Dunnellon Code of Ordinances, Appendix A, Article IX. Supplementary
District Regulations.

1. €V Name and owner of the proposed development.
2. { M Name and address of the preparer of the site plan.
3. CV A vicinity map; including scale and north arrow, oriented in the same direction as the site plan.

4. {0  The land use and zoning of the project site. The dates and case number of board of adjustment or
planning and zoning commission cases, if applicable.

5. Cl Adjacent land use, zoning, and existing uses.
6. Al). Date, north arrow, and graphic scale.
7. (L Percentage of the property covered by structures and impervious surfaces.

8. CA__ A site plan must contain a statement describing the general character of the intended development,
including intensity and density. Intensity is to include floor area ratio and percentage of building coverage.

9. AW, Signed, sealed and certified by an engineer registered in the State of Florida (only applicable if a
Stormwater or FDEP permit is required). Architects and landscape architects shall be allowed to sign and seal
site plans (if permits are required) to the extent allowed by law by the State of Florida.

10. £| Proof or other required permits must be provided, including but not limited to FDEP, FDOT, septic
tank, or Marion County. Applicable drawings, applications, or approvals must be included with the material
submitted or site plan review.

1118 Ulz wa.ujite plan must contain a valid and accurate legal description of the subject property. The site plan
drawing must show the information contained in the legal description for the subject property. Adjacent
property must be identified and labeled as described in paragraph (d) below.

a. g"w‘ﬂ lot and block description must include parcel account number, plat book and page,
subdivision name, block number(s), lot number(s), lot line bearings, and lot dimensions for subject
property. Section lines, section comers, and quarter section corners must be shown, as appropriate.



]
b. 5”‘”14 metes and bounds description must include parcel account number, official records book and
page, point of commencement, point of beginning, bearings and distances for subject property. Section
lines, section corners, and quarter section corners must be shown, as appropriate.

C.MiA fractional breakdown description must include parcel number and official records books and
page, property line bearings, and property dimensions for subject property. Section lines, section
corners, and quarter section corners must be shown as appropriate.

d.Sy% Property adjacent to subject property must be identified and labeled on the site plan drawing
with subdivision name, block number(s), lot number(s), or parcel account number and phrase “not
platted” for non-platted land.

I 6l£5 u!’%eny lines must be shown and the bearings and dimensions of the property must be shown on the
site plan.

13 (',_ll S Adsacent streets must be shown and identified.
14. &MDistance from centerline must be shown and identified.

IS.SQ%Show width of existing rights-of-way and any proposed future rights-of-way that may affect the
developmént.

16. QD_ Street widening setbacks and building setbacks must be shown and distance given.
17. (L Location, dimensions (including height), and elevations of all structures must be given.
18. Cyl_g%gié'nents must be shown and labeled with the following information:
SMM book and page or official records book and page.
b. Su'%ﬁi type of easements.

. %! Su'All Lasements on the subject property and easements on abutting property that could be
affected by the development must be shown and labeled.

& N
19. (&lcb LocatioLn‘ of utilities must be provided, including:
aSwne) S . -
a. QLQ Location of all existing utility structures on site and adjacent rights-of-way.

b. M underground electric lines, existing and proposed. Non-conductive pipe must have a
locator wire.

20. (). Water and sanitary sewer service information must be provided in accordance with the City of
Dunnellon utility requirements.

21. [D/ClTelephone lines. Non-conductive pipes must have a locator wire.
22 wla_Telephone cables. Non-conductive pipe must have a locator wire.

23. (L Grease trap locations, sizes, and construction materials and specifications must be given.

24. (). Fire hydrant location(s) and distance(s) from the fire hydrant(s) to the building(s) must be given.



25: (0 _ Information on parking areas and paved vehicle access area must be given, including:

a. () Parking calculations (in accordance with City of Dunnellon Code of Ordinances), indicating
number of parking spaces required and number to be provided for both regular and handicap parking

spaces.
b. £8(AParking area construction materials.

c. _C| Dimensions and angles of parking spaces.

d. _CA_ Location, dimensions, and area of landscape islands in parking areas.

e. N/A_ Fire lanes must be shown and dimensioned.

f. _C,j_ Striping and signage for traffic control must be shown.

g. ﬂ/A_ Off-street loading areas must be shown and dimensioned.

h. _C_,j_ Vehicle stacking for drive-through uses must be shown and dimensioned.

26. C| Driveway location(s), width(s), and radii shall be designed in accordance with good engineering
practices.

27. (} "c‘ﬁ-landicap access shall be in accordance with the State of Florida requirements.
28. ( A Location, size, and number of parking spaces and access areas shall be shown on the plan.
28, i ,I Sign locations for handicap parking spaces required.

30. { ]"@mcation, width, length, and slope for ramp(s) must be given. Handrails, if required, must be shown
and described.

31 ] ._.I A landscape plan is required in accordance with the City of Dunnellon Landscape Ordinance.
32. (D Open space calculations. State if the open space area includes drainage retention.
33. ¢, Dimensions and area of parking islands. Complete parking area interior landscaping calculations.

34.% A tree survey giving locations, sizes, and types of existing trees. Trees must be labeled as being
saved, removed, or moved.

35. § ‘ Tree protection diagram required.

36. | l Locations, sizes, and types of any trees to be planted.

37. L__l Buffers, if required, including depth. Specify types, numbers, size, and spacing of hedge plants and
trees to be plated in a buffer. If a wall or berm is required in the buffer, provide details. A buffer is required

when the site abuts a less intensive use (example: retail site being located adjacent to a residence).

38. % Show the location and size of any lakes, ponds, sireams, canals or other water or waterways
adjacént to the site. Identify prominent natural or topographic features.



29. ¢} ZS% existing sidewalks.

40. Cl  Dumpster pad may be required depending on type of business. Contact public service department
(489-2992). Indicate location of pad.
41. Suybmit construction (?‘?tail of any proposed enclosure, including required clearance.

(6n avewitectura plans
42. (o Indicate height of building and height of building overhangs if in the area of the dumpster box
access.

43. (4 Al construction must conform to the specifications shown on the dumpster pad detail provided by
Public Service Department.

44. Lilﬂ If residential pickup will be used, show location of pickup.
45. (| __ Signs will be permitted separately show location of sign on site plan.

46. 3 Drainage plans must be included as part of the application for site plan review and approval if
impervious areas are to be added.

47. A If site is located in the Historic District, site plan must be approved by the Historic Preservation
Board.

48. N Z’A Identify location of existing or proposed underground storage tanks.
NOTE: The above information is not all inclusive of the requirements of the City of Dunnelion

ordinances. Access to the City of Dunnellon Code of Ordinances may be obtained from the Municipal
Code Corporation Website.




: = RECEIVED
s e r v i.c e s MAR 15 2016

Date: March 14, 2016

RE:  Wendy's-Dunnellon

To: From:
Lonnie Smith Bob Ziegenfuss, PE
City of Dunnellon Z Development Services
20750 River Drive 708 E. Colonial Drive, Suite 100
Dunnellon, FL 34431 Orlando, FL 32803
Lonnie: pr‘*?‘“-‘ﬂ)
Enclosed please find the following: " M6
e 7 sets of plans ~—ﬂ)|“lm
e Checklist HE
e (City Application
e Check
e CD
Thank you
708 E. Colonial Drive, Suite 100 Phone: (407) 271-8910
Orlando, Florida 32803 Fax: (407) 442-0604

Providing commercial development services with an emphasis on client satisfaction
www.zdevelopmentservices.com
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Published in the Riverland News 3/31/2016
Published in the Ocala Star Banner 3/21/2016

NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION QUASI - JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING
SITE PLAN REVIEW #5PL2016-01 PARCELS#33639-006-01/33639-006-02

The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing for recommendation to the City Council regarding a site
plan review for the property located at 11191 N. Williams Street, being Parcel Number 33639-006-01 and 33639-006-02.
The public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City Hall, 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, FL 34431, on Tuesday, April 19, 2016,
at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard. If necessary, this public hearing may be continued to a time and date
certain by announcement at the scheduled hearing without any further written notice.

The application, filed under application number SPL2016-01/PZ1516-045, submitted by Rabert Ziegenfuss for Dunnellon
Real Estate, LLC, together with any back-up materials may be reviewed during normal business hours 8:00 a.m. to 4:00
p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For further information please contact the Community Development Department at (352) 465-
8500, ext. 1010.

APPEAL: NECESSITY OF RECORD. Notice is given that if any person desires to appeal any action taken by the Planning
Commission at the above hearing, a verbatim record of the proceedings may be necessary pursuant to Florida Statutes,
286.0105. The City assumes no responsibility for furnishing said record, however, the hearings will be audio recorded by
the City for public use.

If any accommodations are needed for persons with disabilities, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at 352-465-8500.

Posted on the City's Website 3/17/16
Published in the Riverland News 3/24/2016

You Are Here: Home > Government > Public Notices
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411-0324 RIV
PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION QUASI-JUDICIAL
PUBLIC HEARING
SITE PLAN REVIEW #5PL2016-01 PARCELS#33539-006-01/33639-006-02

The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing for recom-
mendation to the City Council regarding a site plan review for the property lo-
cated ¢t 11191 N. willams Street, being Parcel Number 33639-006-01 and
33639-006-02. The public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City Hall, 20750 River
Driva, Dunnslion, FL 34431, on Tuesday, April 19, 2016, af 5:30 p.m,, or Gs socn
thereaftar as ¢an be heard. If necessary, this public hearing may be continued
to a time and date certain by announcement at the scheduled hearing with-
out any further written notice.

The application. filed under application number SPL2016-01/P21516-045, submit-
ted by Robert Ziegenfuss for Dunnellon Real Estate. LLC, together with any
back-up materials may be reviewed during nermal business hours 3:00 a.m. to
4:00 p., at Dunnallon City Hall.  For further Informaotion please contact the
Comrmunity Development Department at (352) 465-8500, ext. 1010.

APPEAL: NECESSITY OF RECORD. Nofice is given thot if any person desires to
appeal any action taken by the Planning Commission at the cbove bearing, o
vetbatim record of the proceedings may be necesscry pursuant o Florida Stat-
utes, 2846.0105. The City assumas no responsipility for fumishing said record,
howaver, the hearings will be audio recorded by the City for public use.

If any accommaodations are needed for persens with disabiliies, please cone
toct the Office of the City Clerk ot 352-465-8500.

Published March 24, 2016,
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CITRUS PUBLISHING

ATTN: LEGAL DEPARTMENT
1624 N MEADOWCREST BLVD.
CRYSTAL RIVER, FL 34429
352-726-0902 PHONE
352-726-9603 FAX

Riverland News - INVOICE

Dear Customer: /07 79042 Olﬁ/ of Dunnellen

This is an invoice to process your payment for the enclosed ad. Please include Order
#12853423 on your check and send payment of $21.10 directly to the Legal Department
at the above address. If you have paid previously, then disregard this invoice or keep for
your records. REMEMBER: Payment is due in full within 20 days.

RE: 411-0324 RIV PUBLIC NOTICE ' NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION
QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING SITE PLAN REVIEW #SPL2016-01
PARCELS#33639-006-01/33639-006-02 The Planning Commission will hold a quasi--
judicial public hearing for recommendation to the City Coun

Ad publication dates:
March 24th, 2016,

Thank you for your business,

Theresa J. Savery and/or Mary Ann Naczi and/or Mishayla Coffas
Legal Representative



Proof of Publication

from the
RIVERLAND NEWS
Dunnellon, Marion Courity, Florida

PUBLISHED WEEKLY

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MARION

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared

Theresa J. Savery and/or Mary Ann Naczi and/or Mishayla
Coftas

Of the Riverland News, a newspaper published weekly at
Dunnellon, in Marion County, Florida, that the attached
copy of advertisement being a public notice in the matter of

the

411-0324 RIV__PUBLIC NOTICE NOTICE OF
PLANNING COMMISSION QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC
HEARING SITE PLAN REVIEW _ #SPL2016-01
PARCELS#33639-006-01/33639-006-02°  The  Planning
Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing for
recommendation to the City Coun

Court, was published in said newspaper in the issues of
March 24th, 2016,

Affiant further says that the Riverland News is a Newspaper
published at Dunnelion in said Marion County, Florida, and
that the said newspaper has heretofore been continuously
published in Marion County, Florida, each week and has
been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in
Dunnellon in said Marion County, Florida, for a period of
one year next preceding the first publication of the attached
copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he/she
has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for
the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in
the said newspaper.

IMbAL D il

The forgoing instruthent was acknowledged before me

This(g"‘./r day of ma/th/ 90[ U

By: Theresa J. Savery and/oLMary Ann Naczi and/or
Mishayla CofTas

who is personally known to me and who did take an oath.

"”}*"“‘%ﬂ G-+

[ . . T ——
411-0324 RIV ™

PUBLIC NOTICE™
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION QUASI-JUDICIAL
SITE PLAN PUBLIC HEARING
E REVIEW XSPL2014-01 PARCELS#33639-006-01/33639-008-02
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CITY OF DUNNELLON

20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
(352) 465-8500
FAX (352) 465-8505

April 15,2016

Application PZ1516-045/ SPL2016-01

Robert Ziegenfuss
708 E. Colonial Drive, Suite 100
Orlando, FL 32803

RE: Quasi-judicial public hearings before Planning Commission: applications for site plan
approval

Dear Applicant:

Please take notice that your application for site plan approval will be heard by the Planning
Commission of the City of Dunnellon on Monday, May 2, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or soon thereafter
as can be heard, in the Council Chambers at Dunnellon City Hall, 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon,
Florida 34431. Please be advised that your failure to appear at these public hearings will
likely result in your applications being denied.

Your application, together with any back-up materials including the staff reports, may be
reviewed during normal business hours 8:00 am. to 4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For
further information please contact the Community Development Department at (352) 465-8500,
ext. 1010.

Pursuant to the City’s Land Development Regulations, owners of property within 300 feet of
your property have been sent notice of the public hearings on your applications. Interested
parties may appear at the hearings and be heard with respect to your applications. Please be
advised that all oral and written communications concerning your applications prior to the public
hearings between any member of the Planning Commission and an applicant or interested person
is strongly discouraged under Florida law.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made by any board, agency, or council with respect
to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings. For
such purposes, any such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is



Page 2
Robert Ziegenfuss

made, which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (Florida
Statutes, 286.0105).

The City of Dunnellon City Code and Land Development Regulations are available for
inspection at City Hall, during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Persons with
disabilities needing assistance to participate in this hearing should contact Dawn Bowne, City
Clerk at (352) 465-8500 at least 48 hours prior to the date of the scheduled hearing.

Sincerely,

nnie Smith
4Ommunity Development



Teresa Malmberg

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 4:09 PM

To: '‘Bob Ziegenfuss'

Cc: Lonnie Smith

Subject: Owner Notice of Site Plan Hearing - Wendy's
Attachments: Owner Notice Letter Contd to 5-2-2016

In lieu of U.S. Mail, | am sending you the owner notice letter to provide to Dunnellon Real Estate, LLC. As discussed, the
Planning Commission will continue the original hearing scheduled for April 19 to May 2 due to neighboring property
owners noticing requirements.

Regamds,
Teresa A /%/?n/w/

Administrative Coordinator

City of Dunnellon

Community Development &

Public Sewices

Ofc: (352) 465-8500 x1010

Cell: (352) 445-0705

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to orfrom city officials regarding city business is public record and open to
inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, youremail communication may be subject to public disclosure.




CITY OF DUNNELLON

20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
(352) 465-8500
FAX (352) 465-8505

April 15,2016

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

Dear Property Owner:

The Planning Commission of Dunnellon will hold public hearings for recommendations to the
City Council regarding a site plan approval requested by the Applicant, Robert Ziegenfuss, Z
Development Services. Applicant’s property is located at 11191 N. Williams St (“Subject
Property”), being Parcel Numbers 33636-006-01/02, situated across from the Dunnellon Pizza
Hut on Williams St.

The Applicant seeks approval of a site plan pursuant to Land Development Regulations,
Appendix “A”, Zoning, Section 9.2(15) and (16) and Section 9.3-1 for a Restaurant with drive-
thru on the subject property.

The public hearings will be held at Dunnellon City Hall, 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, FL
34431, on Monday, May 2, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard. If
necessary, any of these public hearings may be continued to a time and date certain by
announcement at the scheduled hearing without any further written notice to you.

The application, filed under application number PZ1516-045/SP1L2016-01, submitted by Robert
Ziegenfuss, Z Development Services, together with any back-up materials may be reviewed
during normal business hours 8:00 am. to 4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For further
information please contact the Community Development Department at (352) 465-8500, ext.
1010.

Interested parties may appear at the meeting and be heard with respect to the proposed site plan.
Please be advised that all oral and written communications prior to the hearings concerning the
case between any member of the Planning Commission and the Applicant or the public are
strongly discouraged under Florida law.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made by any board, agency, or council with respect
to any matter considered at such meeting or hearings, will need a record of the proceedings. For

Page 2



Notice of Public Hearing — Site Plan

such purposes, any such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made, which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (Florida
Statutes, 286.0105).

The City of Dunnellon City Code and Land Development Regulations are available for
inspection at City Hall, during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Persons with
disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact Dawn
Bowne, City Clerk at (352) 465-8500 at least 48 hours prior to the date of the scheduled hearing.

Community Development



Teresa Malmberg

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 12:02 PM

To: ‘Legals - Sumter, Marion, Gadsden & Wakulla'
Subject: RE: your first proof

The ad is approved. Thank you Mary Ann.

Regamds,
Teresa A /%/?rf/eﬁ//

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services &

Community Development

City o f Dunnellon

Ofc: (352) 465-8500 x1010

Cell: (352) 445-0705

tmalmberg@dunnelon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to orfrom city officials regarding city business is public record and open to
inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, youremail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Legals - Sumter, Marion, Gadsden & Wakulla [mailto:mnaczi@chronicleonline.com]
Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 11:21 AM

To: Teresa Malmberg <tmalmberg@dunnellon.org>

Subject: your first proof

Hi Teresa, here is your first proof.... thanks, mary ann

CITRUS PUBLISHING, ATTN: LEGAL DEPARTMENT

1624 N. MEADOWCREST BLVD., CRYSTAL RIVER, FL 34429
Phone: 352-726-0902 Fax: 352-726-9603

Email: legalads@chronicleonline.com

Hi there, this is your first proof, if there are any errors please let me know TODAY

FAILURE TO RESPOND WITH CORRECTIONS
WILL BE DEEMED AS AN ACCEPTANCE OF LEGAL

When paying your invoice please include Customer Number, (the number before your name),
Order Number and Ad Number on your check and send the total in Cost: directly to the Legal
Department at the above address.

Payment is DUE IN FULL within 20 days of last insertion.

REMINDER: The original invoice will go out with the copy of the final proof, so if you have paid
before that comes, just disregard it.

Thank you so much for your business! Mary Ann Naczi, Legal Rep

Customer Number: 10079093 City of Dunnellon

1



Order Number; 12853423
Ad Number: 12969546
Cost: $ 21.10

Here is Your First Proof

411-0324 RIV
PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION QUASI-JUDICIAL
PUBLIC HEARING
SITE PLAN REVIEW #SPL2016-01 PARCEL S#33639-006-01/33639-006-02

The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial public hearing for recommendation to the City
Council regarding a site plan review for the property located at 11191 N. Williams Street, being Parcel
Number 33639-006-01 and 33639-006-02. The public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City Hall, 20750
River Drive, Dunnellon, FL 34431, on Tuesday, April 19, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as
can be heard. If necessary, this public hearing may be continued to a time and date certain by
announcement at the scheduled hearing without any further written notice.

The application, filed under application number SPL2016-01/PZ1516-045, submitted by Robert
Ziegenfuss for Dunnellon Real Estate, LLC, together with any back-up materials may be reviewed
during normal business hours 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City Hall. For further information
please contact the Community Development Department at (352) 465-8500, ext. 1010.

APPEAL: NECESSITY OF RECORD. Notice is given that if any person desires to appeal any action
taken by the Planning Commission at the above hearing, a verbatim record of the proceedings may be
necessary pursuant to Florida Statutes, 286.0105. The City assumes no responsibility for furnishing
said record, however, the hearings will be audio recorded by the City for public use.

If any accommodations are needed for persons with disabilities, please contact the Office of the City
Clerk at 352-465-8500.

Published March 24, 2016.

HAVE A BLESSED DAY!!

Mary Ann Naczi Legal/Classified Rep. 8AM-4PM mon-fri.

Phone: 352-726-0902 Fax: 352-726-9603 email: legalads@chronicleonline.com

Legals for Sumter/Marion/Gadsden & Wakulla counties

DEADLINE FOR LEGAL ADS - THURSDAYS AT 5PM

Citrus County legals: Call Mishayla, 352-726-0902 email: legals@chronicleonline.com

From: Teresa Malmberg [tmalmberg@dunnellon.org]

Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 10:14 AM

To: Legals - Sumter, Marion, Gadsden & Wakulla

Cc: Lonnie Smith; Eddie Esch

Subject: Legal Ad - for Publication on or BEFORE 3/31/2016



Good morning Mary Ann! Hope you are having a wonderful week. Legal ad attached. Please provide proof prior to and
proof of publication. Thank you.

Regamds,
Teresa A /%/m/a/y

Administrative Coordinator

Public Sewvices &

Community Development

City of Dunnelon

Ofc: (352) 465-8500 x1010

Celk: (352) 445-0705

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to orfrom city officials regarding city business is public record and open to
inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, youremail communication may be subject to public disclosure.




Teresa Malmberg

From: Andrew Hand <ahand@shepardfirm.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 9:52 AM

To: Teresa Malmberg

Cc: Lonnie Smith; Eddie Esch

Subject: RE: SPL2016-01 / PZ1516-045 Wendys_siteplan_Ad - Draft
Teresa,

| have reviewed and am of the opinion that the ad is legally sufficient.

Best Regards,

ANDREW J. HAND
ATTORNEY AT LAW

BOARDS CERTIFIED CITY, COLNTY
¥ LOSAL GVIAMEMT LW

u

66.24 8

- 4076221772
407.463.7025
407.622.1984

DISCLAIMER:

The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and contains confidential and/or privileged materials
protected under the Attorney-Client Privilege. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon,
this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and
delete the material from any computer.

From: Teresa Malmberg [mailto:tmalmberg@dunnellon.org]

Sent: Tuesday, March 15, 2016 5:20 PM

To: Andrew Hand <ahand@shepardfirm.com>

Cc: Lonnie Smith <Ismith@dunnellon.org>; Eddie Esch <EEsch@dunnellon.org>
Subject: SPL2016-01 / PZ1516-045 Wendys_siteplan_Ad - Draft

Andrew,

Please review and confirm legal sufficiency. Thank you.

Regamds,
Teresa A /%/?rr/wy

Administrative Coordinator

Public Serwvices &

Community Development

City of Dunnelon

Ofc: (352) 465-8500 x1010

Cell: (352) 445-0705

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to orfrom city officials regarding city business is public record and open to
inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, youremail communication may be subject to public disclosure.




Villie M. Smith, CFA, ASA GIS Web Mapping Application

Marion County Property Appraiser Last Updated: 01/15/2016
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DISCLAIMER: This is a work in progress. This application was compiled by the Marion County Property Appraiser's Office solely for the governmental purpose of

property assessmént. These are NOT surveys. Our goal is to provide the most accurate data available, however, no warranties, expressed or implied are provided
with this data, its use, or interpretation. All information subject to change without notice. Use at your own risk.




PARCEL

33639-006-02
33639-006-00
33607-001-02
33636-000-00
33639-003-00
33639-001-05
33615-001-01
33639-005-00
33639-006-0%
33607-001-05
33615-001-00

NAME

DUNNELLON REAL ESTATE LLC
COXCO1 LLC C/O CHELSEA MARINE
RAINBOW IV INVESTMENTS RLLP
CFL PIZZA LLC

BALDEO SHYAM

OCALA LUMBER COMPANY

SREE NSNK HOLDINGS LLC
MCDONALD'S CORP 009/0707
DUNNELLON-REALESTATELLE
DUNNELLON EQUITIES LLC

SREE-NSNKHOLBINGSHC IR0 NANNAPOHSAVE — HERNANDOFL34442-3318

ADD_1
6401 CONGRESS AVE # 100
5023 FIRST COAST HWY # B201
3535 E 161ST ST

1146 CELEBRATION BLVD
20765 WALNUT ST

PO BOX 1389

1429 N ANNAPOLIS AVE

8240 SW STATE RD 200

6401 CONGRESS-AVE # 100
5728 MAJOR BLVD STE 505

ADD_2
BOCA RATON FL 33487
AMELIA ISLAND FL 32034
CARAMEL IN 46033-8138
CELEBRATION FL 34747
DUNNELLON FL 34431-6750
OCALA FL 34478-1389
HERNANDO FL 34442-3318
OCALA FL 34481

BOCA RATON-FL 33487
ORLANDO FL 32819-7970

OWNER

DUPLICATE

DUPLICATE



CITY OF DUNNELLON

20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
(352) 465-8500
FAX (352) 465-8505

Mailed and Emailed
05-06-2016

NOTICE OF QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING FOR
TREE PERMIT REMOVAL #PZ1516-047

Dear Property Owner:

The Dunnellon City Council will hold a public hearing regarditrge removal permit application
#PZ1516-047by Matthew Remai on behalf of property ownerld680 Cherokee CircleDunnellon, FL
34431, Parcel NumbeB366-097-000 toemoveone23.8 D.B.H Heritage Cypredseelocated 105’ from

the water’'s edgeThe public hearing will be held at Dunnellon City Hall, 20R3@er Drive, Dunnellon,

FL 34431, onMonday, May 9, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard. If necessary,
this public hearing may be continued to a time and date certain by announaethergcheduled hearing
without any further written notice to you.

The application, filed under application numBet1516-047 by Matthew Remaitogether with any back-
up materials may be reviewed during norrbakiness hour8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. at Dunnellon City
Hall. For further information please contdite Community Development Departmen{352)465-8500,
ext. 1010.

Interested parties may appear at the meetings and be heard with respect to the smpastedceptian
Please be advised that altal and written communications prior to the hearogcerning the case
betweenany member of the City Counahd the applicant or the public are strongly discouraged under
Florida law.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made by any board, agency, or councipeihtoeany
matter considered at such meeting or heasiildneed a record of the proceedings. For such purposes,
any such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is roadegludes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (Florida Statutes, 286.0105).

The City of Dunnellon Land Development Regulaticar® available for inspection at City Hall, during
normalbusinesshours 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.mPersons with disabilities needing assistance to participate
in any of these proceedings should contact Dawn Bowne, City Clerk at (3585@64t least 48 hours
prior tothe date of the scheduled hearing.

Sincerely,

Dawn M. Bowne, M.M.C.
City Clerk



From: Dawn Bowne

To: “Trentontreeservice@outlook.com”

Cc: Lonnie Smith; Teresa Malmberq; Eddie Esch; Mandy Roberts; Lynn Wyland; Loretta Barton
Subject: Notice of Quasi Judicial Hearing - Tree Removal - Vogt Springs

Date: Friday, May 06, 2016 4:10:00 PM

Attachments: PZ1516_047_Property Owner Notice Mathew Remai_Voat Springs_20160506.pdf
Matthew:

Here is the notice that Teresa Malmberg discussed with you today. This provides you a 4 day
notice instead of 15, in which you agreed to via email, waiving your 15 day notice.

This will allow us to keep this on the schedule for Monday and not delay consideration of your
application before the City Council. Have a great weekend.

Dawn M. Bowne
Dawn M. Bowne, MM(

(ity Clerk

(ity of Dunneflon

20750 River Drive

Dunnellon, FL 34431
302-163-8300, ext. 1002
302-463-8305 fax
(howne @ dunnellon.org
www.dunnellon.ory

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city
officials regarding city business is public record and open to inspection including names,
addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, your email communication may be subject to public
disclosure.


mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DBOWNE
mailto:Trentontreeservice@outlook.com
mailto:lsmith@dunnellon.org
mailto:tmalmberg@dunnellon.org
mailto:EEsch@dunnellon.org
mailto:mroberts@dunnellon.org
mailto:lwyland@dunnellon.org
mailto:LBarton@dunnellon.org

Teresa Malmberg

PZ1516-047

Mtg 4/26/2016 @ 5:30 p.m.

From:
Sent:
To:

noreply@civicplus.com
Tuesday, March 22, 2016 1:37 PM
Teresa Malmberg

Subject:

Online Form Submittal: Tree Removal Permit Application

Tree Removal Permit Application

Step 1
City of Dunnellon

Applicant Information

Type Residential

Applicant First Name Matthew

Last Name Remai

Address 11680 Cherokee Circle
Address2 Field not completed.
City Dunnellon

State FL

Zip 34431

Phone Number 3522316402

Céell Phone Field not completed.
Other Phone Field not completed.
Email Trentontreeservice @ outlook.com
Property Address 11680 Cherokee Circle
Address2 Field not completed.
City Dunnellon

State FL

Zip 34431



Contact Person if other Field not completed.
than above

Phone Field not completed.
Tree Information

Species/Diameter 4.5 ft. Cyprus/ 20 in

above ground 75"DIA / 23.8"D.B.H. (HERITAGE)

Tree is 105" from water's edge

Replaced with (maintain  Live Oak
16 trees per acre)

Reason for Removal Tree is doing property damage. The roots are raising the o
concrete drive way and and is starting to lift parts of the Visual verification

foundation. Also, lifting the A/C pad. by L.Smith

Upload site plan sketch Field not completed.

here

If Applicable

Contractor Name Trenton Tree Service

Phone Number 352 231 6402

Address 1900 SW 50th ST Trenton FL 32619
License Number Field not completed.

City Registration Number  Field not completed.

Acknowledgments

Detailed Code Information available at the City’s website, www.dunnellon.org, City
Code, Chapter 74 Vegetation, Article Ill, Trees; and more specifically Sec. 74-63. -
Tree removal permit requirements and procedures. | understand that this
application for tree removal must be reviewed and approved prior to any removal
taking place. | also understand that replacement trees, if required to meet the City
of Dunnellon’s minimum 16 trees per acre requirement, must be completed within
60 days of issuance of the permit. NOTE: Failure to secure a permit may result in
fines in accordance with City Tree Code | certify that | have read and understand
the application and requirements for tree removal. If completed and signed by
Contractor, a signed, notarized letter of authorization from the owner is included.

| have read and Yes
understood the foregoing
statement

Signature Matthew Remai



Date 03222016

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council;
City of Dunnelion, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Dunnellon, Florida, (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibliity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by manhagement,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dunnelion, Florida, as of
September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Suppiementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, other post-employment benefits
plan, special risk pension trust, and schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability and
contributions information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Dunnellon, Florida's basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ State
Projects Compliance Supplement, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The City's major State projects are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 29,
2016, on our consideration of the City of Dunnellon, Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the City of Dunnellon, Florida's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Dunnellon’s financial performance provides an overview of
the City’s financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with
the City’s basic financial statements, which begin on page 14.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 14-15) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole
and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 16. For
governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations
in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most
significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which
the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Poslition and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 14. One of the most important questions asked
about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole financially better or worse as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the
City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’'s Net Position and changes in them. You can think of the City’s
Net Position-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the City’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's Net Position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other
non-financial factors, such as changes in the City’'s property tax base and the condition of the City’s
roads, to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two types of
activities:

* Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the
police, fire, general administration, streets and parks, property taxes, franchise fees, gas taxes,
fines, and state and county-shared revenues.

e Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City's water and sewer systems are reported here.



Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the City’'s major funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide
detailed information about the General Fund and Enterprise Funds-not the City as a whole. Some funds
are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council
establishes other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. The City’s two
types of funds-governmental and proprietary (business-type)-use different accounting approaches.

s Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances ieft at year-end
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method calied
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliations on pages
17 and 19.

e Proprietary funds - The City’s proprietary funds are comprised of enterprise funds. An enterprise
fund is used to account for activities when the City charges customers for the services it
provides. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise fund is
the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

The Clty as Trustee
Reporting the City's Fiduclary Responsibliities

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Special Risk Pension Trust Fund. The City's fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position Pension Trust Fund on page
25. The Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement is not presented as part of the Government-wide Financial
Statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City's programs,
Fiduciary (Trust and Agency) Funds represent frust responsibilities of the government. However, these
assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Governmental Business-Type Total
2014 2015 2014 2045 2014 2018

Revenues $2,534,002 $2,570,829 $ 7,230,126 $ 3,818,716 $ 9,764,218 $ 6,389,545
Expenses $2,411,226 $2,338,610 $ 5,646,220 $ 3,130,976 $ 8,057,448 $ 5,469,586

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additicnal explanation is given,
Expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the right.



The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative
financial burden of each of the functions on the City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much each
function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and grants. Some of the
individual line item revenues reported for each function are:

General Government Building permits, occupational licenses, and plumbing/electric
inspections
Public Safety Fire inspections, accident responses, police fines for traffic and parking

violations, Department of Justice grants

Physical Environment Grave opening and closing, burial iot purchases, sanitation activities-
trash removal

Transportation Gasoline Tax
Culture and Recreation City beach user fees

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Governmental Actlvities

Total Governmental revenues increased by 1.5% in the current year.

Business-type Activities

The Water and Sewer Utilities show a combined operating income of $300,858, combined non-
operating revenues of $786,014, and combined interest expense of $399,132 for a net increase of
$687,740 for fiscal year 2015. The net increase is primarily due to excess of operating revenues over
operating expenses.

Net Position

For the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, Net Position changed as follows:

Governmental Buslness-Type
Activities Actlvities Total
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Beginning net position $ 6,732,749 $ 3,337,238 $ 8693995 $13,537,022 $165426,744 516,874,260
Increase (decrease) in net position (3,395,511) 232,219 4,843,027 687,740 1,447,516 919,959

$ 3,337,238 $ 3,569,457 $ 13,537,022 $ 14,224,762 $ 16,874,260 $17,794,218

This reflects an increase of 7 percent for governmental activities and a 5 percent increase for business-
type activities over the prior year. The beginning net positions of both governmental and business-type
activities are shown as restated to include a prior period adjustment related to the implementation of
GASB 68. This Is discussed in detail in the notes to the financial statements.



THE CITY'S FUNDS

The foliowing schedule of Assets and Liabilities presents a summary of the City's Assets and Liabilities
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 and 2014,

Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activitles
2014 2015 2014 2015

Current Assets $ 2,550,289 $ 2,718,468 $ 3,715,974 $ 3,387,555
Capitai Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 4,467,831 4,338,030 24,345,255 24,709,238
Total Assets 7,008,120 7,056,498 28,061,229 28,096,793
Deferred outflows $ 14,076 $ 25133 $ 87,631 $ 74,741

Capital assets for governmental activities have decreased 3 percent over the prior year. Business-type
activities reflect an increase of 2 percent primarily due to the addition of the infrastructure from the
Rio Vista decommissiching project.

Liabilitles
Governmental Business-Type

Activities _ Activities _

2014 2015 2014 2015
Current Liabilities $ 360,703 $ 392,828 $ 113,161 $ 526,006
Payable from Restricted Assets - - 1,181,755 949,271
Unearned Revenue 23,199 23,353 - -
Long-term Liabilities 3,100,783 3,052,069 13,238,341 12,454,259
Total Liabilities 3,484,685 3,468,250 14,533,257 13,929,536
Deferred Inflows $ 96071 $ 43924 $ 37695 % 17,236

Liabilities for governmental activities substantially increased primarily due to the implementation of
GASB 68 and the resulting recognition of the City’s proportionate share of the Florida Retirement
System. Current liabilities for business-type activities have decreased substantially due to the
aforementioned.

The following schedule presents a summary of general, special revenue, capital project, debt service,
and enterprise fund revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 and 2014,

Business-Type
Governmental Water Utliity Sewer Utility Communicatlons Utility
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Program Revenues
Charges for Services % 204,372 § 217426 § 1151072 $ 1,358448 % 1,622,673 $ 1,674,254 $ 188,216 $
Operating Grants and
Contributions 9,630 9,551
Capital Grants and
Contributions = 2,460 57,660 780,692
General Revenues
Taxes 1,912,272 1,918,029
Licenses and permits 82,456 159,979
Fines and forfeitures 64,575 19,593
State-shared 209,536 184,051 - - -
Investment income 2,548 8,842 1831 1,791 1,235 1,067 130
Miscellaneous 48.703 52,358 .
Gain on debt refinance - - 4,207,409
Transfers in 11 {30) 205,000

$ 2,534,092 $ 2570826 $ 11539i4 $ 1362699 $ 1681438 $ 2456013 § 4600755 §

10



Governmental revenue decreased 1 percent over prior year. Charges for Services decreased 24
percent. Taxes increased 0.3 percent. State-shared Revenue decreased 12 percent. Business-type
revenues increased 35 percent primarily due to the Small Community Wastewater Construction Grant
coming to a close.

Expenses
Governmental Water Rility Sewer Utility Communication Utility
2014 20i5 20i4 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

$ 2,447,032 $ 2,338,610 $ 1,377,556 $ 879,213 $ 2,465,921 $ 1,852,631 $ 1,802,743 $ -
Expenses decreased in the governmental fund and combined utility funds by 37 percent for the year
ended September 30, 2015 primarily due to the close of the communications fund.
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Total revenue for the year shows 7 percent ocver budget.
On the expense-side, total General Government is under budget 4 percent or $109,404. This is
primarily associated with conservative operations lowering operating expenses.
CAPITAL ASSETS
As of September 30, 2015, the City had $29 million invested in capital assets including police and fire

equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, and water and sewer lines. (See table below) This
represents a net increase of $244,182 or 1 percent, over the prior year.

Governmental Business-Type
Aclivities Activities Total
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

Capital Assets $7,387,082 $7,186,801 $ 31,656,000 % 32,014,180 $ 39,043,082 $ 39,200,981
Construction in Progress - - 188,747 550,613 188,747 650,613
Less Accumulated

Depreciation (2,929,261) (2,848,771) (7,499,492) (7,855,555) (10,428,743) {10,704,326)
Total $4,457,831 $4,338,030 $ 24,345,255 $ 24,709,238 $28,803,086  $ 29,047,268

This year's major addition was due to the addition of the sewer infrastructure in the Rio Vista
decommissioning project.

11



CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the Finance
Office at 20750 River Drive, Dunnellon, Florida.

Edde Esch

Eddie Esch
City Manager

9an Smith

Jan Smith
Finance Officer
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Other assets
Restricted cash
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Penslon obligations
Bond issue costs, net of amortization

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Settlement payable
Payable from restricted assets:
Utility deposits
Accrued interest
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabiilties:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total llabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets,
Net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Infrastructure
Roads and streets
Public safety
Cemetery perpetual care
Tree fund
Emergency reserve
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

See notes to financial statements.

September 30, 2015

Business-
Governmental Type
Actlvities Actlvities Total

$ 2,578,911 $ 334,774 2,213,685
64,542 225,460 290,002
74,915 115,519 190,434

100 - 100

. 2,711,802 2,711,802

3,210,071 829,982 4,040,053
3,976,730 31,734,811 35,711,541
(2,848,771) (7,855,555) (10,704,326)
7,056,498 28,096,793 35,153,291
25,133 9,860 34,993

- 64,881 64,881

25,133 74,741 99,874
114,220 100,657 214 877

- 425,349 425,349

116,584 116,584

- 153,524 153,524

23,353 - 23,353
278,608 701,449 980,057
3,052,069 12,431,973 15,484,042
3,468,250 13,929,536 17,397,786
43,924 17,236 61,160
4,338,030 11,813,111 16,151,141

- 812,196 812,196

156,748 1,649,863 1,806,611
56,247 - 56,247
1,617,074 - 1,617,074
65,585 - 65,585
53,403 - 53,403
1,048 - 1,048
11,211 - 11,211
(2,729,889) (50,408) (2,780,297)
$ 3,569,457 $ 14,224,762 $ 17,794,219
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2015

Tax
Increment
Financing Total
General District Governmental
Fund Fund ’ Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2369370 % 209,541 $ 2,578,911
Accounts receivable 64,542 - 64,542
Due from other governments 74,915 - 74,915
Other assets 100 - 100
Total assets $ 2508927 $ 209541 $ 2,718,468
Liabllities and Fund Balances
Liabllities
Accounts payable $ 50,527 % 225 $ 50,752
Accrued liabilities 61,124 2,344 63,468
Unearned revenue 23,353 - 23,353
Total liabllitles 135,004 2,569 137,573
Fund balances
Restricted for:
Public safety 53,472 - 53,472
Roads and streets, operations 659,070 - 659,070
Roads and streets, capital projects 958,004 - 958,004
Downtown redevelopment - 206,972 206,972
Commiitted for:
Public safety 12,113 - 12,113
Infrastructure 56,247 - 56,247
Cemetery perpetual care 53,403 - 53,403
Tree fund 1,048 - 1,048
Emergency reserve 11,241 - 11,211
Assigned for:
Capital improvements, public safety - building 156,748 - 156,748
Unassigned 412 607 - 412,607
Total fund balances 2,373,923 206,972 2,580,895
Total liabllitles and fund balances $ 2508927 $ 209,541 $ 2,718,468

See notes to financial statements. i6



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,580,895

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the Statement
of Net Posltion are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported In the funds. The
cost of the assets is $7,186,801 and the accumulated
depreciation is $2,848,771. 4,338,030

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of fund
equity that will be reported as an outflow of resources in a future
period and therefore are not reported in governmental funds. 25,133

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period, and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.
Interest on long-term debt Is not accrued in governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.
All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the
statement of het position. Long-term liahilities at year end

consist of;
Revenue bonds payabie (3,018,750)
OPEB payable (34,960)
Compensated absences (122,439)
Net pension liability (154,528) {3,330,677)

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of fund
equity that will be recognized as an inflow of resources in a future
period and therefore are not reported in governmental funds. (43,924)

Total net position of governmental actlvities $ 3,569,457

See notes to financial statements. 17



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fisca! Year Ended September 30, 2015

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for service
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Human services
Cuiture and recreation
Capital outlay
Transportation
Debt service
Principal payments
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Tax
Increment
Financing Total
General District Governmental

Fund Fund Funds
1,754,523 $ 142,116 $ 1,896,639
159,979 - 159,979
215,992 215,992
217,426 217,426
19,593 - 19,593
61,005 195 61,200
2,428,518 142,311 2,570,829
448,824 - 448 824
1,201,909 1,201,909
158,962 158,962
318,028 - 318,028
- 59,172 59,172
13,774 - 13,774
35,145 - 35,145
15,075 - 15,075
175,000 - 175,000
2,366,717 59,172 2,425,889
61,801 83,139 144,940
61,801 83,139 144,940
2,312,122 123,833 2,435,955
2,373,923 $ 206,972 $ 2,580,895




CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TOQ THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Net change In fund balances - tota! governmental funds $ 144,940

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital purchases as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Net expenditures for capital assets 15,075
(Current year depreciation) (134,876) (119,801)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources, therefore, are not reported

as expenditures in governmental funds. Also, recognition of certain
obligations related to prior and subsequent periods are not recognized
in the statement of activities.

Compensated absences 23,053

Revenue bonds 175,000

OPEB liability (3,849)

Net pension liability 12,876

Net decrease in deferred outlfows/inflows (63,204) 143,876

Recognition of certain obligations related to prior and future periods
are not recognized in governmental funds.

Net increase in deferred outflows 11,057
Net decrease in deferred inflows 52,147 63,204
Change in net position of governmental activitles $ 232219

See notes to the financial statements. 19



Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments

CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

Business-Type Activitles

Accounts receivable (net of allowance

for uncollectible accounts)
Due from ather governments
Total current assets

Restricted assets
Cash:
Utility deposit cash
Water capital improvement funds
Sewer capital improvement funds
Emergency resetve
Revenue bond proceeds
Debt service, state revolving loan
Debt service, revenue bonds
Total restricted assets

Utllity plant in service
Cost of capital assets
{accumulated depreciation)
Construction In progress
Total utility plant in service -
cost less depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Bond issuance costs, net of amortization

Pension obligations

See notes to financlal statements.

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Totai

$ 211215 $ 123559 % 334,774
91,356 134,104 225,460
2,460 113,059 115,519
305,031 370,722 675,753
116,584 - 116,584
18,653 - 18,653

- 108,582 108,682

3,622 2,302 5,924
1,067,277 582,586 1,649,863
- 33,893 33,893

362,038 416,265 778,303
1,568,174 1,143,628 2,711,802
6,015,105 25,999,075 32,014,180
(2,036,964) (5,818,591) (7,855,555)
550,613 - 550,613
4,528,754 20,180,484 24,709,238
6,401,959 21,694,834 28,096,793
31,436 33,445 64,881
4,930 4,930 9,860
36,366 38,375 74,741
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015
Business-Type Activities
Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
Liabillties and Net Posltion
Current llabliities, unrestricted
Payable from current assets:
Accounts payable 16,444 37,656 54,100
Accrued liabilities 21,510 25,047 46,557
Settlement payable, due within one year 157,379 267,970 425,349
Compensated absences, due
within one year 49,521 58,134 107,655
Net pension liability, due within one year 4671 4,671 9,342
Total current liabilitles, unrestricted 249,525 393,478 808,792
Current llabllities, restricted
Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued revenue bond and SRF loan
interest payable 69,755 83,769 153,524
Customer deposits 116,584 - 116,584
SRF loan payable within one year - 13,887 13,887
Revenue bonds payable within one year 270,860 299,705 570,565
Total current Liabllities, restricted 457,199 397,361 854,560
Total current liabllitles 706,724 790,839 1,663,352
Long-term liabilitles
Revenue bonds, noncurrent portion 5,815,490 6,496,185 12,311,675
OPEB payable 5,520 5,520 11,040
Compensated absences, noncurrent portion 27,396 30,572 57,968
Net pension liability 25,645 25,645 51,290
Total long-term llabllitles 5,874,051 6,557,922 12,431,973
Total liabilities 6,580,775 7,348,761 13,929,536
Deferred inflow of resources 8,618 8,618 17,236
Net Position
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt (1,557,596) 13,370,707 11,813,111
Restricted for debt service 362,038 450,158 812,196
Restricted for bond financed capital projects 1,067,277 582,586 1,649,863
Unrestricted (deficit) (22,787) (27,621) (50,408)
Total net position (deficit) (151,068) 14,375,830 14,224,762

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Business-Type Actlvities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services 1,345,673 $ 1,673,257 3,018,930
Miscellaneous revenue 12,775 997 13,772
Total operating revenues 1,358,448 1,674,254 3,032,702
Operating expenses
Personnel services 386,768 452 264 839,032
Operating expenses 189,638 432,004 621,642
Professional services 29,203 50,304 _ 79,507
Depreciation and amortization 273,604 918,059 1,191,663
Total operating expenses 879,213 1,852,631 2,731,844
Operating income (loss) 479,235 (178,377) 300,858
Nonoperating revenues
(expenses)
Interest income 1791 1,067 2,858
Interest expense (184,537) (214,595) {399,132)
Grant revenue 2,460 780,696 783,156
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (180,286) 567,168 386,882
Net change In net position 298,949 388,791 687,740
Net position, beginning of year {413,488) 14,023,568 13,610,080
Prior period adjustment (36,529) (36,529) (73,058)
Net position, end of year (151,068) $ 14,375,830 $ 14,224,762

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash recelved from customers,
including cash deposits $ 1,316,722 $ 1,617,243 $ 2,933,965
Cash paid to suppliers (241,167) (487,603) (728,770)
Cash paid to employees (374,294) {433,920} (808,214)
Net cash provided by operating activitles 701,261 695,720 1,396,981
Cash flows from capltal and related
financing activitles
Acquisition and construction of
capitai assets (497,249) (1,041,171) (1,538,420)
Grant revenue - 730,740 730,740
Principal payments (264,137) (305,217) (569,354)
Interest paid (187,514) (218,171} (405,685)
Net cash used In capltal and related
financing activitles {948,900) (833,819) (1,782,719)
Cash flows from Investing actlvities
Interest Income 1,791 1,067 2,858
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (245,848) (137,032) (382,880)
Cash and cash equivalents,
October 1, 2014 2,025,237 1,404,219 3,429,456
Cash and cash equivalents,
September 30, 2015 $ 1,779,389 § 1,267,187 $ 3,046,576
Shown in the financial statements as:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 211,215 § 123559 $ 334,774
Restricted cash 1,568,174 1,143 628 2,711,802
Totals $ 1779380 § 1,267,487 § 3046576

See notes to financlal statements. 23



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Reconciliation of operating gaine (loss) to net
cash provided by (used) In operating activitles
Operating gain (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets decrease (Increase) and
liabilities increase (decrease):
Accounts receivable, net
Deffered outflows
Accounts payable
Settlement payable
Customer deposits
Accrued wages and OPEB payable
Compensated absences
Deferred inflows
Net pension lability
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to financial statements.

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
$ 479235 $ (178377) $ 300,858
273,604 918,059 1,191,663
(13,444) (7,812) {21,256)
(2,169) (2,169) (4,338)
(22,326) {5,295) (27,621)
(27,621) (47,030) (74,651)
{661) - (661)
16,669 19,812 36,481
(1,670) (1,112) (2,782)
(10,230) (10,230) (20,460)
9,874 9,874 19,748
222,026 874,097 1,096,123
$ 701,261 $ 695,720 % 1,396,981
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2015

Pension
Trust Funds

Assets

Cash and investments $ 3,068,108
Total assets $ 3,068,108
Net positlon

Reserved for:

Employees' penslion benefits $ 3,068,108

Total net position $ 3,068,108

See notes to financial statements. 25



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Pension
Trust Funds
Addltlons
Contributions
Employer $ 111, 462
Forfeltures applied (58,627)
Net employer contributions 52,835
State 38,556
Employee 51,888
Total contributions 143,279
Net investment income 423
Tota! additions 143,702
Deductions
Pension benefit payments and refunds {92,604)
General and administrative (16,069)
Total deductions (108,673)
Increase In net position 35,029

Net position reserved for employees'
Pension benefits:

Net posltion, beginning of year 3,033,079

Net positlon, end of year $ 3,068,108

See notes to financlal statements. 26



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Dunnellon (the City) is a Florida municipality governed by an
elected five-member City Council. The City provides services to its citizens including water,
sanitation and sewer, police and fire protection, parks and recreation, streets, and other general
governmental activities. The City was established by Laws of Florida 71-616.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the applicable funds administered by the City Council of the City and its component
unit in accordance with governmental accounting standards. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government's operations. Financial
accountability is present if the City Council appoints a voting majority of a component unit’s
governing body and has the ability to impose its will on that organization or if there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the City.

Blended component unit. The financial activity of the City of Dunnellon, Florida Community
Redevelopment Agency (the Agency), is included in the financial reporting entity as a blended
component unit. The Agency was established by Ordinances #00-3 and #2011-07 as provided in
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, for the fostering of economic development in the downtown area of
the City. The City Council serves as the Agency’s governing board. The Agency is fiscally dependent
on the City, and the City Council approves the Agency's annual budget as a component of the City’s
budget. The Agency is presented as a governmental fund type.

1. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support . The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect expenses are
allocated automatically and certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for
individual functions and activities. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
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statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than
program revenues.

2. Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s
general activities. The City operates the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund

The Speclal Revenue Fund is used to account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

Proprietary Funds
Enterprise funds - to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing

goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges. Enterprise funds of the City are as follows:

¢ Sewer Fund
¢ Water Fund

28



Fiduciary Funds

Pension trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. The types
of fiduciary funds used by the City are the general employees’ pension trust fund and the special
risk employees’ pension trust fund.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City conforms all significant accounting policies to generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to government units. The following is a summary of the more significant principles and
practices used in the preparation of these financial statements.

Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2014-15 the City adopted the following new accounting standard in order to conform
to the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement:

GASB Statement No. 88, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014, replaces the requirements
of GASB Statements Nos. 27 and 50 as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension
plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The standard
requires government employers to recognize as a liability, for the first time, their long-term
obligation for pension benefits. The employer liability is to be measured as the difference between
the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension plan for past
periods of service less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. Obligations for
employers with cost sharing plans will be based on their proporticnate share of contributions to the
pension plan. The standard also requires more immediate recognition of annual service cost,
interest and changes in benefits for pension expense; specifies requirements for discount rates,
attribution methods; and changes disclosure requirements. The impact on the financial
statements was a decrease in the beginning net position as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported $ 3,623,435 $ 13,610,080

Restatement of net pension liability (186,197) (73,058)

Net position, beginning of year, as restated $ 3,337,238 $ 13,537,022
Proprietary Funds

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidelines of GASB. Based on the
accounting and reporting standards set forth in GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, the City has opted to apply only the accounting and reporting pronouncements issued
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) on or before November 30, 1989, for
business-type activities and enterprise funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
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Operating expenses for enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed for
their intended purposes, however, this decision is frequently made on a case-by-case basis based
upon facts and circumstances. Revenues of the enterprise funds are recognized on the basis of
services rendered. Billing cycles of the enterprise funds that overlap September 30, are prorated
based upon meter reading dates.

Budgeting

The annual operating budget serves as legal authorization for expenditures and the proposed
means of financing them. The 2015 annual operating budget was prepared for all funds, except
the pension trust funds, which are not budgeted annually by the City Council.

The City's procedures in preparing and adopting the annual budget are as follows:;

¢ The City Manager is responsible for preparing a proposed operating budget for the
upcoming year prior tc September 30 that includes estimated revenues, proposed
expenditures, and other financing sources and uses.

¢ Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments and suggestions. The budget is
enacted through passage of a resolution.

* The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund, but may not
revise total fund expenditures without the approval of the City Council. The budgetary data
presented is in agreement with the originally adopted budget.

» Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
Total budgeted fund expenditures within the governmental fund type may not be exceeded
legally. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Encumbrance accounting is not used
by the City.

Investments

The City accounts for investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External investment Pools. Under this provision,
investments are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets. Investment income, including
changes in the fair value of investments, is reported as revenue in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in fund balances.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, the investments within the pension trust funds are stated at
market value.
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Recelvables

Governmental and Business-type activities receivables are comprised generally of amounts due
from customers. Customer accounts receivable are recorded at their net realizable value reduced
by an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $19,801 for 2015. Other receivables in the General
Fund consist primarily of franchise fees and receivables from miscellaneous services,

Payables

Accounts Payable in the Governmental Funds and Business-type Funds consists primarily of
amounts due to vendors.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recoghized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City only has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is the deferred charge on pensions in
the government-wide statement of net position. Deferred outflows on pensions are recorded when
actual earnings on pension plan investments exceed projected earnings and are amortized to
pension expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed five-year period. Deferred
outflows on pensions also include the difference between expected and actual experience with
regard to economic or demographic factors; changes of assumptions about future econcmic,
demographic, or other input factors; or changes in the City's proportionate share of net pension
liability. These are amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of all employees
that are provided with pensions through each pension plan. Contributions to pension plans made
subsequent to the measurement date are alsoc deferred and reduce net pension liability in the
subsequent year. The second is the deferred charge of bond issue costs. Bond issue costs include
the professional fees and registration fees associated with the issuance of bonds. These amounts
will be amortized over the life of the bonds.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of rescurces (revenue) until that time. The City has only one
type of item, which is related to pensions. Deferred inflows on pension plan investments exceed
actual earnings and are amortized to pension expense using a systematic and rational method over
a closed five-year period. Deferred inflows on pensions also include the difference between
expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors; changes of
assumptions about future economic, demographic, or other input factors; or changes in the City’s
proportionate share of net pension liability. These are amortized over the average expected
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through each pension
plan.

Due from Other Governments

Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of Florida or Marion County
for shared revenues or costs. Due from Other Governments is considered fully collectible.

31



Capltal Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements., Capital assets are recorded at
historical cost, except for $249,192 of assets in the proprietary fund and $89,858 of assets in the
general fund, acquired prior to 1975, which are valued at estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. Capital asset
purchases are recorded as capital outlay expenditures in the fund level governmental funds in the
year of acquisition. Property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Plant, buildings, and improvements 10 - 40 years
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment B -7 years
Infrastructure 30 years

Construction interest cost is generally not capitalized; approximately $397 in such interest was
expensed during the fiscal year.

The City has opted out of retroactively recording and depreciating major infrastructure assets.
Expenditures for ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.
Transfers

Transfers are recoghized in the accounting period in which the interfund receivable or payable
arise.

Compensated Absences

in governmental fund financial statements, the amount of compensated absences associated with
employee vacations that are recorded as expenditures represent the amounts paid during the year,
plus the amount accrued at year-end that would normally be liquidated with available spendable
resources. Only the amount of compensated absence liability that would normally be liquidated
with current expendable available resources in the next fiscal year is recorded in the fund financial
statements of governmental funds. In the government-wide financial statements, all governmental
fund compensated absences are recorded and split between the current and noncurrent portions.

In proprietary funds, the amount of compensated absences associated with employee vacations
that are recorded as expenses represent the amounts paid during the year and accrued at year-
end. The entire liability for compensated absences of these funds is reflected in the respective
financial statements split between the current and noncurrent portions.

Prior to August 1999, no accrual was made for unpaid vacation since City policy did not allow for
carryover of vacation time unless by special permission from City Council. For all employees, {(who
are not within a union bargaining unit) they may accumulate and carry over a maximum of twenty
work days. An accrual has been made for unpaid sick pay under the City’s policy to pay an
employee in good standing 50% of all unused sick pay, upon retirement or voluntary resignation.
There is a $5,000 maximum of unused sick pay. Employees with 25 years or more of service in
good standing will receive 100% of accrued sick pay upon retirement.
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Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and
school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and
County Tax Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure
a consistent property valuation method statewide. Florida Statutes permit municipalities to levy
property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills. The millage rate assessed by the City for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2015 was 7.5000 mills.

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Council prior to October 1 of each year, and the
Marion County Property Appraiser incorporates the City's millage into the total tax levy, which
includes the County and the County School Board tax requirements.

All property is assessed according to its fair market value January 1 of each year. Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for
review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of Florida Statutes.

All taxes are assessed on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter, as the assessment roll is
certified and delivered to the County Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1
foliowing the year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate
of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of January, and
1% in the month of February. Taxes paid in March are without discount.

On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real
property. After sale, tax certificates bear interest of 0-18% per year or at any lower rate bid by the
buyer. Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the
certificate holder after a period of two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of 0-18% per year until the tax is satisfied
either by seizure and sale of the property or by the five-year statute of limitations.

The City does not accrue its portion of the County held tax sale certificates or personal property tax
warrants because such amounts are nhot measurable and available as of the balance sheet date.

Franchise Fees

Continuing franchise fees are reported as revenues as the fees are earned and become receivable
from the franchise.

Capital Grants and Contributlons

Accounts receivable from other governments include amounts due from grantors. Program and
capital grants for capital assets are recorded as receivables and revenues at the time reimbursable
costs are incurred. Revenues received in advance of costs being incurred are deferred.

Fund Balances

A. Governmental Funds

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances of the governmentai funds are classified as follows:
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Non-spendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional
provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of
the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision making for the City. Commitments
may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the City Council.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but
that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City’s general procedure, only the City
Council may assign amodunts for specific purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances are composed of the following;

Restricted for:
Downtown redevelopment $ 206,972
Roads and streets, operating 659,070
Roads and streets, capital projects 958,004
Public safety 53,472
Committed for:
Public safety 12,113
Infrastructure 56,247
Cemetery perpetual care 53,403
Tree fund 1,048
Emergency reserve 11,211
Assignhed for:
Capital improvements, public safety, buildings 156,748
Unassigned 412 607

580.895

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes to which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the City considered restricted funds to have been spent first. When an
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available,
the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Commission has provided otherwise in its
commitment or assignment actions.

B. Proprietary Funds

Restrictions of equity show amounts that are not appropriated for expenditure or are legally
restricted for specific uses.

As of September 30, 2015, net position balances are composed of the following:

Amount
Invested in capital assets, net $ 11813111
Restricted, debt service 812,196
Restricted, capital projects 1,649,863
Unrestricted (deficit) (50,408)
S 14224762
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents.

NOTE 2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, the City is required to utilize a new financial
statement disclosure standard issued by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures, which required additional disclosures concerning investment and deposit risk as
stated below.

Pooled Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool, which carries substantially all cash and
investments of the City, and is used by all funds except the pension trust funds. Each fund’s portion
of the pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statements as “Cash and Investments”. The
cash and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those other funds of the

City.
Cash Deposits

Chapter 280 of the Fiorida Statutes requires, in general, that all public deposits (including those of
the City) be made in qualified public depositories within the state of Florida. Per statute, no
qualified public depository may hold public deposits exceeding 10% of that qualified public
depository’s total deposits received in this state, or 10% of the total public deposits held by ail
qualified public depositories of the same type. Additionally, no qualified public depository may
accept or retain any public deposit in excess of deposit insurance limits unless it pledges eligible
collateral having a market value equal to 50% of the public deposits held by the depository.

In the event of a default or insolvency of a qualified public depository, the loss to public depositors
shall be satisfied, first through any applicable deposit insurance and then through the sale of
securities pledged by the defaulting depository. If the loss to public depositors is not covered by
such insurance or the proceeds of such sale, the State Treasurer shall provide coverage of the
remaining loss by assessment against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as
the depository in default.

All of the City’s cash deposits (excluding investments) at September 30, 2015, were held by
qualified public depositories within the state of Florida and are considered to be fully insured. Total
deposits as of September 30, 2015, are $5,479,548.

Restricted Cash

Customer deposits, renewal and replacement, and unspent use benefit fees are shown as
restricted cash due to legal limitations imposed on them.

Investments
Investments are recorded in all funds of the City at fair value. The deposits and investments of the

pension trust funds are held separately from those of other City funds and are recorded at fair
value.
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The City’s investment policy allows the City to invest surplus money in instruments provided by
Florida Statutes. Among them are U.S. Treasury bills, bonds, notes and their derivatives, federal
agency securities, local government surplus trust fund, domestic time deposits, bankers
acceptance notes, repurchase agreements, federal securities trusts, collateralized mortgage
obligations, assets-backed securities, taxabie and tax-exempt securities, and mortgage securities
mutual funds.

As of September 30, 2015, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Fair Vaiue
State Board of Administration (SBA)
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund $ 145939

Pension Funds
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Firefighters and

Police Officers (FMIVT) 2,057,414
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - General Employees (CitiStreet) 1,010,694
Total 3,214,047
Cash deposits 5,479,548

Total cash and investments $ 8.693.5956

As shown on the accompanying financial statements as:

Cash and investments - entity-wide $ 5,625,487

Cash and investments - fiduciary funds 3,068,108

Total cash and investments $ 8.693,595
State Board of Administration

Investments placed with the State Board of Administration for participation in the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund investment pool created by Sections 218.405 and 218.417,
Florida Statutes, is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The local
investments operate under the guidelines established by Section 218.415, Fiorida Statutes. The
Council’s investments in the Pool, which the State Board of Administration indicates is a Securities
and Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like external investment pool, as of September 30, 2015, are
similar to money market funds in which shares are owned in the fund rather than the underlying
investments. These investments are reported at fair value, which is amortized cost.

Credit Risk

Credit risk exists when there is a possibility the issuer or other counterparty to an investment may
be unable to fulfill its obligations. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure of credit quality
ratings for investments in debt securities as well as investments in external investment pools,
money market funds, and other pooled investments of fixed-income securities.

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Police and Firefighters Pension Fund

Fixed Income Funds: Fitch Rating
FMIVT Broad Market High Quality Bond Fund AA/V4
FMIVT Core Plus Fixed Income Fund Not Rated

Equity Funds:

FMIvT High Quality Growth Portfolio Not Rated
FMIvT Large Cap Diversified Value Portfolio Not Rated
FMIVT Russell 1000 index Portfolio Not Rated
FMIVT Diversified Small Cap Equity Portfolio Not Rated
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Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund — General Employees’ Pension Fund

Fixed income Funds:
Meillon Stable Value M
Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index
Vanguard Prime Money Market Instal
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index
Vanguard Long-term Treasury
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City's pension funds are held in the name of an

outside party.
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely
affect an investment’s fair value. GASB Statement No. 40 requires that interest rate risk be stated

using a prescribed method.

Fitch Rating
Not Rated

Not Rated
Not Rated
Not Rated
Not Rated
Not Rated

Florida Munlclpal Penslon Trust Fund - Police and Firefighters Penslon Fund

Fixed Income Funds:

FMIVT Broad Market High Quality Bond Portfolio

FMIVT Core Plus Fixed Income Fund

Average Maturity

5.98 years
5.41 years

Florida Municlpal Pension Trust Fund - General Employees’ Penslon Fund

Fixed Income Funds:
Mellon Stable Value M
Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index
Vanguard Prime Money Market Instal
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index
Vanguard Long-term Treasury
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities

Lifestyle Funds:

Vanguard Wellington Adm
Vanguard Target Retirement Income
Vanguard Target Retirement 2010
Vanguard Target Retirement 2015
Vanguard Target Retirement 2020
Vanguard Target Retirement 2025
Vanguard Target Retirement 2025
Vanguard Target Retirement 2030
Vanguard Target Retirement 2035
Vanguard Target Retirement 2040
Vanguard Target Retirement 2045
Vanguard Target Retirement 2050
Vanguard Target Retirement 2055

State Board of Administration Investments
Surpius Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool
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2.51 years average
7.30 years average
Data is not available
7.70 years average
24.30 years average
8.60 years average

9.20 years average
6.71 years average
6.82 years average
7.16 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average
7.76 years average

29 day average



Concentratlon Risk

If 5% or more of the total assets of the portfolio are invested with issuer, that information per
issuer and the percentage of total assets are to be disclosed excluding investments issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds or pools. Since the City’s
pension funds are invested in pooled funds, the City is excluded from this disclosure.

NOTE 3. RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 2015 were as follows:

Due from
Other Governmental
Accounts Units Total

Governmental activities:
General $ 64,542 $ 74,915 139,457

Business-type activities;
Water 21,356 2,460 93,816
Sewer 134,104 113,059 247,163
$ 290,002 $ 190,434 480,436

Payables
Accrued
Accounts Liabilities Total

Governmental activities:

General $ 50,627 $ 61,124 111,651
Tax Increment

Financing District 225 2,344 2,569

Business-type activities;
Water 16,444 21,510 37,954
Sewer 37,656 25,047 62,703
$ 104,852 $ 110,025 214,877
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning Reclassifications Ending
Balance Increases Disposals /Adjustments Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements $ 3,210,071 $ - - % - % 3,210,071
Construction in progress - - - - =
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,210,071 - - 3,210,071
Capltal assets being depreclated:
Bulldings 1,087,664 - (5,412) - 1,082,252
Improvements other than bulldings 840,362 - - - 840,362
Furniture, equipment and machinery 2,248 985 __ 15,075 (209,944) - 2/054,116
Total capital assets being depreciated 4,177,011 __ 15,075 (215,366) - 3,976,730
Less accumulated depreclation:
Buildings (477,219) (30,358) 5,412 - (502,165)
Improvements other than buildings (354,994) {34,801) . - (389,795)
Furniture, equipment and machinery (2,097 038) {69,717) 209,944 - (1,956,811}
Total accumulated depreclation (2,929,251) 134,876 215,366 = (2,848,771}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,247,760 (119,801) - - 1,127,959
S 4457831

Governmental activities capltal assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

S 54338030

Land and improvements $ 274835 % - - % 4534 % 279,369

Construction in progress 188,747 464,613 - (102,747) 550,613
Total capital assets not being depreciated 463,582 464,613 - (98,213) 829,982
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 787,432 - (22,815) - 764,617

Improvements cther than building 29,702,148 1,072,408 (629,104) 98,214 30,243,666

MachInery and equipment 891,585 - (165,057) - 726,528
Total capltal assets being depreciated 31,381,165 1,072,408 (816,976) 98,214 31,734,811
Less accumulated depreciation:

Bulldings and improvements {1,063,304) {23,282} 22,815 - (1,063,771)

Improvements other than building {5,513,279) (1,116,110} 629,104 1,398 (5,998,887)

Equipment (922,909) (35,045) 165,057 - (792,897)
Total accumulated depreciation (7,499,492) 174,437) 816, 976 1,398 (7.865,5655)
Total capital assets being depreclated, net __ 23,881 673 102,029 —_ 99612 23879256

Buslness-type activities capital assets, net 5 24,345 255 $§ 362584 _§ o § 1,399 § 24709238

Depreciation expense:

Governmental activities
General government and administration
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activitles
Water
Sewer
Total depreciation expense - business-type activitles

39

$ 41,283

62,226

107

8,075
23185
—$__134876

$ 264,398

910,038

$ 1174436



NOTE 7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Actlvities
Revenue bonds payable $ 3,193,750 & = $ (175000} $ 3,018,750 $ 175,000
Compensated absences 145,490 98,124 (121,175) 122,439 79,585
OPEB payable 31,111 3,849 - 34,960
Net penslon liability 154,528 - 154,528 24 023

Business-type Activities

State revolving loan $ 27531 $ - 8 {13,644) $ 13,887 § 13,887
Revenue bonds payable 13,437,950 - (555,710) 12,882,240 570,565
Compensated absences 168,405 65,229 {568,011) 166,623 107,655
OPEB payable 8,888 2,152 - 11,040

Net pension liability 60,632 60632 9342 342

Total business-type actlvitles §13,642,774 $ 118013 _$ {627,3651 §13,133,422 § 701,449
A. Governmental Activities

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds

On November 18, 2010, the City closed on bond issues from Regions Bank in the amounts of
$3,300,000 and $2,200,000 with terms ranging to 15 years. These proceeds were utilized to
construct the City’s telecommunications utility. Although certain general revenues were pledged on
this debt, the City anticipated full repayment to be made from future telecommunications
revenues. [n November 2012, the City refinanced the bond in the amount of $2,200,000,
extending repayment from five years to 10 years, with an interest rate of 3.20%, requiring a down
payment of $275,000. The City was also issued a line of credit from Regions Bank in the amount
of $1,850,000 with the terms due in one year. These proceeds were utilized to cover operating
expenses of the City’s telecommunications utility. At September 30, 2013 the balance on this
loan was $1,650,000. In November 2012, the City signed an extension which required a down
payment of $200,000 with the remaining balance plus interest due on November 1, 2013. On
March 31, 2014, the City signed a settlement agreement which restructured the debt to a total
amount due of $3,468,750. A new payment schedule provided for a payment of $200,000 due ho
later than April 1, 2014, followed by another payment of $75,000 due no later than September 1,
2014. Subsequent payments in the amount of $43,750 shall be paid quarterly beginning on
December 31, 2014 and continue through and including December 31, 2032. The effective
interest rate is 0.0%. The terms of this arrangement are contingent upon timely payments.
Maturity on this bond agreement for the years ending September 30, is as follows:

September 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 175,000 3 - $ 175,000
2017 175,000 - 175,000
2018 175,000 - 175,000
2019 175,000 - 175,000
2020 175,000 - 175,000
2021-2025 875,000 - 875,000
2026 - 2030 875,000 - 875,000
2031-2033 393,750 - 393,750
$ 3,03:5,:50 s = s 3,Um,550

This debt service is budgeted and paid from General Fund revenues.
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B. Business-type Activitles
Water/Sewer Improvement Revenue Bonds

On December 27, 2010, the City closed on a bond issue from Regions Bank in the total amount of
$7,952,033. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to retire the USDA financing totaling
$559,000 with the balance used in the ongoing sewer improvement project. In February 2013,
the City entered into an extension agreement with Regions Bank in order to facilitate the remaining
draw down of the revenue bonds. This balance is to be used in ongoing sewer and water
improvement projects. Maturity of this bond agreement for the years ending September 30, are as
follows:

Revenue Bond 2010A
September 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 22,286 $ 15,328 $ 37,614
2017 23,041 14,559 37,600
2018 23,822 13,765 37,587
2019 24,630 12,944 37,574
2020 25,465 12,095 37,560
2021 - 2025 140,872 486,695 187,567
2026 203,170 3,444 206,614

$ 463.286 $ 118,830 $ 582116

Revenue Bond 2013
September 30 Principal Interest Totai

2016 $ 278,279 $ 221700 $ 499979
2017 287,713 212,106 499,819
2018 297,466 202,188 499,654
2019 307,550 191,933 499,483
2020 317,977 181,330 499,307
2021 -2025 1,759,070 734,593 2,493,663
2026 3,430,899 58,144 3,489,043

$ 6.678,954 $ 1801994 $ 8.480.948

On December 30, 2011, the City closed on.a bond issue from Branch Bank & Trust Company in the
amount of $6,500,000. The proceeds of the bond were used in the ongoing sewer improvement
project, as well as improvements to the water system. The bond is payable in 10 payments to
include 2.64% interest beginning June 1, 2012 and semiannually thereafter on each June 1 and
December 1 of each year up to and including maturity on December 1, 2016.

Branch Bank & Trust Bond

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 270,000 $ 147,972 $ 447,972
2017 5,470,000 72,204 5,542,204

$ 5.740,000 $§ 220176 $ 5.960,176
State Revolving Loan (SRL)

In 2005, the City obtained a construction loan from the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection for $3,056,000. The proceeds were used for Phase 1 of a large sewer project to
upgrade the system. In 2007, the loan was amended to include the construction cost of Phase 2 in
the amount of $2,292,642. The loan is collateralized by net revenues of the sewer utility fund. A
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February 2007, the City began making semiannual loan repayments with interest of 1.91% for
Phase 1 and 1.77% for Phase 2 over the next twenty years. An amendment in July of 2011
reduced the amount of the loan by $1,546,868. The City continued making semiannual loan
repayments. The balance of this loan is $13,887 as of September 30, 2015. The City expects to
pay this remaining amount due subsequently to the fiscal year end.

Annual Requirements to Retire Long-term Debt

Maturities of long-term debt for the years ending September 30, are as follows:

Business-type Activities Total
Principal Total Debt
Year Bonds SRL Interest Service

2016 $ 570565 $ 13887 $ 385245 $ 969,697
2017 5,780,754 . 298,870 6,079,624
2018 321,289 . 215,952 537,241
2019 332,180 - 204,876 537,056
2020 343,441 193,424 536,865
2021 -2025 1,899,942 . 781,287 2,681,229
2026 3,634,069 61,597 3,695,666

Total §12.882,240 S 13887 13,887 S 2141251 2,141,251 —$15.037.378
NOTE 8. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

At year end, the Water Fund had a deficit net position of $151,068. This deficit was the result of
prior year operating income insufficient to cover operating expenses related to annual depreciation
on assets. In addition, the City lost a lawsuit against them which resulted in a significant loss being
recorded in the Water and Sewer Fund. This deficit was significantly reduced by current year
operating income resulting in a change in net position of $298,949. The remaining deficit is
expected to be fully recovered by the subsequent fiscal year operations.

NOTE 9. OPERATING LEASES
The City has various operating leases for office equipment under non-cancellable operating lease

agreements. Lease expenditures for the year ended September 30, 2015, amounted to $7,732.
The future minimum lease payments for leases are as follows:

Year ending
September 30, Amount
2016 5 8272
2017 5,151
2018 5,151
2019 3,123

$ 210697

NOTE 10. DEFINED BENEFIT/DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS

Florida Retirement System

General Information - All fuli-time employees of the City hired prior to January 1, 1996, participate
in the Florida Retirement System (FRS). As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes,
the FRS provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the
Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension
Plan (“Pension Plan”) and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy {“HIS Plan"}). Under Section
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121.4501, Florida Statutes, the FRS also provides a defined contribution plan (“Investment Plan”)
alternative to the FRS Pension Plan, which is administered by the State Board of Administraticn
(“SBA™). As a general rule, membership in the FRS is compulsory for all employees working in a
regularly established position for a state agency, county government, City school board, state
university, community college, or a participating city or special City within the State of Florida. The
FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-ofliving adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida
Statutes, and Chapter 608, Florida Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only
by an act of the Florida State Legislature.

The State of Florida annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the FRS. The latest available report may
be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement, Department of Management
Services, P.0. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-2000, or from the Web site:

www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce operations/retirement/publications.

A. Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (“DROPT) for eligible employees.

Benefits Provided - Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average
final compensation, and service credit. For Pension Plan members enroiled before July 1, 2011,
Regular class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30
years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life,
equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for
each year of credited service. Vested members with less than 30 years of service may retire before
age 62 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Special Risk Administrative Support class
members who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service or 25 years of
service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6%
of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of
credited service. Special Risk class members (sworn law enforcement officers, firefighters, and
correctional officers) who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service, or with
25 years of service regardiess of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life,
equal to 3.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for
each year of credited service. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age
62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to
a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation
based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service. Elected Officers’ class
members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of
service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0%
(3.33% for judges and justices) of their final average compensation based on the five highest years
of salary for each year of credited service.

For Plan members enrolied on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight
years of credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33
years of service regardless of age for Regular, Senior Management Service, and Elected Officers’
class members, and to age 60 or 30 years of service regardless of age for Special Risk and Special
Risk Administrative Support class members. Aiso, the final average compensation for all these
members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.
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As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the
Pension Plan before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the
annual cost-of- living adjustment is three percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled
before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually
calculated cost-ofiving adjustment. The annual cost-of-iving adjustment is a proportion of
three percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total
service credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or
after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program aliows eligible members to defer receipt of
monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a
period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthiy benefits are held in
the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants

Contributions - Effective July 1, 2014, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP
participants, are required to contribute three percent of their salary to the FRS. In addition to
member contributions, governmental employers are required to make contributions to the FRS
based on state-wide contribution rates established by the Florida Legislature. These rates are
updated as of July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates by job class for the periods from
October 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and from July 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015,
respectively, were as follows: Regular—7.37% and 7.26%; Special Risk Administrative Support—
42.07% and 32.95%; Special Risk—19.82% and 22.04%; Senior Management Service—21.14% and
21.43%; Elected Officers'—43.24% and 42.27%; and DROP participants—12.28% and 12.88%.
These employer contribution rates include 1.26% and 1.66% HIS Pian subsidy for the periods
October 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and from July 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015,
respectively.

The City’s contributions, including employee contributions, to the Pension Plan totaled $24,148 for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

Penslon Liabllities, Pension Expense, and Deferred OQutfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - At September 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $124,862
for its proportionate share of the Pension Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial vaiuation as of July 1, 2015. The City’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2014-15 fiscal year contributions
relative to the 2013-14 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30,
2015, the City's proportionate share was 0.000966695 percent, which was an increase
{decrease) of (0.000024461) percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,
2014.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $10,020. In

addition the City reported deferred outflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 13,182 $ 2,961
Changes in assumptions 8,287 -

Net diffference between projected and actual
earnings on Pension Plan investments - 29,775

Changes in proportion and differences
between City Pension Plan contributions and

proportionate share of contributions - 26,192
City Pension Plan contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 5,389
Total $ 26,858 $ 58,928

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $5,389 resulting from City
contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30 Amount
2016 (32,723)
2017 (32,723)
2018 (32,723)
2019 48,768
2020 9,471
Thereafter 2,472
$ (37,459)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015 actuariai valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumption, applied to all period included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.60%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.65%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projecticn Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013 completed in 2014.

The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was not based on historical
returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation
policy’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates
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of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic  (Geometric) Standard

Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation

Cash 1.00% 3.11% 3.10% 1.65%

Intermediate - Term Bonds 18.00% 4.18% 4.05% 5.15%

High Yield Bonds 3.00% 5.79% 6.25% 10.95%

Broad U.S. Equities 26.50% 8.51% 6.95% 18.90%

Developed Foreign Entities 21.20% 8.66% 6.85% 20.40%

Emerging Market Equities 5.30% 11.58% 7.60% 31.15%

Private Equity 6.00% 11.80% 8.11% 30.00%

Hedge Funds/Absolute Return 7.00% 5.81% 5.35% 10.00%

Real Estate (Property) 12.00% 7.11% 6.35% 13.00%
Total 100.00%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.60% 2.00%

(1) As outlined in the Pension Plan's investment policy

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65%. The
Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for
calculation the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Sensltlvity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes In the Discount
Rate - The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage peoint lower
{6.65%) or one percentage point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discounty Rate 1% Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 323545 % 124,862 $ (40,475)

Pension Plan Fiduclary Net Position - Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered
Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Payables to the Penslon Plan - At September 30, 2015, the City had $2,385 payable for
outstanding contributions to the Pension Plan required for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2015.

B. HIS Plan

Plan Description - The HIS Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan

established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida
legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered
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retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida
Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

Benefits Provided - For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, eligible retirees and
beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed
at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of
$150 per month. To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State-administered
retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

Contributions - The RIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers
as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation
for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the HIS contribution for
the period October 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and from July 1, 2015 through September 30,
2015 was 1.26% and 1.66%, respectively. The City contributed 100% of its statutorily required
contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a
separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed
and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or
available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or
cancelled.

The City’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $3,608 for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2015.

Penslon Liabilities, Penslon Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Infiows of
Resources Related to Penslons - At September 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $90,298
for its proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015. The City's proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2014-15 fiscal year contributions
relative to the 2013-14 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30,
2015, the City's proportionate share was 0.000885410 percent, which was an increase
(decrease) of (0.000019486) percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,
2014.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $1,497. In
addition the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual $ - $

experience
Changes in assumptions 7,104 -

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on HIS Plan investments 9

Changes in proportion and differences
between City HIS Plan contributions and

proportionate share of contributions - 2,232
City HIS Plan contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 1,022
Total $ 8,135 $ 2,232
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The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS Plan, totaling $1,022 resulting from City
contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognhized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS
Plan will be recognized in pension expense as foliows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30 Amount

2016 $ 844
2017 844
2018 844
2019 837
2020 834
Thereafter 677

$ 4,881

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.60 %
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Municipal bond rate 4.29 %

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, vaiuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.29%. In
general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate
equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the
projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis,
the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal
to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

Sensltivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes In the Discount
Rate - The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 4.29%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(3.29%) or one percentage point higher (5.29%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discounty Rate 1% Increase
(3.29%) {4.29%) {5.29%)
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 102,890 $ 90,298 $ 79,798

Fiduclary Net Position - Detailed information regarding the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Payables to the Penslon Plan - At September 30, 2015, the City had $356 payable for outstanding
contributions to the HIS Plan required for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015,

C. Investment Plan

The SBA administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the FRS Investment Plan. The
investment Plan Is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements and in the State of Florida
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate
in the Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined benefit plan. City employees participating
in DROP are not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan. Employer and employee
contributions, including amounts contributed to individual member's accounts, are defined by
law, but the ultimate benefit depends in part on the performance of investment funds. Benefit
terms, including contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established and may
be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with the same employer
and employee contribution rates that are based cn salary and membership class (Regular Class,
Elected City Officers, etc.), as the Pension Plan. Contributions are directed to individual
member accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account balances
among various approved investment choices. Costs of administering the Investment Plan,
including the FRS Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of
0.04 percent of payroll and by forfeited benefits of plan members, Allocations to the
investment member's accounts during the 2014-15 fiscal year, as established by Section
121.72, Florida Statutes, are based on a percentage of gross compensation, by class, as follows:
Regular class 6.30%, Special Risk Administrative Support class 7.95%, Special Risk class 14.00%,
Senlor Management Setrvice class 7.67% and City Elected Officers class 11.34%.

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and
are vested after one year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an
accumulated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under the Pension Plan is
transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have the vears of service required for
Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be
vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested employer contributions are placed
in a suspense account for up to five years. If the employee returns to FRS-covered employment
within the five-year pericd, the employee will regain control over their account. If the employee
does not return within the five-year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated account
balance. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the information for the amount of
forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if
any, would be immaterial to the City.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-
sum distribution, leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these
options. Disability coverage is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to
the Pension Plan when approved for disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime
monthly benefits under the Pension Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that
account balance for retirement income.

The City did not have any participants in the Investment Plan for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2015.
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Florida State Retirement System Opt-Out

In December 1995, the City Council approved opting out of the Fiorida State Retirement System
effective with all new employees hired after January 1, 1996. City employees covered under the
System at December 31, 1995, will continue to participate in the System and the City will continue
to make contributions on their behalf.

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund (Defined Contribution Plan)

In January 1996, the City adopted the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund Pension Plan
administered by the Florida League of Cities. The plan is available to all general employees hired
beginning January 1, 1996, and who have remained employed for at least six months. The City will
contribute 6% of the eligible employee’s salary. Additionally, the City will contribute 1% for each
1% the employee contributes for a maximum of 12% of employer contribution.

Employee contributions are voluntary and have certain contribution limits. Vesting in the plan is
determined by the number of years of service. Employees vest at 25% at two years of service
increasing incrementally by 25% each year thereafter. Vesting of 100% occurs at five years.

At September 30, 2015, there were 33 active members in the plan.

Fiorida Municlpal Pension Trust Fund (Defined Benefit Plan)
Plan Description

In January 1996, the City adopted the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund Pension Plan
administered by the Florida League of Cities. The plan is available to all full-time police officers
and fulltime firefighters hired by the City beginning January 1, 1996. Eligibility becomes
immediate after hire date.

The firefighters’ and police officers’ pension plan covers all fulltime officers and firefighters.
Members of the firefighters’ and police officers’ pension plan do not vest in their pension benefits
until they have completed ten years of service. Firefighters and police officers that retire at the
earlier age of fifty-five and have completed ten years of service, or age fifty-two and twenty-five
years of credited service are entitled to a monthly retirement benefit, payable for life or a minimum
of ten years, in an amount equal to 2% of their final monthly compensation for years served and
purchased before October 1, 2011, and 2.5% of their final monthly compensation for years served
and purchased after September 30, 2011. The plan also provides for death and disability benefits.
Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings.

Contributions

Firefighters and police officers were required to contribute 1% of their annuai salary to the plan for
the year ended September 30, 2015. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to fund the plan, using the actuarial determined amounts. Insurance excise taxes
remitted by the state to the pension plan are available to offset City contributions up to the 1997
base amount. The increment above the base amount is to provide extra benefits to the firefighters
and police officers.

As of the most recent actuarial reports dated October 1, 2013, the plan had the following number
of participants:
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Active 13
Retired, disabled, vested terminations and beneficiaries 7
Total number of participants 20

Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Llablllty

Net Pension Liability as of October 1, 2013

Total pension liability $ 934,534
Less fiduciary net position (1,632,551)
Net pension liability (excess) $ {698.017)

The City’s annual pension costs and net pension obligation to the Firefighters’ and Police Officers’
Defined Benefit Plan based on the most recent actuarial information (valuation date October 1,
2013) was as follows:

Service cost $ 106,900
Other recognized changes in net penion liability:

Expected interest growth (47,703)
Investment gain/loss -
Demeographic gain/loss

Employee contributions (6,149)
Benefit payments and refunds -
Administrative expense 10,761

Changes in benefit terms
Assumption changes .
Pension expense 63.8

Other Pension Plan Information

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the October 1,
2013. The actuarial assumptions inciude the following:

Interest (or Discount) Rate - 8.07% per annum (3.59% per annum is attributable to long-
term inflation)

Salary Increases - Plan compensation is assumed to increase at the rate of 4% per annum,
unless actual plan compensation is known for a prior plan year.

Cost-ofiving increases ~ None assumed

Mortality basis ~ Sex-distinct rates set forth in the RP-2000 Mortality Table for annuitants,
projected to 2015 by Scale AA, as published in the Internal Revenue Service for purpose of
Internal Revenue Code section 430; future generational improvements in mortality have
not been reflected.

Retirement - Retirement is assumed to occur at the most valuable retirement age.
Decrements - None assumed

Non-investment expense - 1.75% of future payroll

Future contributions ~ Contributions from the employer and employees are assumed to be
made as legal required; employer contributions are assumed equal to $82,861 for the
fiscal year.

Changes - The actuarial assumptions did not change from the prior measurement date
since GASB 67 is first effective for this measurement period.
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Determination of the Long-Term Expected Rate of Reture on Plan Assets

Investment Category Target Allocation  Expected Long-term Real Retury
Core bonds 16.00% 2.29% per annun
Multi-sector 24.00% 2.78% per annun
U.S. large cap equity 39.00% 5.68% per annun
U.S. small cap equity 11.00% 6.24% per annun
Non-U.S. equity 10.00% 5.44% per annun
rtal or weighted arithmetic average 100.00% 4.48% per annun

Comparision of Net Pension Liability Using Alternate Discount Rates

Discount Rate 8.07% Discount Discount Rate

Minus 1.00% Rate Plus 1.00%
Total pension liability 1,060,610 934,534 813,812
Less fiduciary net position (1,632,551) (1,632,551) (1,632,551)

Net pension liability $ (571941 _§ (698.017) _$ (818,739)

Schedule of Changes In Pension Pian Net Position as of September 30, 2015

Pension Trust Funds

General Special
Employees Risk_ Total

Assets

Cash and Investments $ 1010694 $ 2,019,830 $ 3030524
Total assets 1,010,694 2,019,830 3,030,524
Total liabilitles - - -
Net assets

Reserved for:

Employees' pension benefits 1.010,694 2019830 3,030,524
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1010694 $_ 2019830 $ 3030524
Additions

Contributlons:

Employer $ 84,767 $ 21,302 $ 106,069

(Forfeitures applied) (68,627 - (68,627)

Net empioyer contributions 26,140 21,302 47442

State - 38,556 38,556

Employee 52,514 4,766 57,280

Total contrlbutlons 78,654 64,624 143278
Investment income 354 69 423
Less: Investment management fees - - -
Net investment income* 354 69 _ 423
Total additions 79,008 64,693 143,701
Deductions
Pension benefit payment and refunds 68,705 23,899 92,604
General and administrative 5788 10,280 16,068
Total deductions 74,493 34,179 - 108,672
Increase (decrease) in fiduciary net assets 4,515 30,5 35,029
Net assets reserved for employees
pension benefit
Beginning of year 1006179 2,026,900 3,033,079
End of year T§ 1010694 _§ 2057414 _% _3.068.108

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Pursuant to Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, The City is required to permit participation in the
single-employer health insurance program (the “Plan”} by retirees and their eligible dependents at
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a cost to the retiree that Is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for active
employees.

Based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approval of Statement Nos. 43 and
45 which set forth the guidelines and a future implementation timetable for reporting and
disclosure of Other Post-Employment Benefits {OPEB), the City had an actuary calculate future
funding requirements using an appropriate actuarial cost method. The valuation was performed
as of October 1, 2011 and covers the subsidies for medical and life insurance benefits. The City
has elected to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively. The City's
annual OPEB cost for the Plan is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The projected unit credit cost method was used to determine all liabilities, with
the liability for each active employee assumed to accrue over the working lifetime based on
elapsed time from the date of hire until retirement.

Plan Descriptlon. The City provides optional post-employment benefits to all eligible individuals
including lifetime medical, prescription, dental, and certain life insurance coverage. Eligible
individuals include all regular employees of the City of Dunnellon who retire from active service
under one of the pension plans sponsored by the City. Under certain conditions, eligible individuals
also include spouses and dependent children. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial
report.

Funding Policy. The City Council is authorized to establish benefit levels and approve the actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of contributions levels. The City Council establishes the
contributions requirements of plan members and the City. These contributions are neither
mandated nor guaranteed. The retiree contributes the premium cost each month. Spouses and
other dependents are also eligible for coverage, although the retiree pays the premium cost.

Retirees must pay a monthly premium as determined by the insurance carrier. The premium
varies depending on whether the retiree elects single, single plus spouse, single plus dependents,
or family coverage.

Currently, the City's subsidy toc OPEB benefits is unfunded. There are no separate Trust Funds or
equivalent arrangements into which the City makes contributions to advance-fund the OPEB
obligations, as it does for its retiree pension plans. The City's cost of the OPEB benefits, funded on
a pay-as-you-go basis, was $6,000 for the year ended September 30, 2015.

The ultimate implicit and explicit subsidies which are provided over time are financed directly by
general assets of the City, which are invested in short-term fixed income instruments according to
its current investment pelicy. The City selected an interest discount rate of 4.00% per annum,
which is the long-range expected return on such short-term fixed income instruments, to calculate
the present values and costs of the OPEB. This is consistent with GASB Statement No. 45
guidelines.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and methods used to estimate the OPEB liability are as follows:

Valuation date........cimminaneeeemi s, July 1, 2014

Actuarial cost method.........cocceeecimrisessnreresinrene, Project unit credit
Amartization method..........criees e Level-dollar credit
Amartization period...........cenircecrrnr s, 10 year, open

Assumes rate of return on investments................ 4.00% per annum (inciudes

infiation at 2.75% per annum)
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Assumed healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare cost trend rate(s):
Insurance Premiums

Select rates 7.50% for 1014/15 graded
to 5.17% for 2018/19
Ultimate rate 5.00% per annum

Actuarial Methods. The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan
as understood by the empioyer and Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and Plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective
and the methods and assumptions used include techniques that are desighed to reduce the effects
of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize the actuarial liabiiities (or funding excess) over a period not {0 exceed 10 years. The City’s
annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year was $6,000.

The City's annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2015 is as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC)........ccccveermrreniecsseneres $ 12,000
Interest on the net OPEB obligation..........occocciicniscnniiens 2,000
Adjustment to the ARC...........ccorr s crscneeens (5,000)
9,000
Employer contribUtions.......ccccvmeermivssssssssssssmmesssnssssmsssese (3,000)

Interest on employer contributions........ccccceeeeviviieersienens -
6,000

Net OPEB obligation - begInning of year......c.aurcercn. 40,000
Net OPEB obligation - end of year..........cccurvvmninrcnrinnnnn $ 46.000

The City's percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 is as follows:

A. Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended % Annual %
September 30 ARC Contributed OPEB Cost Contributed
2013 $ 12,000 0% $ 9,000 0%
2014 12,000 0% 9,000 0%
2015 12,000 0% 9,000 0%
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The 2014 contribution represented 25% of the annual required contribution. The actuarial
valuation for the Plan was done as of July 1, 2014. Thereafter, actuarial valuations will be done bi-
annually.

As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was unfunded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $41,000, and the actuarial value of assets was $-0-, resulting in
an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $41,000.

The following Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial vaiue of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

B. Schedule of Funding Progress

UAAL
Actuarial Unfunded As % of
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded Covered
Valuation Value of Liability (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll
Date Assets {AAL) (2)-{1) (1) - (2) Payroli (3) -(4)
October 1, 2010 $ - $98,000 $98,000 0.0% $1,445,000 6.8%
November 1, 2012 - 38,000 38,000 0.0% 2,107,000 1.8%
July 1, 2014 - 41,000 41,000 0.0% 2,219,000 1.8%

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grants and Loans

Under the terms of federal and state grants and loans, periodic audits are required and certain
costs may be questioned as not allowable as expenditures under the terms of the grants which
could lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City management believes disallowances, if
any, will not be material.

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City Is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.
Insurance against losses are provided through the Florida League of Cities, Inc., and Preferred
Government Ihsurance Trust for the following types of risk:

Waorkers” Compensation and employer’s liability
General and automobile liability

Real and personal property damage

Public officials’ liability

Accidental death and dismemberment
Dishonesty bond

The City’s coverage for workers' compensation is under a retrospectively rated policy. Premiums
are accrued based on the ultimate cost to-date of the City's experience for this type of risk.

The City is covered for health insurance under a group policy with a commercial carrier with
premiums reassessed annually.

NOTE 13. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Segment information for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds are available in the basic financial
statements and notes to the financial statements.
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NOTE 14. LITIGATION

The City is defendant in various pending cor threatened litigation. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City Attorney, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

NOTE 15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION

The implementation of GASB 68 requires employers participating in cost-sharing defined benefit
pension pians to report their proportionate share of the total net pension liability and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources for the plan on their govemment-wide financial statements. This
resulted in the following adjustments:

Deferred outflows $ 19,599
Deferred inflows (133,766)
Net pension liability (145,085)
Net position 259,252

$ z
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem $ 904335 $ 904,335 $ 906,265 $ 1,930
Local option gas tax 287,769 287,769 301,519 13,750
Franchise tax:

Electricity 165,000 165,000 193,097 28,097
Communication service tax 111,388 111,388 97,230 (14,158)
Utility tax :

Electricity 214,200 214,200 227,924 13,724

Propane 24,432 24,432 28,488 4,056

Total taxes 1,707,124 1,707,124 1,754,523 47,399
Licenses and permits
Professional and occupational 23,139 23,139 24,156 1047
Building permits 44,628 44 628 114,188 69,560
Other licenses and permits 7,980 7,980 21,635 13,655
Total licenses and permits 75,747 75,747 159,979 - 84,232
Intergovernmental revenue
State, federal and local grants 1,620 1620 9,551 7,931
State shared revenues:

State revenue sharing 59,478 59,478 60,106 628

Mobile home licenses 7,954 7,954 7,478 (476)

Alcoholic beverage licenses 4,123 4,123 5,415 1,292

Local government one-half

cent sales tax 107,472 107,472 111,052 3,580
Motor fuel tax 19,678 19,678 19,585 (93)
Motor fuel tax rebate 2,000 2,000 2,805 805

Total intergovernmental revenue 202,325 202,325 215,992 13,667
Charges for services
Copying and records search 300 300 1,002 702
Garbage and solid waste 164,137 164,137 175,747 11,610
Cemetery fees 1,477 1,177 4,033 2,856
City beach user fees 750 750 716 (34)
Other miscellaneous charges 17,044 17,044 35,928 18,884
Total charges for services 183,408 183,408 217,426 34,018
Fines and forfeitures
Court fines 75,000 75,000 10,530 (64,470)
Other flnes 7,200 7,200 9,063 1,863
Total fines and forfeitures $ 82200 $ 82,200 $ 19593 $ (62,607)
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

(Continued)
Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
Miscellaneous revenue
Investment earnings $ 2200 $ 2200 $ 8647 $ 6,447
Cemetery lots 6,000 6,000 13,683 7,683
Other miscellaneous 20,000 20,000 38,675 18,675
Total misceilaneous revenue 28,200 28,200 61,005 32,805
Total revenues $ 2,279,004 $ 2279,004 $ 2428518 $ 149514
Expenditures
General government
Legislative:
Personnel services $ 41,209 % 41,209 % 16,623 $ 24,586
Operating expenses 12,626 12,626 22,622 (9,996)
Capital outlay 10,250 10,250 - 10,250
Debt service 225,000 225,000 175,000 50,000
Total legislative 289,085 289,085 214,245 14,590
Executive:
Personnel services 19,834 19,834 18,612 1,222
Operating expenses 13,795 13,795 5,659 8,136
Total executive 33,629 33,629 24271 9,358
Finanical and administrative:
Personnel services 66,161 66,161 62,778 3,383
Operating expenses 63,984 63,984 57,023 6,961
Total Financial and administrative 130,145 130,145 119,801 10,344
Legal counsel:
Operating expenses 80,000 80,000 107,154 (27,154)
Comprehensive planning;
Personnel services 43,895 43,720 10,154 33,566
Operating expenses 22,415 22,640 39,673 (17,033)
Total comprehensive planning 66,310 66,360 49,827 16,533
Other general government
Personnel services 88,173 88,173 84,528 3,645
Operating expenses 29,691 29,691 23,998 5,693
Total other general government 117,864 117,864 108,526 9,338
Total general government $ 717,033 $ 717,083 $ 623,824 $ 37,352
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

{Continued)
Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts {Negative)
Expenditures (continued)
Public safety
Law enforcement:
Personnel services $ 517477 $ 517477 $ 533,711 $ (16,234)
Operating expenses 157,660 157,660 170,066 (12,406)
Total law enforcement 675,137 675,137 703,777 (28,640)
Fire control:
Personnel services 301,583 301,583 340,317 (38,734)
Operating expenses 54,353 54,353 39,894 14,459
Total fire control 355,936 355,936 380,211 (24,275)
Protective inspections:
Personnel services 80,832 80,832 31,016 42,816
Operating expenses 38,649 38,599 86,205 (48,306)
Total protective inspections 119,481 119,431 117,921 1,510
Total public safety 1,150,554 1,150,504 1,201,909 (51,405)
Physical environment
Garbage and solid waste:
Personnel services 8,307 8,307 8,328 (21)
Operating expenses 140,094 140,094 132,501 7,593
Total garbage and solid waste 148,401 148,401 140,829 7,572
Cemetery:
Personnel services 16,636 16,636 16,488 148
Operating expenses 4,488 4,488 1,645 2,843
Total Cemetery 21,124 21,124 18,133 2,991
Total physical environment 169,525 169,525 158,962 10,563
Transportation
Roads and streets:
Personnel services 227,280 227,280 189,431 37,849
Operating expenses 142,064 142,064 128,597 13,467
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 15,075 (5,075)
Total transportation 379,344 379,344 333,103 46,241
Human services
Animal control:
Personnel services 13,017 13,017 13,073 (56)
Operating expenses 2,360 2,360 701 1,659
Total human services $ 15377 $ 15377 $ 13,774 % 1,603
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

(Concluded)
Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts {Negative)
Expenditures (concluded)
Culture and recreation
Parks and recreation:
Personnel services $ 19,725 $ 19,725 $ 19971 $ (246)
Operating expenses 24,563 24,563 15174 9,389
Total culture and recreation 44,288 44,288 35,145 9,143
Total expenditures 2,476,121 2,476,121 2,366,717 109,404
Excess of revenues over
expenditures (197,117) (197,117) 61,801 258,918
Net change in fund balance (197,117) (197,117) 61,801 258,918
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,312,122 2,312,122 2,312,122 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2115005 $ 2115005 $ 2373923 $ 258918
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Variance
Original With Budget
and Final Actual Positive
Buciget Amounts {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 143,395 % 142,116 % (1,279)

Miscellaneous revenue:

Investment earnings 110 195 85
Total revenues 143,505 142311 (1,194)
Expenditures

Economic evironment
Industry development:
Personnel services 70,582 43,460 27,122
Operating expenses 43,424 15,712 27,712
Total expenditures 114,006 59,172 54,834
Deficlency of revenues
over expenditures 29,499 83,139 53,640
Net change in fund balance 29,499 83,139 53,640
Fund balances, beginning of year 123,833 123,833 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 153,332 $ 206,972 $ 53,640
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

I Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountabllity

A

Budgetary information. The City, in establishing its budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements follows the procedures set cut in Chapters 166 and 200,
Florida Statutes. The City prepares a tentative budget, which is used by the Cityata
pubklic workshop to prepare the budgets for the coming year. Public hearings are
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Subsequently, these budgets are legally
adopted through the passage of a resolution at an advertised public session. Such
actions are recorded in the City’s minutes.

The budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The only exception to the GAAP basis is the Enterprise Fund,
where depreciation is not budgeted for capital assets, while capital outlay
expenditures are budgeted and are reclassified into fixed assets. These are then
eliminated from the results of operations for financial reporting purposes in the
Enterprise Fund. Estimated beginning fund balances are considered in the
budgetary process, but are not included in the financial statements as budgeted
revenues.

The annual budget serves as the legal authorization for expenditures. All budget
amendments, which change the legally adopted total appropriation for a fund, are
approved by the City Council.

If during the fiscal year, additional revenue becomes available for appropriations in
excess of those estimated in the budget, the City Council, by resolution, may make
supplemental appropriations for the year up to the amount of such excess.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to September 1, the Finance Officer and City Manager submit to the
City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted in September to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance.

4, The legal level of budgetary control is the department level; however, the

City Council may, by formal motion, transfer appropriations between
departments and may use surplus revenues not appropriated in the budget
for any municipal purpose.

5. Budgets are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for governmental fund types.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SPECIAL RISK PENSION TRUST FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

Hlstorlcal Trend Informatlon

Measurement Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension Percentag Covered as a % of Covered
Date Liability Net Position Liability (excess) e Payroll Payroll
October 1, 2013 934,534 1,632,551 (698,017) 174.69% 614,903 0.00%
October 1, 2011 758,063 802,214 (44,151) 105.82% 565,373 0.00%
October 1, 2009 716,547 547,459 169,088 76.40% 500,405 33.79%
October 1, 2007 392,293 565,801 (173,508) 144.23% 470,515 0.00%

Schedule of Employer Contributlons

Column (3) as

(1) Actuarially (2) Contributions Defference a % of
Fiscal Year End Determined Recognized By Between (1) Covered
September 30, Contribution the Plan and (2) Covered Payroll Payroll
2014 81,861 81,861 - 614,903 0.00%
2013 373,978 373,978 - Not available Not available
2012 77,030 77,030 - 565,373 0.00%
2011 100,375 100,375 - Not available Not available
2010 83,032 83,032 - 500,405 0.00%
2009 77,117 77,417 - Not available Not available
2008 74,849 74,849 - 470,515 0.00%
2007 50,427 50,427 - Not available Not available
2006 50,427 50,427 - 316,266 0.00%
2005 54,713 54,713 - Not available Not available

Includes contributions by excise tax on certain insurance policies coliected by the State of Florida.

The City is required to contribute to the balance of the ARC.

In each year, the City contribution was greater than required. The excess contribution was placed in
the surplus ¢ontribution account.

The City obtains an actuarial report every two years. The information presented in the required
supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates

indicated.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

UAAL
Actuarial Unfunded As % of
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded Covered
Vaiuation Value of Liabllity (UAAL) Ratlo Covered Payroll
Date Assets (AAL) (2)- (1) (1)-(2) Payroll (3)-(4)
October 1, 2010 $ . $98,000 $98,000 0.0% $1,445,000 6.8%
November 1, 2012 - 38,000 38,000 0.0% 2,107,000 1.8%
July 1, 2014 . 41,000 41,000 0.0% 2,219,000 1.8%
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIUBTIONS
Year Ended % Annual %
September 30 ARC Contributed OPEB Cost Contributed
2013 $ 12,000 0% $ 9,000 0%
2014 12,000 0% 9,000 0%
2015 12,000 0% 9,000 0%
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF DUNNELLON'S PROPCRTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

LAST 410 FISCAL YEARS*
2015 2044

City's proportion of the FRS net pension liability (asset) 0.000966695% 0.0009981156%
City's proportionate share of the FRS net pension liability (asset) $ 124,862 $ 60,475
City's proportion of the HIS net pension liabifity (asset) 0.000885410% 0.000904896%
Clty's proportionate share of the HIS net pension liabllity (asset) 90,298 84,610
Clty's proportionate share of the total net penslon liability (asset) [ 215,160 $ 145,085
City's covered-employee payroll $ 299,379 $ 299,265
Citys® propaortionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of

Its covered-employee payroli T187% 48.48%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 92.00% 96.09%

Note 1) The amounts presented for each year were determined as of the June 30 year end of
the Flerida Retirement System

*GASB 68 requires Information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
only those years for which information is available is presented.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF DUNNELLON'S CONTRIBUTIONS
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

2015 2014

Contractually required FRS contribution $ 24,148 $ 22,676
Contractually required HIS contribution 3,608 3,388
Total Contractually Required Contributions 27,756 26,064
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (27,756) (26,064)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -

City's covered-employee payroll $ 299,379 $ 299,265
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.27% 8.71%

*GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, untii a full 10-year trend is compiled,
only those years for which information is available is presented.
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
THE CITY OF DUNNELLON’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM
For the Fiscal Year End September 30, 2015

Net Pension Llability

The components of the collective net pension liability of the participating employers for each
defined benefit pian for the measurement date of September 30, 2015, are shown below (in
thousands):

FRS HIS
Total pension liablllty $ 161,370,735 $ 10,249,201
Plan fiduciary net position {148,454,394) (50,774)

$ 12,916,341 $ 10,198,427

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 92.00% 0.50%

The total pension liability for each plan was determined by the plans’ actuary and reported in the
plans’ valuations dated July 1, 2015. The fiduciary net position used by the actuary to determine
the net pension liability (as shown above) was determined on the same basis used by the plan. The
fiduciary net position is reported in the financial statements and the net pension liability is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Update procedures were not used.

The HIS actuarial valuation was prepared as of July 1, 2014, and update procedures were used to
determine liabilities as of July 1, 2015. The fiduciary net position used by the actuary to determine
the net pension liability (as shown above) was determined on the same basis used by the Plan. The
fiduciary net position is reported in the financial statements and the net pension liability is
disciosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Basls for Allocation

The employer’s proportionate share reported in the pension allocation schedules was calculated
using accrued retirement contributions related to the reporting periods included in the System's
fiscal years ending June 30, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively, for employers that were members
of the FRS and HIS during those fiscal years. For fiscal year 2015, in addition to contributions from
employers the required accrued contributions for the Division (paid on behalf of the Division’s
employees who administer the Pians) were allocated to each employer on a proportionate basis.
The Division administers the Plans, and therefore, cannot allocate a portion of the liability to itself.
Although GASB 68 encourages the use of the employers’ projected long-term contribution effort to
the retirement plan, allocating on the basis of historical employer contributions is acceptable. The
aggregate employer contribution amounts for each fiscal year agree to the employer contribution
amounts reported in the system’s CAFR for that fiscal year.

The proportion calculated based on contributions for each of the fiscal years presented in the

pension allocation schedules was applied to the net pension liability and other pension amounts
applicable for that fiscal year to determine each employer's proportionate share of the liability,
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deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflow of resources and associated pension expense.

For the purposes of the pension allocation scheduies, pension amounts are aliocated to reporting
employers. The pension amounts of participating employers whose payrolls are reported and
contributions are remitted by another entity are included in the reporting employer's amounts and
will be allocated to the participating employer by the reporting employer.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by the
Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has a
valuation performed annually. The HIS Program has a valuation performed biennially that is
updated for GASB reporting in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent experience
study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed in 2014 for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30,
2013. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study has been
completed for that program. The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability
for the HIS Program were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS
Pension Plan.

The total pension liability for each cost-sharing defined benefit pian was determined using the
individual entry age actuarial cost method. Inflation increases for both Plans is assumed at 2.60%.
Payroll growth, including inflation, for both Plans is assumed at 3.25%. Both the discount rate and
the long-term expected rate of return used for FRS Pension Plan investments is 7.65%. The Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total
pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Because the HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rat of 3.80%
was used to determine the total pension liability for the program (Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index). Mortality assumptions for both Pians were based on the
Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables (refer to the valuation reports for more
information - See Additional Financial and Actuarial Information).

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2015:

e FRS: There were no changes in actuarial assumptions. The inflation rate assumption
remained at 2.60%, the real payroll growth assumption remained at 0.65%, and he overall
payroll growth rate assumption remained at 3.25%. The long-term expected rate of return
remained at 7.65%

= HIS: The municipal bonds rate used to determine total pension liability was decreased from
4.29% to 3.80%.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE SCHEDULE
WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

UNAUDITED
September 30, 2015

Gross revenue (B)

Operating revenue 3,032,702

Interest income 2,858
Total gross revenue 3,035,560
Costs of operation and maintenance

Personnel services 839,032

Operating expenses ( C) 621,642
Total costs of operation and maintenance 1,460,674
Gross revenues less costs of operation and maintenance 1,574,886
Senlor Lien Debt Service and Coverage
Senior lien debt service

Regions principal 290,710

Regions interest 246,033

BB&T principal 265,000

BB&T interest 152,702
Total senior lien debt service 954,445
Senior lien debt service coverage for rate covenant (D) 1.65
Non-operating revenue (wastewater project grant funds) (E) 780,696
Total pledged funds 2,355,682
Senfor lien debt service coverage for all pledged funds 247
Subordinate Lien Debt Service and Coverage
Gross revenues less costs of operation and maintenance 1,574,888
Senior lien debt service plus coverage (F) 1,145,334
Net income avallable for SRF coverage 429,562
SRF debt service 14,133
SRF debt service coverage (G) 30.39

Notes to the Debt Service Coverage Schedule

(A) Calculations based on figures from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (page 21)
(B} Gross revenue includes Interest earnings and operating revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund and excludes impact
fees and contributions in aid of construction

{C) Operating expenses exclude depreciation, amortization and expenses related to professional services (professional
services are capital-related for the Utility Master Plan, and system mapping)

{D) Required rate for coverage is 1.10, and for additional bonds 1.20

(E) Grant Revenue is Financially Disadvantaged Small Community Grant Agreement, SC511070, Pledged for Debt Service
per Bond Resolution

(F) Calculation is total senior lien debt service multiplied by the greater required rate for coverage of 1.20

(G) State Revolving Funds Loan required rate for coverage is 1.15
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, (the “City”) have been designed to
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units, including
the reporting and compliance requirements of the Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

A. Reporting Entlty

The reporting entity consists of the City of Dunnellon, Florida. The City includes a Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance in the Compliance Section for the
purpose of additional analysis.

B. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting related to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recoghized
when they become measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current pericd or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days after the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Dunnellon, Florida’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 29, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Dunnellon, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Dunnellon, Florida’s internal control, Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dunnellon, Florida's internal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies In Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compllance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Dunnellon, Fiorida's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT
AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL, OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

To the City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

Report on Compllance for Each Major State Project

We have audited the compliance of the City of Dunnellon with the types of compliance requirements
described Iin the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services State Projects Compliance and
Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect on its major State project for the year ended
September 30, 2015. The City of Dunnellon’s major State project Is Identlfied in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Management's Responsibility

The City of Dunnellon’s management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major State projects.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Dunnelion’s compliance for each major State Project
hased on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the
Auditor General. Those standards and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor
General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major State project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City of Dunnellon’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonahble basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State
Project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Dunnellon’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Project

In our opinion, the City of Dunnellon complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major State project for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed ne instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Dunnellon is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of Dunnellon’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State project to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major State Project and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dunnellon’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency In Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State
project on a timely basis. A material weakness In Internal control over compilance Is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State project will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance Is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State Project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compllance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this report Is a public record and its distribution is not limited.
Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to indicate that this report
is intended solely for the information and use of the City of Dunnellon’s management, State awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016
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CITY OF DUNNELLON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
® Material weakness identified?

e Reportable condition identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
State Financial Assistance
Internal ¢ontrol over major projects:

¢ Material weakness identified?
@ Reportable condition identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major projects:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Rule 10.656,
Rules of the Auditor General?

CSFA Number
37.075

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Financial Statement Findings

None

State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned
Costs

None
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Unquaiifed

No

None reported

No

No

None reported

Unqualified

No
Name of State Programs

Small Communlty Wastewater
Constructlon Grant

$234,209



MANAGEMENT LETTER

To The City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have audited the fihancial statements of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, as of and for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2016. We
have also issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That
report should be considered in conjunction with this management ietter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit
was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General,
which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and
require that certain items be addressed in this letter.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2013-02: Fixed Assets (second preceding year)

For our review of the City's fixed assets in the prior and current yvears we found that the detail fixed
assets did not agree with the corresponding general ledger balances. We again recommend that
the City perform a comprehensive review and reconciliation of all of its fixed assets during the
current year and that the general ledger balances be adjusted accordingly.

CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendation 2015-01: Cash Management

The City currently prepares monthly bank reconciliations on a manual basis. This procedure was
adequate in prior years when the full pooled cash system was utilized by the City. However, since
the separation of cash accounts between the general and enterprise funds, the manual bank
reconciliation process is not adequate to produce accurate monthly bank reconciliations for each
individual fund. This has resulted in the cash balances being correct in the accounting system for
each of the funds, but the corresponding bank balances do not always agree on an individual fund
hasis.

To correct this weakness we recommend that the City consider implementing the bank
reconciliation module of the financial software. Properly utilized this system will fully correct this
weakness. Alternatively, the individual fund cash accounts should be fully reconciled to the overall
bank reconciliation on a monthly basis.

Recommendation 2015-02: Fund Balance Pollcy

The City has experienced several prior years of deteriorating financial conditions primarily due to
transactions relating to the prior Communications Fund. During the current year this trend was
reversed as the governmental funds increased fund balances by $144,940 and the enterprise
funds had operating income of $300,858. To assist the City in restoring and maintaining its
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financial reserves at appropriate levels we recommend that the City Council adopt a formal
“Financial Reserves” policy. Such a policy would specify reserve levels for each fund and direct
uses of excess funds when such situations occur.

There were no other reportable recommendations in the current year.

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the
accompanying financial statements of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015.

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections
10.554(7)(c) and 10.556(7), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is
management's responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition
assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of
financial information they provided.

Prior Year

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, the Communications Fund was closed into the
General fund resulting in an incurred deficit of approximately $(3,146,305) to the General Fund.
This deficit will be repaid over approximately 18 years at $175,000 per year. The City intends to
annually budget this debt service in the General Fund.

Additionally, the City has agreed to pay $500,000 to certain of its utility customers as the result of
a lawsuit. These funds must be fully repaid within the next two years, and be budgeted and funded
within current City revenues until fully repaid.

Current Year

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, the City paid the first installment of $175,000
on the new loan and still managed to increase the General Fund Balance by $61,801, and achieved
an ending unassigned fund balance of $412,607 which was approximately two months of General
Fund expenditures. The Enterprise Funds had a combined net increase in ending net position of
$687,740 which would allow the City to fund the lawsuit judgment with the required two years.

If the City continues this trend of financial performance in the ensuing years, then it should result in

full restoration of the City's unrestricted reserves to prudent levels.

Financial Emergency Status - Notwithstanding the foregoing conditions, we have determined that
the City of Dunnellon, Florida, did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1)(a), Florida Statutes, that might result in a financial emergency.

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules
of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.550.
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CONCLUSION

We have reviewed each of our specific findings with appropriate officials or employees and have
provided them with documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and
experiences associated with our audit of the City. We appreciate the helpful assistance and
courtesy afforded us by all City employees and look forward to working with you in the future.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT

To The City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have examined the City of Dunnellon, Fiorida's compliance with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2015.
Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. OQur examianation does not provide a legal
determination on the City's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the year ended September 30, 2015.

This report is intended sclely for the information and use of the City of Dunellon, Florida and the
Auditor General, State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016
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City of Dunnellon Management Response To
Auditors’ Management Letter Comment
Annual Audit FYE 9/30/15

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Dunnellon
Dunnellon, Florida

We have reviewed the audit report for fiscal year ending September 30, 2015 including the management letter.
The following is in response to Powell & Jones CPA’s current year finding and recommendations.

Fixed Assets

During fiscal years 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 we took a physical inventory of the assets recorded in the fixed asset
module of the City’s financial system. We identified assets that are no longer in the City’s possession and began to
remove them from the financial system. it was also discovered that some assets were not entered into the system
properly which resulted in inaccurate reporting. This task was not completed as of September 30, 2015 due to a
staffing shortage. We will continue with the review and cleanup of the fixed asset module and will process
adjusting entries accordingly. We anticipate completion of this very large project no later than September 30,
2016.

Cash Management

We will research the Munis Financial System treasury management module to determine if it meets the needs of
the City and s affordable within our financial constraints. At a minimum, all cash accounts will be fully reconciled
to the overall bank reconciliation en a monthly basis.

Fund Balance Policy

A Fund Balance Policy will be presented to City Council for their consideration.

Eddie Esxch
Eddie Esch
City Manager
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Communicatien with Those Charged with Governance

To the City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Dunnellon, Florida for the year ended September 30,
2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as ¢ertain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City of Dunnellon, Florida are described Note 1 to the financial statements.
As described in Note 1 and Note 10 to the financial statements, the City changed accounting policies related
to the recognition of their proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Florida Retirement System by
adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB statement} No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, in 2015. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting change
as of the beginning of the year is reported in the statement of net position. We noted no transactions
entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’'s knowledge and expetience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the pessibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. There are no sensitive estimates affecting the City of Dunnellon, Florida’s financial
statements.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financlal
statement users. There are no sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements.

Difficulties Encoiintered In Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements [dentified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
There were no such misstatements identified during our audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 29, 2016.
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Management Consultations with Other independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’'s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not
a condition to our retention.

Other information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary Information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complles with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of Dunnellon,
Florida, and s not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 29, 2016
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PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE (CR 484) DESIGN ALTERNATIVES STUDY

Project Background

One of the key recommendations of the City of Dunnellon Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan was the re-
design of Pennsylvania Avenue with a bike (shared-use) path that connects the downtown area to Blue
Run Park. Which ultimately connects to the future Cross Florida Greenway Trail and the Withlacoochee
Trail. In addition, in 2013 Marion County and the City of Dunnellon started developing conceptual plans for
Pennsylvania Avenue (CR 484) for corridor improvements. The concept plans developed in 2013 depicted
potential streetscapes to accommodate non-motorized travel through the corridor. These plans included a
12-foot shared-use path along the southern side of the roadway and a four-foot sidewalk for pedestrian use
on the northern side. In addition to the shared-use path, the concepts had 11-foot vehicle travel lanes and
an 11-foot two-way left turn lane/median. Public input was gathered to assess support for the suggested
modifications. Input from the public stated their desire to maintain on-street parking along the corridor in
some way. Local businesses shared concerns that any substantial changes to the roadway may negatively
affect their patronage.

Multi-use trails in the City of Dunnellon and surrounding area could become a major economic driver for
the area. The City of Dunnellon finds itself in a unique situation to develop infrastructure that will utilize and
integrate with the existing/proposed trail networks and improve access to its already popular natural areas.
Plans are in place for the creation of the Heart of Florida Loop which will be a continuous shared-use path
within the central Florida region, connecting with other trails that cover the extent of Florida. This trail
network enters Marion County from the south near Dunnellon and continues eastward along the Cross
Florida Greenway Trail, north toward the Ocala area. The connection of these shared-use paths in
Dunnellon will provide economic development opportunities in the form of ecotourism and recreation.
Marion County is home to some truly outstanding natural areas, several of which are within or very near
Dunnellon. Blue Run Park provides access to the Rainbow River, which is one of Marion County’s most
visited waterways. This park draws visitors from all around the region to enjoy the crystal clear waters of
the Rainbow River. Providing facilities for non-motorized forms transportation allows for the development
of on-street businesses and may improve patronage of the local businesses. It is believed that vehicle use
and nearby parking is essential for businesses to succeed, but providing improved access for non-
motorized users can help improve economic development by catering to additional visitation. Creating a
comfortable area for individuals to travel to will help foster a sense of place and can lead to increased
economic success.

The Ocala/Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) has undertaken this assessment of the
Pennsylvania Avenue corridor for multimodal improvement and has developed new concepts for
consideration. These concepts have been developed to improve the multimodal use of Pennsylvania
Avenue using varying techniques and modifications to promote both motorized and non-motorized
movement through the corridor. The five design alternatives and three Rainbow River Bridge options have
been presented during two meetings, one with the Dunnellon City Council on February 17, 2016 and
another with the general public on March 30, 2016.

Previous Concept

The previous design concept created by Kimley-Horn in 2013 had reduced lane size, two-way left turn
lane/landscaped median, and added a shared-use path with a landscaped buffer to separate the path from
the travel lanes, as shown in Figure 1. Through public input it was expressed that this concept had too
much landscaping, as well as concerns for medians blocking off business entrances. Marion County
engineering developed another concept using significantly less landscaping. This design concept had two
11-foot travel lanes, two six-foot bike lanes and a seven-foot on-street parking area.
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Figure 1: Concept Graphics - Typical Section
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Existing Conditions

This typical section shows lane widths and current sidewalk and parking conditions on the roadway.
Currently the on-street parking is used by weekend visitors to the Blue Run Park and patrons of the local
businesses. The parking is also used by delivery trucks servicing the nearby businesses. Pedestrian and
bicycle activity has been identified as a major concern for this area as well. Currently cyclists and
pedestrians must either share the sidewalks or make use of travel lanes which are not marked for bicycle
safety. The five alternatives (listed A-E) have been developed to address the concerns heard from the
public. The existing typical section for Pennsylvania Avenue is shown in Figures 2 and 3:

® 13-foot travel lanes
® 7-foot parking on both sides
® b5-foot sidewalk on both sides

New Alternatives

Five alternatives were developed and presented for public comment. Each of these alternatives were
designed using the feedback gathered during the 2013 conceptual project and modified to include different
facilities. Each of the alternatives below offers a different layout from the existing corridor with an eye toward
increasing pedestrian and bicycle use and improving safety throughout the corridor. A description of the
alternatives can be found below.

§Alternative A:

This alternative reduces the lane size from 13 feet to 11 feet. which would decrease vehicle speeds, reduces
on-street parking to only the northern side of the road which allows for the addition of bike lanes on both
sides of the road. This option is relatively low cost can be created through restriping the roadway. The
bicycle lanes are not buffered and may exclude non-proficient cyclists from using this facility. This
alternative includes the following and can be seen in Figures 4 and 5:

® 11-foot travel lanes

® 5.5-foot bike lanes on both sides
©® 7-foot parking on north side

® 5-foot sidewalks on both sides

§Alternative B:

This alternative reduces the lane size to the FDOT minimum width of 10.5 feet, which would decrease
vehicle speeds, reduces on-street parking to only the northern side of the road, making available roadway
for bike lanes on both sides of the road. With the travel lane width suggested to be 10.5 feet Wide,
coordination with Marion County is needed to ensure the roadway will remain compliant with standards.
This option is relatively low cost as in many cases the alternative will be created through restriping the
roadway. The bicycle lanes are only five feet with a one-foot buffer to allow for more cyclist use of this
facility. This alternative includes the following and can be seen in Figures 6 and 7

® 10.5-foot travel lanes

® 5-foot bike lanes on both sides with a 1-foot buffer
©® 7-foot parking on north side

® 5-foot sidewalks on both sides
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Figure 4: Alternate A Typical Section
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Alternate B Typical Section

Figure 6
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?Alternative C:

This alternative reduces the lanes from 13 feet to 11 feet which would reduce vehicle speeds. In addition
this alternative would also reduce on-street parking to only the northern side of the road, which allows for
the creation of a side path on the southern side of the roadway. This side path would be separated by some
type of vertical separator such as a vertical delineator or vehicle curb separator. These provide a buffer
allowing for more comfortable use of the side path for trail users. Roadway delineators can vary from rumble
strip materials on the ground, low barriers, to vertical delineators of multiple designs and heights. This
alternative will likely be more expensive than alternatives A and B. The following can be seen in Figures 8
and 9:

® 11-foot travel lanes

® 8-foot side path on south side with a 3-foot buffer and delineators on the road
® 7-foot parking on north side

® 5-foot sidewalks on both sides

©®  www.fthwa.dot.gov ®  www.wamu.org
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Alternate C Typical Section

Figure 8
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Figure 9: Alternate C Typical Section (Aerial View)
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§Alternative D:

This alternative reduces the lane size from 13 feet to 11 feet which would decrease vehicle speeds and
removes all on-street parking and adds a two-way left turn lane/landscaped median. A sidewalk is proposed
on the northern side, while a 12-foot shared-use path is recommended on the southern side. This alternative
is one of the safer options as it completely separates motor vehicles from other users and provides a turn
lane/median area that separates the travel lanes. This alternative will likely be the highest cost of
implementation. This alternative includes the following and can be seen in Figures 10 and 11:

©® 11-foot travel lanes

©® 11-foot turn lane and/or landscaped median

©® 12-foot shared-use path on south side, off the road
©® 5-foot sidewalk on north side

§Alternative E:

This alternative reduces lane size from 13 feet to 11 feet which would reduce vehicle speeds, maintains
on-street parking on the northern side. A sidewalk is present on the northern side, while a 12-foot shared-
use path is implemented off the road on the southern side. This is the best overall option for safety and
connectivity, by separating motorists from other users and continuing to provide on-street parking for the
local businesses. This alternative has higher predicted costs for implementation. This alternative includes
the following and can be seen in Figures 12 and 13:

©® 11-foot travel lanes

©® 12-foot shared-use path on south side, off the road
©® 7-foot parking on north side

©® 5-foot sidewalk on north side

§Bridge Options:

During the Stakeholder meetings, modification of the Rainbow River Bridge was discussed to integrate with
the proposed CR 484 design alternatives. Three options were discussed in the meetings:

©® Use the existing shoulder along the bridge
© Develop a separate bicycle/pedestrian bridge
© Do nothing

Use of the existing shoulder is only recommended for a temporary solution. Use of the existing shoulder
would require either the implementation of roadway barriers or crosswalks to allow bi-directional travel of
pedestrians over the bridge. The stakeholder input indicated that the public favored the implementation of
a bicycle/pedestrian bridge over the Rainbow River. This separate bridge option will increase pedestrian
and cyclist safety by separating them from the vehicle travel lanes while providing adequate width for bi-
directional travel. Additionally, this option will allow for more direct travel between the downtown area, Blue
Run Park, and the nearby trail system. Both suggested improvement options will require additional
engineering design to connect the bridge with the Blue Run Park. The implementation of a new bridge is a
longer term project due to anticipated cost. Implementation of the separated shoulder option will also require
funding for design and construction however, at far less cost than the separate bicycle/pedestrian bridge.

®  www.artthuresoninc.com ® Site Visit
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Figure 10: Alternate D Typical Section
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Figure 11: Alternate D Typical Section (Aerial View)
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Figure 12: Alternate E Typical Section
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Stakeholder Outreach
§Dunnellon City Council — February 17, 2016:

A meeting was held with the Dunnellon City Council to gather input on the newly developed design
alternatives for the Pennsylvania Avenue corridor. The Council generally agreed that Alternative C was the
preferred option. This option contained the features that the Council desired to see from a streetscape such
as maintaining some of the on-street parking and implementing a shared-use path, while requiring a more
modest budget to implement. The Council expressed concerns over the types of vertical barriers/delineators
and signage that could be used in the design. Concerns over the aesthetics of the delineators and the
implementation of other options were discussed to increase the safety of the corridor. Additionally, the
Council expressed a desire to explore external funding sources such as the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection’s Recreational Trails Grant Program. This is a competitive grant program that
allows local governments to compete for federal funding for trail facilities.

'Public Meeting - March 30, 2016:

A public meeting was held at the Dunnellon Bingo Hall on Wednesday, March 30, 2016. The meeting was
held to gather public input on the Pennsylvania Avenue alternatives. There were 46 attendees who
participated, and there were 32 comment forms submitted. Alternative C had the most community support
followed by Alternative D. Eight individuals did not indicate which alternative they would support, but did
indicate that they would like to see bicycle access improvements to Pennsylvania Avenue. Two individuals
clearly indicated that they would not like to see anything done to the roadway. The other category is
comprised of individuals who shared concerns for safety, turn lane availability, and the impact on
businesses. Several individuals indicated they were in favor of Alternative E, but made the decision to
support other options due to the potential costs and time it would take to implement.

Throughout the stakeholder engagement process, it was clear that the City Council and the residents that
participated in the process favored Alternative C. This alternative accomplishes the addition of a shared-
use path while maintaining on-street parking on the north side of the corridor. This alternative creates a
safe facility for non-motorized users and will likely increase usage from non-proficient cyclists and
pedestrians. Any safety related issues with this option will have to be examined during the engineering
design phase. The design phase will have to address the curb cuts to existing land uses, on-street parking,
and the Alternative C bicycle facility. The on-street parking will remain on the north side of the road to
service the local businesses as well as weekend visitors to Blue Run Park. Additionally, the long term option
of building a separate bicycle/pedestrian bridge was favored over using the existing shoulder along the
Rainbow River Bridge. This bridge option will be used to create a safe and efficient route for cyclists and
pedestrians to travel between the downtown Dunnellon area and Blue Run Park and ultimately to other
regional trails. Any modification to Pennsylvania Avenue or the bridge will require coordination with Marion
County Engineering. Additionally, Marion County Engineering should be coordinated with to make the
connection from the bridge to the Blue Run Park. The proposed modifications to Pennsylvania Avenue will
allow Dunnellon to make the necessary changes to accommodate increased cycling in the area as well as
draw new visitors to this area.

The results of this report are to examine Alternative C with further engineering analysis and design to ensure
the safety and access features have been properly addressed. In addition, the results suggest the
consideration of the long term goal for the implementation of a separate bicycle/pedestrian bridge over the
Rainbow River. These actions will require engineering design to be completed as the next phase.
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Loretta Barton

From: Dawn Bowne

Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 12:28 PM

To: Loretta Barton

Subject: FW: 20717 Walnut St.-CC Mtg 05/09/16
Dawan . Bowue

Dawn M. Bowne, MMC

City Clerk

City of Dunnellon
20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
352-465-8500, ext. 1002
352-465-8505 fax

dbowne@dunnellon.org

www.dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Jan Smith

Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 12:26 PM
To: Dawn Bowne

Cc: Eddie Esch

Subject: 20717 Walnut St.-CC Mtg 05/09/16

The motion should read: Authorize the City Manager to waive $683.27 of the interest accrued through April 25, 2016 on
Lien #2012-43 for Mr. Seth Popper.

| put Mr. Popper’s name and the Apr. 25th date as the date interest stopped accruing . If he doesn’t purchase the
property interest will still accrue and then the 50% waiver amount will increase. (Unless I’'m directed to stop accruing
interest as of 4/25/16)

Jan Smith

Finance Officer

City of Dunnellon

20750 River Drive

Dunnellon, FL 34431

Phone: 352-465-8500 Ext. 1003
Fax: 352-465-8505

E-mail: jsmith@dunnellon.org




Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.



Meeting Date: May 4, 2016

From (Dept.): City Manager

Signature; tamtor E. Esch

Department Director

Approved for

Agenda: tamtor E. ESCh

City Manager

Official Use Only

Reviewed by
City Attorney:

Council Action:

Date:

Subject: Discuss vacant parcel located at 20717 Walnut Street

Request for Approval:

Summary Explanation and Background:

Property information attached.

Fiscal Information:

Project No.
(If applicable)

Amount:

Procurement Method:

Purchase Requisition Number:

Recommended Action:

Initiated by: EE

Revision: Mar 24, 2015




Marion County Property Appraiser

Villie M. Smith, CFA, ASA

Select Language Y | Powered by Google Translate

HOMESearchPrevious ParcelNext ParcelTRIM NoticeTRIM SupplementAddress Change FormSales Verification Form

2016
3380-1406-00

Prime Key: 803111 MAP IT As of 4/26/2016

Property Information

B & S & GG LLC Taxes Assessments:
3154 SE 6TH PL Map ID: 21

OCALA FL 34471
Millage: 3002

Situs: 20717 WALNUT ST

M.S.T.U.
PC: 00
Acres: 0.14

DUNNELLON

Values NOT Available

History of Assessed Values

Year Land Just Building Misc Value Mkt/Just Assessed Val Exemptions Taxable Val
2015 $8,842 $0 $0 $8,842 $8,842 $0 $8,842
2014 $9,147 $0 $0 $9,147 $9,147 $0 $9,147
2013 $9,147 $0 S0 $9,147 $9,147 $0 $9,147
Property Transfer History
Book/Page Date Instrument Code Q/U v/I Price
5824/0676 03/13 34 TAX 2 V-SALES VERIFICATION U v $3,600
4853/0116 07/07 62 DISTR 0 U I $100
UNRE/INST 11/06 71 DTH CER 0 U I $100
4667/1608 11/06 74 PROBATE 0 U I $100
0727/0316 01/76 02 DEED NC 0 U I $10,000
Property Description
SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18
PLAT BOOK A PAGE 174
DUNNELLON
LOT 1406 A
Land Data - Warning: Verify Zoning

Use Front Depth Zoning C Notes Units Type Rate Loc Shp Phy Class Value Just Value
0001 50 125 RBO 6098.00 SF 1.00 1.00 1.00
Neighborhood 8150 - DUNNELLON HISTORICAL DISTRICT
Mkt: 1 70

Planning and Building, County Permit Search

** Permit Search **

Permit Number Amount Issued Date Complete Date Description
DN4132 $14,700 9/1/1994 - VINYL SIDING/REPAIR
200103 S1 6/1/2007 - 27

DUN11120023 $4,280 12/5/2011 - DEMO



https://translate.google.com/
http://216.255.243.131/
http://216.255.243.131/MCPASCH2.html
http://216.255.243.135/DEFAULT.aspx?Key=803103&YR=2016
http://216.255.243.135/DEFAULT.aspx?Key=803120&YR=2016
http://216.255.243.131/trim.php?PrimeKey=803111&Year=2016
http://216.255.243.131/trim16.pdf
javascript:__doPostBack('Menu1','Address Change Form')
javascript:__doPostBack('Menu1','Sales Verification')
http://216.255.243.135/DEFAULT.aspx?Key=803111&YR=2015
http://216.255.243.135/DEFAULT.aspx?Key=803111&YR=2014
http://216.255.243.135/DEFAULT.aspx?Key=803111&YR=2013
http://216.255.243.134/Freeance/Client/PublicAccess1/index.html?appconfig=MCPAGIS&cmd=zoomTo&themename=3&fieldname=PARCEL&fieldvalue=3380-1406-00
http://216.255.243.131/INFOHELP.html
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertySummary.aspx?Search=Property&Account=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00
http://bcc.marioncountyfl.org/assess/NonAdValoremInquiry.aspx?QueryType=PA&pyear=2016&pparcel=3380-1406-00
http://216.255.243.131/PCCLHELP.html
http://216.255.243.131/MILLHELP.html
http://216.255.243.131/HISTHELP.html
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl05$gvHistoryValues','Sort$Year')
http://216.255.243.131/SALEHELP.html
http://216.255.240.38/wb_or1/new_sch.asp?Search_by=Book/Page&Search_entry=5824/0676
http://216.255.240.38/wb_or1/new_sch.asp?Search_by=Book/Page&Search_entry=4853/0116
http://216.255.240.38/wb_or1/or_sch_1.asp
http://216.255.240.38/wb_or1/new_sch.asp?Search_by=Book/Page&Search_entry=4667/1608
http://216.255.240.38/wb_or1/new_sch.asp?Search_by=Book/Page&Search_entry=0727/0316
http://216.255.243.131/LEGAHELP.html
http://216.255.243.131/LANDHELP.html
http://216.255.243.131/PLANHELP.html
http://bcc.marioncountyfl.org/cdplus/PermitInquiry.aspx?SearchType=R

Villie M. Smith, CFA, ASA GIS Web Mapping Application
Marion County Property Appraiser Last Updated: 04/15/2016
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DISCLAIMER: This is a work in progress. This application was compiled by the Marion County Property Appraiser's Office solely for the governmental purpose of
I_llOO ft property assessment. These are NOT surveys. Our goal is to provide the most accurate data available, however, no warranties, expressed or implied are provided
with this data, its use, or interpretation. All information subject to change without notice. Use at your own risk.
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DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN

Clerk e emetom semas 2t v et men emms mrrms ot e rmen e
SA;JE 4288161 DAVID R ELLSPERMANN CLERK OF COURT MARION COUNTY
PROPERTY ID NUMBER 3380-1406-00 DATE: 03/12/2013 04:28:58 PM
_ FILE #: 2013025178 OR BK 05824 PGS 0676-0678
STATE OF FLORIDA
| REC 27.00 DEED DS 25.20 /h%

COUNTY OF MARION

The following Tax Sale Certificate Numbered 14549 issued on June-01-2009 was filed on the Office of the Tax Collector of this
County and application made for the issuance of a tax deed, the applicant having paid or redeemed all other taxes or tax sale
certificates on the land described as required by law to be paid or redeemed, and the costs and expenses of this sale, and due notice
of sale having been published as required by law, and no person entitled to do so having appeared to redeem said land; such land
was on the 13th day of February, 2013 offered for sale as required by law for cash to the highest bidder and was sold to: B& S &
GG LLC ADDRESS: 3154 SE 6TH PL; OCALA,FL 34471 being the highest bidder and having paid the sum of his bid as
required by the Laws of Florida.

NOW, this 12th day of March, 2013 the County of Marion, State of Florida, in consideration of the sum of ($ 3,552.59) THREE
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY TWO AND 59 / 100-----Dollars, being the amount paid pursuant of the Laws of Florida
does hereby sell the following lands situated in the County and State and described as follows:

SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18

DUNNELLON LOT 1406

-PLAT BOOK A PAGE 174

: DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN ,.;;TE}E&.‘_:)‘O:;.
SUBJECT TO CURRENT TAXES CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT ,—’gf %'",,
MARION COUNTY 7zibagd (X2
» "% DA E?
/ B
WITNESS: < S

DEPYJTY CLERK

9 oM aigoe

\Y4

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MARION

On this 12th day of March, 2013 before me personally appeared Jotn F. Suess, 111 , Deputy Clerk for David R. Ellspermann , Clerk
of the Circuit Court in and for the State and this County known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged the execution of this instrument to be his own free act and deed for the use and purpose therein
mentioned, who is personally known to me and who did not take an oath.

Witness my hand and official seal date aforesaid.

DER | STATE OFFLORIDA
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AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Star-Banner
Published — Daily
Ocala, Marion County, Florida

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MARION

Before the undersigned, a Notary Public of Said County and State,

who on oath says that they are an authorized
emploﬁee of A% Star-Banner, a daily newspaper published at Ocala, in Marion
County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a notice in the
matter of

Sale # 288161 NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR TAX DEED NOTICE IS HEREBY
GIVEN, that B & S & GG LLC the holder of the following certificate has filed said
certificate for a tax deed to be issued thereon. The certificate number and year of
issuance, the descripti

was published in said newspaper in the issues of:

12727 Ix, s1/3 Ix, s1/10 1Ix, s1/17 Ix

Affiant further says that the said STAR-BANNER is a daily newspaper
published at Ocala, in said Marion County, Florida, and that the said newspaper
has heretofore been continuously published in said Marion County, Florida,
daily, and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Ocala
in said Marion County, Florida, for a period of one year next preceding the first
publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he
has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount,
rebate, commission or refund for the person of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said newspaper.

o
Sworn to and subscribed before me this l 2 day of )ﬁ nd 1@‘9 ,AD., 20 ﬁ

- S
A ey

W ey,
RN Mar{@-, %,

oseevee, %,

§ FTXARY

A O Y : Notary Public
i cee®e 1%
oimlnEs 1 LAUREL L. MATHIS
E’-, ~, “ol.:UB \>0,.".Q}Q ,5 (Print, Type or Stamp Name of Notary Public)
%, Sy PUBN
e G S

Ad #: A000770989

Book5824/Page677 CFN#2013025178

Sale # 288161
NOTICE OF APPLICATION
FOR TAX DEED
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that B & S
& GG LLC the holder of the following cer-
tificate has filed said certificate for a tax
deed to be issued thereon. The certificate
number and year of issuance, the descrip-
tion of the property, and the names in
which it was assessed are as follows:
Certificate No. 14549
Year of Issuance: 2009
Description of Property:
# 3380-1406-00
SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18
DUNNELLON LOT 1406
PLAT BOOK A PAGE 174
Name in which assessed: ROY JOSEPH
FELVER
Said property being in the County of
Marion, State of Florida.
Unless such certificate shall be redeemed
according to law the property described in
such certificate shall be sold to the high-
est bidder in the Jury Assembly Room of
the Marion County Judicial Center on
February 13, 2013 at 8:30 AM
Dated this December 27, 2012
DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN,
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
SIGNATURE: David R. Ellspermann
December 27, 2012 & January 3, 10, 17,

2013.
#A000770989

Page 2 of 3
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Clerk of the Circuit Court

Marion County
Post Office Box 1030 @ Ocala, Florida 34478-1030
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CLERK’S AFFIDAVIT CERTIFICATE

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MARION

SALE # 288161
CERTIFICATE: 14549-2009

I, DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the above state and county, do hereby certify
that a copy of the NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR TAX DEED PUBLICATION AND THE WARNING
NOTICE LETTER were mailed certified, registered and/or regular mail on the Dec-27-2012 to the following:

B & S & GG LLC, C/O SUNWEST TRUST FBO MICHAEL L MEAD, 3154 SE 6TH PL, OCALA FL
34471

ROY JOSEPH FELVER, 22759 SW 117TH PL, DUNNELLON FL 34431-6201

ROY JOSEPH FELVER, 20717 WALNUT ST, DUNNELLON FL 34431-6750

ROY JOSEPH FELVER, 23185 SW 120TH STREET, DUNNELLON FL 34431

CITY OF DUNNELLON, 20750 RIVER DRIVE, DUNNELLON FL 34431

CITY OF DUNNELLON, C/O FOWLER & O'QUINN PA, 28 W CENTRAL BLVD 4TH FLOOR,
ORLANDO FL 32801

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal this 27th day of December, 2012.

DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN v
Clerk of the Circuit Court -‘?_c.\.agl_;_,.,"o\(;.
Marion County S

By: WM

Deputy Clerk
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Main Menu *

Search Tax Roll *

Support*

Tax Roll Property Summary

Help

Account Number R3380-1406-00 Type REAL ESTATE REMINDER Request Future E-Bill
Address 20717 WALNUT ST DUNNELLON Status
Sec/Twn/Rng 35 16 18 Subdivision 8150
Year Roll Account Number Status Date Paid Amount Paid Balance Due Pay Online
1999 R 1999 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2000 R 2000 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2001 R 2001 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2002 R 2002 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2003 R 2003 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2004 R 2004 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2005 R 2005 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2006 R 2006 R3380-1406-00  No Tax Due Tax Bill
2007 R 2007 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2008 Tax Bill
2007 CER 2008-00010220-00 REDEEMED 06/2008 1,288.01 Certificate
2008 R 2008 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2009 Tax Bill
2008 CER 2009-00014549-00 REDMD-CLRK  02/2013 3,5658.84 Certificate
2009 R 2009 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2010 Tax Bill
2009 CER 2010-00015824-00 REDEEMED 09/2012 710.00 Certificate
2010 R 2010 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2011 Tax Bill
2010 CER 2011-00015008-00 REDEEMED 09/2012 513.40 Certificate
2011 R 2011 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2012 Tax Bill
2011 CER 2012-00015471-00 REDEEMED 09/2012 441.59 Certificate
2012 R 2012 R3380-1406-00  PAID 03/2013 171.55 Tax Bill
2013 2013 R3380-1406-00  PAID 01/2014 168.19 Tax Bill
2014 2014 R3380-1406-00 CER SOLD 06/2015 Tax Bill
2014 CER 2015-00015269-00 UNPAID 247 .44 (] Certificate
2015 R 2015 R3380-1406-00  UNPAID 181.42 O Tax Bill
Add to Cart
CURRENT ACCOUNT DETAILS
Account Number 2015 R3380-1406-00 Tax Bill

DELINQUENT TAXES DUE

Property Description

Owner Information

SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18 PLAT BOOK A

B&S&GGLLC

PAGE 174 DUNNELLON LOT 1406

3154 SE 6TH PL



javascript:openHelp('help/property/propertydetails_help.htm')
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/EBillAddItem.aspx?Acctno=R3380-1406-00
http://www.google.com/search?q=20717%20WALNUT%20ST%20DUNNELLON
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=1999&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=1999&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2000&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2000&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2001&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2001&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2002&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2002&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2003&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2003&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2004&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2004&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2005&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2005&Acctbtyear=
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https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2006&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2007&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2007&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00010220&Acctyear=2008&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00010220&Acctyear=2008&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2008&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2008&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00014549&Acctyear=2009&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00014549&Acctyear=2009&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2009&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2009&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015824&Acctyear=2010&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015824&Acctyear=2010&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2010&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2010&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015008&Acctyear=2011&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015008&Acctyear=2011&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2011&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2011&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015471&Acctyear=2012&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015471&Acctyear=2012&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2012&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2012&Acctbtyear=
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https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2013&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2014&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2014&Acctbtyear=
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015269&Acctyear=2015&Acctbtyear=00&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++++++C00015269&Acctyear=2015&Acctbtyear=00
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyDetails.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2015&Acctbtyear=&Owner=B+%26+S+%26+GG+LLC&Page=2
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctBill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2015&Acctbtyear=
javascript:__doPostBack('_ctl0$ContentPlaceHolder1$lnkCart','')
https://www.mariontax.com/itm/PropertyAcctbill.aspx?Acctno=+++++++++++++++R3380-1406-00&Acctyear=2015&Acctbtyear=

OCALA,FL 34471

Current Values and Exemptions

Taxes and Fees Levied

ASSESSMENT 8,842 TAXES 176.14
TAXABLE 8,842 INT. 3.0000% 5.28
APR 30 2016 MAY 31 2016 ONLY CERTIFIED FUNDS PAST DUE ON
181.42 187.08 ACCEPTED AFTER APRIL 30 2016 APRIL 1 2016
Post Date Receipt # Pmt Type Status Disc Interest Total

Links of Interest
LINK TO PROPERTY APPRAISER WEB



http://www.pa.marion.fl.us/MCPAENG2.PHP?SEARCHBY=PARCEL_ID_REAL&NAME=R3380-1406-00&ROLLYEAR=2015

Teresa Malmberg Added to Council discussion packet for workshop 5/4/16

From: Jan Smith

Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 3:52 PM
To: Teresa Malmberg; Lonnie Smith
Subject: FW: 20717 Walnut St.

| sent this to Eddie not sure if | copied you

Jan Smith

Finance Officer

City of Dunnellon

20750 River Drive

Dunnellon, FL 34431

Phone: 352-465-8500 Ext. 1003
Fax: 352-465-8505

E-mail: jsmith@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Seth Popper [mailto:brookesconsulting@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2016 7:14 AM

To: Jan Smith

Subject: Re: 20717 Walnut St.

| am requesting awaiver of interest on lien #2012-43 at property 20717 walnut street. | would not only like to
request half the interest be waived. | would aso like to bring before the city manager and council that all the
interest and a portion of the fee be waived in order to make this a purchasable property to be used in the growth
of Dunnellon from within. Thank you.

Seth Popper
352-256-0832

Sent from Y ahoo Mail for iPhone

On Monday, April 25, 2016, 2:56 PM, Jan Smith <jsmith@dunnellon.org> wrote:

Mr. Popper,

Thereis one lien outstanding for the above property Lien #2012-43 in the amount of $4,903.83



The amount to satisfy the lien is $4,903.83 + $1,366.54 interest for atotal due of $6,270.37. | spoke
with our City Manager and it is possible to waive 50% of the interest due. This brings the total due down
to $5,587.10.

This property is on the agenda to be discussed at the council workshop on May 4, 2016 at 5:30 pm. |
will need your request for a 50% waiver of the interest in writing as soon as possible so that it can be
included in the discussion with City Council.

Sincerely,

Jan Smith

Finance Officer

City of Dunnellon
20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431

Phone: 352-465-8500 Ext. 1003

Fax: 352-465-8505

E-mail: jsmith@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida hasavery broad public recordslaw. Written communication to or from city
officialsregarding city businessis public record and open to inspection including names,
addresses, and email addresses. Therefore, your email communication may be subject to public
disclosure.



Lien2ct2-43

&\\[ e e
Return to: P DATE: 10/31/2012 09:31:52 AM
City of Dunnellon FILE #: 2012107389 OR BK 05759 PGS 0771-0779
20750 River Drive

REC 78.00

Dunnellon, Florida 34431

Prepared by:

Fowler & O'Quinn, P.A.

28 W. Central Blvd., 4" Floor
Orlando, Florida 32801
(407) 425-2684

CITY OF DUNNELLON, MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
A Florida Municipal Corporation

CITY OF DUNNELLON LIEN

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the City of Dunnellon, Marion County, Florida, hereby declares that it has a true and correct lien in
the amount of $4,903.83 plus interest at a legal rate of 6% per annum from the date hereof, against
the following described real property in Marion County, Florida, and lying within the corporate limits of
the City of Dunnellon, Florida, to-wit:

SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18
PLAT BOOK A PAGE 174

DUNNELLON

LOT 1406

Parcel #3380-1406-00 Property Owner: Roy Felver

Special Magistrate Case #DCV1011-002 Property Address: 20717 Walnut Street

That said lien represents unpaid monies and charges for: Code Enforcement has demolished the
buildings upon the property and cleared the public nuisance of the above listed property in the City of
Dunnellon. Based upon Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law ordered by Special Magistrate Denise A.
Dymond Lyn on September 28, 2011, and shall constitute a lien on said property until fully paid.



In WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor of the City of Dunnellon has hereunto set his respective hand and
seal, and the City Clerk of the City of Dunnellon has hereunto affixed the corporate seal of the City, this

22" day of October,2012.

J ED‘/\\

Fred R. Ward, Mayor S D= D

Atte

/ auex

o
ik Bowne, MMC W-22-) 3
City Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MARION

On this dﬂ“’b{ day of J¢ #y,é r— , 2012, personally appeared before me, Fred R.
Ward and Dawn M. Bowne respectively, of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, who are personally known to

me and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing Lien for the purposes therein expressed.
Witness my hand and seal this day and year last above written.

Z, 7o
: JEANETTE L. REMBERG &7 S »%/jé/
SR, \oTARY PUBLIC 7 ey

’“‘:{ . STATE OF FLORIDA ignature — Notary Public
‘l:*; = Commit DDY63421

W Expires 2/21/2014
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CODE COMPLIANCE SPECIAL
MAGISTRATE, DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

CITY OF DUNNELLON
Petitioner,

Case No. DCV1011-002
ROY JOSEPH FELVER #11-0693
20717 Walnut St.
Dunnellon, FL
Respondent

e et e e

——

[a 13 -
B 5t Bipmmmts
VY U Bunneiica )

SEP 28 7011

RECEIVED
THIS CAUSE came on for public hearing before the City of Dunnellon Code Compliance

Special Magistrate Denise A. Dymond Lyn on September 13, 2011, after due notice and the Special

Magistrate having heard testimony from the Code Enforcement Officer under oath and received
evidence, thereupon issues her Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order, as follows:

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

FINDINGS OF FACT:

1. The real property which is the subject of this case (“Property”) is located at 20717 Walnut
St., Dunnellon, Florida and identified by the Marion County Property Appraiser as 3380-1406-
00. The property is owned by Roy Joseph Felver.

2, After an investigation by Code Enforcement Officer Lawrence Straus, a NOTICE OF
VIOLATION dated April 29, 2011 was posted upon the property on May 2, 2011, was posted upon
the public posting board at Dunnellon City Hall on May, 2011 and was mailed via UPS on May 3,
2011 to be delivered to Respondent at 23185 SW 120 St., Dunnellon, Florida, A SECOND AND
FINAL NOTICE OF VIOLATION dated June 15, 2011 was posted upon the public posting board
at Dunnellon City Hall on June 14, 2011 and was mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested
to Respondent at 23185 SW 120™ St., Dunnellon, Florida on June 14, 2011. Thereafter a CITY
COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE dated July 1, 2011 was posted upon the property on July 1, 2011,
was posted upon the public posting board at Dunnellon City Hall on July 1, 2011 and was mailed
via regular mail, certified mail and UPS ground delivery to Respondent at 23185 SW 120" St.,
Dunneilon, Florida on July 1, 2011. Finally, a SPECIAL MAGISTRATE NOTICE OF HEARING,
dated August 9, 2011 was posted upon the property on August 9, 2011, was posted upon the public
posting board at Dunnellon City Hall on August 9, 2011 and was mailed via regular mail, certified
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mail and by UPS ground delivery to Respondent at 23185 SW 120" St., Dunnellon, Florida on
August 9, 2011.

3. The Dunnellon City Council, in public meeting, reviewed this code enforcement matter
and referred it to this Magistrate for hearing and determination.

4. The Respondent, Roy Joseph Felver was provided proper and adequate notice of the
hearing before this Magistrate but was not present for hearing

5. The Notice of Violation alleged violations of Dunnellon Code Section 99A-2, Nuisance and
Hazards Declared.

6. The buildings that were once constructed upon the property have been burned by fire. What
remains of the buildings is in a serious state of disrepair and dilapidation. It is apparent that the
buildings have not been maintained for a very long time and were never repaired following the fire,
The roof on both buildings has long ago fallen in and does not provide any protection from the
elements. It appears that a porch was, at one time, connected to the front of the main structure but
has since been removed or has deteriorated. There are no windows or doors securing either
building.

7. The City's Building Official, Walter F. ‘Brown has determined that the structures upon the -

property have deteriorated to the point that they are unsafe.
8. - Nothing short of demolition could bring this property into compliance.

9. The City has attempted, on many occasions, to contact the property owner at his last
known address but the property owner has ignored the City's notices and communications. It is
apparent, through his lack of action that the owner has no intent to take any action regardlng the
dilapidated bu11d1ngs upon his property. ‘

10. The City has the resources to effect the demolition of the buildings whereas the property

owner does not appear to either have the resources or the desire or ability to apply those
- resources to secure, rehabilitate or demolish the buildings.

11. The buildings have no historical or cultural significance.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: | ,

12. Respondent knew or should have known of the hearing held on September 13, 2011
because he was mailed notice and because the notice was posted upon his property and at City
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Hall. Respondent waived his right to appear and to testify before the Magistrate by not attending
this hearing.

13. Respondent is in violation of City of Dunnellon Code Section 99A-2. The buildings upon
the property are unoccupied, unsuitable, dangerous and unsafe creating a nuisance and hazard. The
buildings upon the property have become a public nuisance.

14, The Building Official's determination that the buildings are unsafe is correct and the Code
Enforcement Officer's determination that the buildings are unsafe and should be demolished is
correct and appropriate.

ORDER:

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, it is hereby
ORDERED THAT:

15. The Respondent is granted a period of forty-five (45) days from the date of the hearing
held herein on September 13, 2011 or until October 28, 2011 to demolish the buildings upon the
property and to clear the public nuisance. It is the responsibility of the Respondent to remove the
dangerous buildings from his property, on or before the compliance date and to demonstrate to
the City of Dunnetlon’s satisfaction that the violation(s) have been corrected.

16.  Ifthe Respondent does not demolish the buildings as ordered hercin on or before October

28, 2011, the City may take whatever lawful action is necessary to bring the property into ,

compliance with the City's Code of Ordinances.

The Respondent has the right to appeal this order within thirty (30) days of the date of this
Order pursuant to Section 162.11, Florida Statutes.

T -
DONE AND ORDERED this the o? 8 day of September 2011, at inverness, Florida.

Denise)A. Dymond Lyn, Special Magistrate
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1 HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER has been furnished via Regular U.S. Mail and via U.S.
Certicgi Mail to Roy Joseph Felver at 23185 SW 120" St., Dunnellon, Florida, 34431 on this the

2t day of < Seofees ,2011 M

dnfe: Jeanette L. Rehberg
- anette L. Rehberg
z'ltle mning Ass:mm Planning Agsistant

I HEREBY CERTIFY that as an Agent of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, the office to whose
custody the ortginal Order is entrusted, this is a true and correct copy of the document maintained

on file m the Code Compliance records of the City of Dunnellon, fioridaW

Name: _leaneneL,Rnhbag
Title: Planming Assistent
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Lynn Wyland

From: Dawn Bowne

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 1:14 PM
To: Lynn Wyland

Subject: Fw: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Can you create legal opinion in LF and save to the lien file in LF?

Sent from my Verizon 4G LTE Smartphone

------ Original message------

From: Teresa Malmberg

Date: Tue, Sep 16, 2014 11:33 AM

To: Virginia Cassady;Jan Smith;

Cc: Dawn Bowne;Eddie Esch;Larry Straus;
Subject:RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Thanks, Virginia. We will proceed accordingly.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Virginia Cassady [mailto:vcassady@shepardfirm.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 10:55 AM

To: Teresa Malmberg; Jan Smith

Cc: Dawn Bowne; Eddie Esch; Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

First step is to have Larry request that the Special Magistrate authorize the City Attorney to initiate
steps to foreclose on this lien. He should make this request at the next code enforcement meeting.
On the agenda should be:

Request authorization for City Attorney to initiate foreclosure proceedings pursuant to Fla.
Stat.162.09(3) for City of Dunnellon Lien filed at OR Book 05759 Page 771.

Then in the packet, have a copy of the tax deed (attached) together with the packet you sent me (also
attached). Also include the Property Appraiser’s info on this property. If Larry prepares a staff report,
he should state that the property is not homesteaded and should cite to the statute, which says:



After 3 months from the filing of any such lien which remains unpaid, the enforcement board
may authorize the local governing body attorney to foreclose on the lien or to sue to recover a
money judgment for the amount of the lien plus accrued interest.

Special Magistrate does not need to enter an order. She only needs to authorize, and her
authorization should be stated in the minutes.

No need to send notice of this authorization to the property owner.

Once | have been told by Larry that the SM has authorized me to move forward, my first step will be
to write the owner a letter.

Virginia

Shepard, Smith & Cassady, P.A.
Attorneys and Counselors at Law
2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100
Maitland, Florida 32751
Phone 407-622-1772; toll free 866-247-3008
Fax 407-622-1884
vcassady@shepardfirm.com
www.ShepardSmithCassady.com

Virginia Cassady is a Board Certified Specialist in city, county, and local government law.

NOTICE: The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the party or parties addressed and named in this message.
This communication and all attachments, if any, are intended to be and to remain confidential, and it may be subject to the applicable attorney - client
and/or work product privileges. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, or if this message has been addressed to you in error, please
immediately alert the Shepard, Smith & Cassady, P.A. by reply email and then delete this message and its attachments. Do not deliver, distribute, or
copy this message and or any attachments if you are not the intended recipient. Do not disclose the contents or take any action in reliance upon the
information contained in this communication or any attachments. Although this email and any attachments are believed to be free of any virus or other
defect that might affect any computer system into which it is received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure that it is virus free
and no responsibility is accepted by Shepard, Smith & Cassady, P.A. for damage arising in any way from its use.

From: Teresa Malmberg [mailto:tmalmberg@dunnellon.org]
Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 10:11 AM

To: Jan Smith; Virginia Cassady

Cc: Dawn Bowne; Eddie Esch; Larry Straus

Subject: FW: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Jan/Virginia:

Assuming City Manager wants to go forward with foreclosure proceedings, Virginia, please let us all know how to
proceed. The case file is attached for your review. | believe this is out of our hands as far as community development
and/or code enforcement. If Larry needs to stand in front of magistrate and make a statement, he’'ll be happy to do so.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg



Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Lynn Wyland

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 9:27 AM
To: Teresa Malmberg; Dawn Bowne

Cc: Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Good Morning All!
Attached is the document | believe you are looking for...if you need anything further, please let me know !

Thanks!

Lynn Wyland
Lynn Wyland

Staff Assistant

City of Dunnellon
20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
352-322-2447 direct
352-465-8500 ext.1007 main
352-465-8505 fax
Iwyland@dunnellon.org
www.dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 7:47 AM
To: Dawn Bowne

Cc: Lynn Wyland; Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Thanks, Dawn.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator
Public Services and
Community Development
City of Dunnellon



Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Dawn Bowne

Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 6:36 PM

To: Teresa Malmberg

Cc: Lynn Wyland; Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

CODE
VIOLATION, 10/31/2012;
Case File
#DCV1011- #2012107389
Felver, 002, Parcel 20717 or BK 05759
2012- Roy ID#3380-1406- Walnut PGS 0771- Scanned to LF
43 Joseph 000 Street  10/22/2012 0779 11/05/12 ML

According to the number log the above info is the lien information and was scanned into
Laserfiche by Michelle. Lynn can you locate in LF and email to Teresa and Larry?

Dawn M. Bowne

Dawn M. Bowne, MMC
City Clerk

City of Dunnellon
20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
352-465-8500, ext. 1002
352-465-8505 fax

dbowne@dunnellon.org

www.dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 10:11 AM
To: Dawn Bowne

Cc: 'Larry Straus'

Subject: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

| am trying to assist Larry in locating the above named document which would have been filed some time in 2012. He
has been instructed by the City Attorney look into possible foreclosure proceedings, and will need this document to get
a complete answer. Thank you for any assistance you can provide.

4



Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.




Lynn Wyland

From: Dawn Bowne

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 1:16 PM

To: Lynn Wyland

Subject: Fw: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Attachments: 2012-43 Roy Joseph Felver (Code Violation_demolished property) 10_31_12.pdf

For lien of file

Sent from my Verizon 4G LTE Smartphone

------ Original message------

From: Teresa Malmberg

Date: Tue, Sep 16, 2014 10:10 AM

To: Jan Smith; Virginia Cassady;

Cc: Dawn Bowne;Eddie Esch;Larry Straus;
Subject:FW: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Jan/Virginia:

Assuming City Manager wants to go forward with foreclosure proceedings, Virginia, please let us all know how to
proceed. The case file is attached for your review. | believe this is out of our hands as far as community development
and/or code enforcement. If Larry needs to stand in front of magistrate and make a statement, he’'ll be happy to do so.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Lynn Wyland

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 9:27 AM
To: Teresa Malmberg; Dawn Bowne

Cc: Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Good Morning All!
Attached is the document | believe you are looking for...if you need anything further, please let me know !

Thanks!

Lynn Wyland
Lynn Wyland

Staff Assistant

City of Dunnellon



20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
352-322-2447 direct
352-465-8500 ext.1007 main
352-465-8505 fax
Iwyland@dunnellon.org
www.dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 7:47 AM
To: Dawn Bowne

Cc: Lynn Wyland; Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

Thanks, Dawn.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Dawn Bowne

Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 6:36 PM

To: Teresa Malmberg

Cc: Lynn Wyland; Larry Straus

Subject: RE: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

CODE
VIOLATION, 10/31/2012;
Case File
#DCV1011- #2012107389
Felver, 002, Parcel 20717 or BK 05759
2012- Roy ID#3380-1406- Walnut PGS 0771- Scanned to LF
43 Joseph 000 Street  10/22/2012 0779 11/05/12 ML

According to the number log the above info is the lien information and was scanned into
Laserfiche by Michelle. Lynn can you locate in LF and email to Teresa and Larry?



Dawn M. Bowne

Dawn M. Bowne, MMC
City Clerk

City of Dunnellon
20750 River Drive
Dunnellon, FL 34431
352-465-8500, ext. 1002
352-465-8505 fax

dbowne@dunnellon.org

www.dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communication to or from city officials regarding
city business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and email addresses. Therefore,
your email communication may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Teresa Malmberg

Sent: Monday, September 15, 2014 10:11 AM
To: Dawn Bowne

Cc: 'Larry Straus'

Subject: Felver - Order Imposing Fine & Lien

| am trying to assist Larry in locating the above named document which would have been filed some time in 2012. He
has been instructed by the City Attorney look into possible foreclosure proceedings, and will need this document to get
a complete answer. Thank you for any assistance you can provide.

Regards,
Tervesa Malmberg

Administrative Coordinator

Public Services and

Community Development

City of Dunnellon

Of: 352.465.8500 x1101

Fax: 352.465.8592

tmalmberg@dunnellon.org

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Written communications to or from city officials regarding city
business is public record and open to inspection including names, addresses, and e-mail addresses. Therefore, your e-
mail communication may be subject to public disclosure.
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SALE #288161
AMENDED NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR TAX DEED

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, THAT B & S & GG LLC THE HOLDER OF THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATE
HAS FILED SAID CERTIFICATES FOR A TAX DEED TO BE ISSUED THEREON. THE CERTIFICATE NUMBER AND
YEAR OF ISSUANCE, THE DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY, AND THE NAMES IN WHICH IT WAS ASSESSED ARE

AS FOLLOWS:

CERTIFICATE NO: 14549 YEAR OF ISSUANCE: 2009

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

#3380-1406-00 Vg

SEC 35 TWP 16 RGE 18 Yo . Q/LJ‘( .

DUNNELLON LOT 1406 un Pl F S ~
PLAT BOOK A PAGE 174 o~ City of |

»-'/ .

l

NAME IN WHICH ASSESSE ROY JOSEPH FELVER ! L DL |
e P - Ll T T, ;; =)
SAID PROPERTY BEING IN THE COUNTY OF MARION, STATE OF FLORIDA

UNLESS SAID CERTIFICATE SHALL BE REDEEMED ACCORDING TO LAW THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN SUCH
CERTIFICATE SHALL BE SOLD TO THE HIGHEST BIDDER IN THE JURY ASSEMBLY ROOM OF THE MARION
COUNTY JUDICIAL CENTER, 110 NW 1ST AVENUE, OCALA, FL 34475 OF THE MARION COUNTY JUDICIAL CENTER
ON THE 13TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013 AT 8:30 A.M.

SNy 1

Dated this Dec-27-2012 =S oneurth,
ESlan,
79 2
o [ el ]
Signature '&}‘:%P Ao“é’:
[ et
DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN BT
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT OF

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

TO RUN: Dec-27-2012 Jan-03-2013 Jan-10-2013 Jan-17-2013
WARNING!

THERE ARE UNPAID TAXES ON THE PROPERTY WHICH YOU OWN OR HAVE A LEGAL INTEREST.
THE PROPERTY WILL BE SOLD AT PUBLIC AUCTION ON Feb-13-2013 AT 8:30 A.M. UNLESS THE
BACK TAXES ARE PAID. TO MAKE PAYMENT, CONTACT GEORGE ALBRIGHT, TAX COLLECTOR,
ATTN: DELINQUENT TAX DEPARTMENT AT 503 SE 25™ AVENUE, OCALA, FL 34471 OR P.O. BOX 2002
OCALA, FL 34478-2002 OR BY TELEPHONE (352) 368-8274.

TO RECEIVE FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT DAVID R. ELLSPERMANN, CLERK OF THE
CIRCUIT COURT ATTN: TAX DEEDS AT 19 N. PINE AVENUE , ROOM 125, OCALA, FL 34475 OR P.O.
BOX 1030, OCALA, FL 34478-1030 OR BY TELEPHONE (352) 671-5648.

DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAXES DUE FOR THE YEARS: 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
REDEMPTION AMOUNT: $ 3,558.84

Note: REMIT BY MONEY ORDER, CASHIER’S CHECK OR CERTIFIED CHECK ONLY FOR TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE
REDEEMED.

MAKE PAYABLE TO: GEORGE ALBRIGHT, TAX COLLECTOR, MARION COUNTY
MAIL TO: P.0. BOX 2002; OCALA. FL 34478-2002




DJNN ELLON POLICE DEPARTMEN'IO
CODE ENFORCEMENT DIVISION
12014 SOUTH WILLIAMS STREET

DUNNELLON, FL 34432

AFFIDAVIT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Date: June 5, 2012 Case No: DCVI1011-002: #110693

Violator: Roy Felver

Address: 20717 Wainut Street, Dunnellon, Florida

Pursuant to Chapter 162.09(2)(d), of the Florida Statutes, the following is a summary of actual minimal costs
incurred by the City of Dunnetlon for the enforcement of City Code against the above referenced property and
property owner,

Inspection Expenses: =

Mileage Expense: =

Photographic Costs: : =

Mailing Costs: UPS, Regular & Certified Mail =$i01.83

Posting Costs: =

Special Magistrate Fee: = $525.00

Recording Fee: =

Administrative Costs: Demolition = $4,280.00
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES: =$4.903.83

Before me, the undersigned authority personally appeared Lawrence Straus, who, after being duly cautioned and
sworn deposes and states under oath:

1. My legal name is Lawrence Straus
2. I am employed by the City of Dunnellon and I have direct personal knowledge of the facts stated herein.
3. The Administrative Fees are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

IS

Code Enforcement Officer

[, Marsha Segal-George, Assistant City Attorney for the City of Dunnelion do hereby certify the
Administrative Fees are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, this /9 day of
Tun-e , 20 1o\ .




\-JUNNELLON POLICE DEPARTMENCJ
CODE ENFORCEMENT DIVISION
12014 SOUTH WILLIAMS STREET

DUNNELLON, FL 34432

AFFIDAVIT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES
NOTARIZATION

Sworn to and subscribed before me this Sth day of June, 2012. The affiant, who is

personally known to me, did date an oath and appeared before me at the time of
notarization.

NOTARY PUBLIC:

Sign: jﬁ%%{ﬁ%

Print” Jeanette L. Rehberg

JEANETTE L. REHBERG
NOTARY PUBLIC

= Commi DD253421 SEAL

State of Florida
County of Marion
My Commission Expires: February 21. 2014




FTHEREBY CERTIFY that a tvué and correct copy of the foregoing AFviDAVIT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES has been furnished via Regular U.S. Mail and via U.S. Certified Mail to
Roy Joseph Felver at 23185 SW 120" St., Dunnellon F1 34431, 20717 Walnut St. ,» Dunnellon, FL 34431,

and 22759 SW 117" Place, Dunnellon, FL. 34431-6201 on this 21 day of June, 2012 %

Name: Jeanette L. Rehberg
Title: Planning Assistant

THEREBY CERTIFY that as an Agent of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, the office to whose custody
the original order is entrusted, this is a true and correct copy of the document maintained on file in the
Code Compliance Records of the City of Dunnellon, Florida.

WW

Name: Jeanette L. Rehberg
Title: Planning Assistant




Meeting Date: 5, / o // 16

From (Dept): Roads & Streets

Official Use Only

Reviewed by
City Attorney:

Council Action:

Signature: P
Wﬁector
Approved for .
Agenda: Date:
"City Manager
SUBJECT:

Request For Approval: AGR#2016-21 Kimley Horn IPO#52 — Short Tower Way Reconstruction

SUMMARY EXPLANATION & BACKGROUND: The City desires to reconstruct and pave Short Tower Way, from
CR 484 to the end of the City’s ROW for a total length of approximately 500 feet. A new paved connection will be

provided from the end of Blue Heron Court to the newly paved Short Tower Way.

FISCAL INFORMATION: $60,000 Budgeted FY15-16 for engineering and construction. Funding from 5™ cent

gas tax reserve.

PROCUREMENT METHOD:

PURCHASE REQUISITION NUMBER:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Mayor to sign agreement AGR#2016-21

Initiated by: EE/js




LA6r# z016-2)
Kimley»Horn

INDIVIDUAL PROJECT ORDER NUMBER 52

Describing a specific agreement between Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (the “Engineer” or “Kimley-
Horn"), and The City of Dunnellon (the “City”) in accordance with the terms of the Master Agreement for
Continuing Professional Services dated November 9, 2009, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Identification of Project:

Project: Short Tower Way Reconstruction
Client: City of Dunnelion
Project Manager: Lewis Bryant

Background Information:

The City desires to reconstruct and pave Short Tower Way, from CR 484 to the end of the City's ROW for
a total length of approximately 500 feet. A new paved connection will be provided from the end of Blue
Heron Court to the newly paved Short Tower Way. It is assumed that the improvements are exempt from
SWFWMD ERP permitting. It is assumed that no ROW acquisition will be required for the improvements.

With the above in mind, our scope of services, schedule, and fee are provided below.
Specific Scope of Basic Services:

Task 1 — Design Plans

A. Kimley-Horn will retain the services of a licensed surveyor to perform a route survey in
compliance with Florida Minimum Technical Standards Rule 5J-17 FAC for engineering design.

B. Kimley-Horn will retain the services of a geotechnical engineering firm to perform two pavement
cores to identify the existing road base materials.

C. Kimley-Horn will perform one site visit to generally document the condition of the roadway
corridor and compare existing conditions to the survey.

D. Kimley-Horn will prepare design plans for construction of an asphalt roadway along the existing
alignment of Short Tower Way. The design will include a paved connection from the existing
paved Blue Heron Court to Short Tower Way. Design plans will be prepared on 11" X 17" sheets
and will generally include a cover sheet, general notes sheet, typical section sheet, plan sheet(s),
and a details sheet if necessary.

E. Kimley-Horn will submit up to five copies of the roadway design plans to the City at the 90%
design stage.

F. Kimley-Horn will incorporate City comments on the 90% design plan submittal into Final design
plans.

G. Kimley-Horn will submit up to five copies of the Final roadway design plans to the City.

H. Kimley-Horn will provide electronic copy of the Final design plans.
Task 2 — Bid Administration Assistance

A. Kimley-Horn will prepare bid packages consisting of plans and specifications (in EJCDC format)
to be included in the City's bid packages.

B. The City will prepare and advertise the Bid Notification. Kimley-Horn will provide the technical
information required for the notification language.

C. Kimley-Horn will conduct a pre-bid meeting with prospective bidders.



Kimley»Horn

D. Kimley-Horn will administer distribution of the bid packages and maintain a log of the issued bid
packages. Kimley-Horn will charge those requesting bid packages a fee for each set of issued
documents. The fee is intended to cover the cost of reproduction, shipping and handling of the bid
packages. The City will be provided with two bid package sets at no cost.

E. Kimley-Horn will respond to Request for Information’s (RFIs) and prepare bid addendums as
necessary during the bid process.

F. Kimley-Horn will review the bid responses and tabulate the results. Kimley-Horn will provide the
City with a written bid tabulation record along with a selection recommendation.

Additional Services if Required:

The following services are not included in this Agreement, but may be authorized by the City should they
become necessary. Additional Services will be performed under a separate IPO.

Preparation of a SWFWMD permit.

Development of Traffic Control Plans.

Development of Utility Adjustment Plans.

Construction Stage Services.

5. Any other professional consulting service not specifically detailed in the Scope of Services.

bl

Schedule:

The Engineer will provide the above Scope of Services as expeditiously as possible to meet a mutually
agreed upon schedule.

Method of Compensation:

The Engineer will perform the services described in the Scope of Services for a lump sum fee of $23,600,
inclusive of expenses. All permitting, application, and similar project fees will be paid directly by the CITY.
A breakdown of fee by task is as follows:

Task Description Lump Sum Fee

Task 1 | Design Plans $17,100

Task 2 | Bid Administration Assistance $6,500
Total: $23,600

Any additional or miscellaneous services requested by the City but not specifically included in the above
Scope of Services will be provided in accordance with the approved rate schedule on an hourly labor fee
plus expense basis.

ACCEPTED BY:

THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

BY: BY: %%m
M. Lewis Bryant, PE N~

TITLE: TITLE:_Associate

DATE: DATE:_April 18, 2016

G:\Wew Business\Public Sector\City of Dunnellon\2016\Short Tower Way\IPO #52 - Short Tower Way Reconstruction Rev 4-18-16.doc



Official Use Only
Meeting Date: 5/4 //é
rT Reviewed by

From (Dept): ﬁ City Attorney:
Signature: 7 Council Action:

De| enjDirector
Approved for .
Agenda: Date:

City Manager
SUBJECT:

Request For Approval: AGR#2016-22 Kimley Horn IPO#53 — Juliette Falls WWTF Permit Renewal

SUMMARY EXPLANATION & BACKGROUND: The Juliette Falls Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF)
operates under the FDEP Domestic Wastewater Facility Permit number FL.A490415. The current operating permit
was issued on April 4, 2012 and expires on April 3, 2017. Chapter 62-620 of the FL. Administrative Code requires
submittal of the operating permit renewal application no later than 180 days before the expiration date.

FISCAL INFORMATION: Not Budgeted in FY15-16. $9,500 Funding from sewer operating reserve. Budget
amendment will be presented to Council if required at yearend.

PROCUREMENT METHOD:
PURCHASE REQUISITION NUMBER:
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Mayor to sign agreement AGR#2016-22

Initiated by: EE/js




A(gﬂ A0|b-22
Kimley»Horn

INDIVIDUAL PROJECT ORDER NUMBER 53

Describing a specific agreement between Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (the “Engineer” or “Kimley-
Horn"), and The City of Dunnellon (the “City”) in accordance with the terms of the Master Agreement for
Continuing Professional Services dated November 9, 2009, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Identification of Project:

Project: Juliette Falls WWTF Permit Renewal
Client: City of Dunnellon
Project Manager: Lewis Bryant

Background Information:

The Juliette Falls Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) operates under the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP) Domestic Wastewater Facility Permit number FLA490415. The current
operating permit was issued on April 4, 2012 and expires on April 3, 2017. Chapter 62-620 of the Florida
Administrative Code requires submittal of the operating permit renewal application no later than 180 days
before the expiration date.

The detailed scope of services for Kimley-Horn to prepare the required FDEP operating permit renewal
package is described below.

Specific Scope of Basic Services:

Task 1 — Design Plans

A. Kimley-Horn will retain the services of a licensed surveyor to perform a route survey in compliance
with Florida Minimum Technical Standards Rule 5J-17 FAC for engineering design.

Task 2 — FDEP WWTF Domestic Wastewater Facility Permit Renewal Application

A. Kimley-Horn will attend a pre-application meeting with FDEP to ensure all required information is
included in the application package.

B. Kimley-Horn will prepare and submit a FDEP WWTF Domestic Wastewater Facility Permit Renewal
Application. The following information is anticipated to be required with the submittal package:

e Form 62-620.910 (1) “Wastewater Facility or Activity Permit Application — General
Information — Form 1”

e Form 62-620.910 (2) “Wastewater Permit Application Form 2A for Domestic Wastewater

Facilities”

A “Capacity Analysis Report” update

An “Operation and Maintenance Performance Report”

Form 62-610.300(4)(a)1 “Annual Reuse Report’

Form 62-610.300(4)(a)4 “Pathogen Monitoring”

Form 62-620.910(15) “Reclaimed Water or Effluent Analysis Report”

A current flow meter calibration certification

Current Residuals Management Facilities (RMF) agreement

Current Reuse agreements (for each reuse site)

Current flow diagram depicting sample and metering locations

Current site plan

Current Operating Protocol

Permit Application Fee (provided by the City)

C. Kimley-Horn will make up to two site visits to conduct inspections, review plant information and
interview plant operators.



Kimley»Horn

D. Kimley-Horn will prepare the following information:

1. Form 62-620.910 (1) “Wastewater Facility or Activity Permit Application — General
Information — Form 1”

2. Form 62-620.910 (2) “Wastewater Permit Application Form 2A for Domestic Wastewater
Facilities”

3. A Capacity Analysis Report Update
4. An Operation and Maintenance Performance Report

E. The City will provide the following information:

Form 62-610.300(4)(a)1 “Annual Reuse Report”

Form 62-610.300(4)(a)4 “Pathogen Monitoring”

Form 62-620.910(15) “Reclaimed Water or Effluent Analysis Report”
A current flow meter calibration certification

Current Residuals Management Facilities (RMF) agreement

Current Reuse agreements (for each reuse site)

Current flow diagram depicting sample and metering locations
Current site plan

© ® N R 0N

Ground water monitoring reports for the last 5 years
. FDEP Permit Application Fee
. Dates and descriptions of all facility modifications within the last 5 years

JEE G G Y
N = O

. Any FDEP consent orders
. Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMR's) for the last 5 years

-
H W

. A copy of the WWTF Preliminary Design Report

-
[$)]

. Up to date record drawings

=Y
[=2]

. Up to date Operation and Maintenance Manuals

-
~

. Up to date Operating Protocol
18. Cross-connection control and inspection program
19. Industrial pre-treatment program

F. Kimley-Horn will provide two draft permit application packages to the City for review prior to
submittal. Kimley-Horn will provide the City with two final versions of the application package and
all RAI submittals.

G. After the initial permit renewal application submittal, Kimley-Horn will respond no more than two
reasonable requests for additional information (RAIl). Additional RAI responses will be performed
on an hourly labor fee plus expense basis in accordance with the approved rate schedule.

Additional Services if Required:

This proposal does not include performing any specialized studies outside those listed above. On specific
projects in the past, FDEP has requested additional hydro-geological studies, attendance of multiple
meetings at FDEP offices, performing reuse feasibility studies, preparing or updating reclaimed water
operating protocols, preparing or updating Operation and Maintenance manuals, preparing construction or
modification plans, and certifying the completion of FDEP required repairs or sampling the WWTP effluent
and existing groundwater monitoring wells. These types of activities are not anticipated and are not
included.



Kimley»Horn

Services requested that are not specifically included will be provided under an amendment of this scope of
services or as a new and separate agreement upon written authorization.

Schedule:

The Engineer will provide the above Scope of Services as expeditiously as possible to meet a mutually
agreed upon schedule.

Method of Compensation:

The Engineer will complete the above scope of services for a lump sum fee of $9,500 inclusive of expenses.

ACCEPTED BY:

THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

BY: BY: %fé{m
M. Lewis Bryant, PE p—

TITLE: TITLE:_Associate

DATE: DATE:_April 15, 2016

G:\New Business\Public Sector\City of Dunnellom\2016\Juliette Falls WWTF Permit Renewal\lPO #53_Juliette Falls WWTF Permit Renewal.docx



Agreement #P0139

AMENDMENT ONE
TO GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
AND THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

On October 30, 2015, the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity (“DEQ”), and the City of
Dunnellen, Florida (“Grantee”) (collectively the “Parties”), entered into an agreement, Agreement PG139
(“Agreement”), in the amount of $50,000, for a Community Planning Technical Assistance grant, provided
pursuant to section 163.3168, F.S.

WHEREAS, Section |.A., Renegotiation or Modification, of the Agreement provides that any modifications
to the Agreement shall be in writing executed by the Parties thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to increase grant funding by $24,000, for a total of
$74,000, for the Grantee to conduct public workshops to advise the public of the content of the proposed
comprehensive plan amendments and conduct a public hearing to adopt the proposed comprehensive
plan amendments.

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the foregoing, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations set
forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the
following:

1. The first sentence of section I.D., Agreement Payment, of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its
entirety and replaced with the following;:

“This Agreement shall not exceed seventy-four thousand doilars ($74,000) which shall be paid by DEQ
in consideration for Grantee’s provision of services as set forth by the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,”

2. The table in section 4, Deliverables, of Attachment 1, Scope of Work, is hereby amended to add
Deliverable 4, delete and replace the “Total” amount, and delete and replace footnote 1 to the table,

as follows:
DEIiverabIes and Tasks Performance Measures Due Date Fixed
Payment
Amount

Deliverable 4. Conduct three public workshops and one adoption public hearing pursuant to
section 163.3184(11), F.S.
Task 4.1 — Conduct three Completion of tasks in Deliverable 4, as | June 20, $24,000.00
advertised public evidenced by the following, in either 2016
workshops regarding the hard copy or digitally (any maps shall
City’s proposed EAR-based be provided on a compact disc in PDF

plan amendments. format):

Task 4.2 — Conduct one Task 4.1

public hearing to consider Each of the following for all three
adoption of the City’s public workshops:

proposed EAR-based plan 1. the public notice;
2. anagenda;

Page 1 0of 3



Agreement #P0139

amendments pursuant to
section 163.3184(11), F.S.

3. the minutes or summary of the
workshop;

4. acopy of any handouts, other than

the proposed EAR-based

comprehansive plan amendments;

and

a copy of any PowerPoint
presentation used at the
workshop.

i

Task 4.2

1. the public notice or notices of City

Council adoption public hearing;

2. an agenda for City Council

adoption public hearing;

3. the minutes or a written summary

of the Town Council adoption
public hearing;

4. acopy of adoption ordinance or, if

the proposed EAR-based
amendments are not adopted, an
email or letter advising that the

EAR-based plan amendments were

not adepted; and

5. if applicable, a copy of any changes

made to the proposed EAR-based
amendments as a result of the
public workshops or the adoption
public hearing.!

Total: $74,000.00

! The adopted plan amendment is not part of this Agreement. Grantee shall forward the
adopted plan amendment package to DEQ at the following address: D. Ray Eubanks, Plan
Review Administrator, Department of Economic Opportunity, 107 East Madison Street,
MSC 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, for review pursuant to section 163.3184, F.S.

3. Except as expressly modified herein, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force

and effect,

4. This Amendment One is effective on the date the last Party signs this Amendment.

Page 2 of 3



Agreement #P0139

IN WITNESS HEREQF, by signature below, the Parties agree to abide by the terms, conditions, and
provisions of Agreement P0139, as amended.

CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA DEPARTMENT QF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
By By
Signature Signature
Nathan Whitt Taylor Teepell
Title Mayor Title Director, Division of Community

Development

Date Date
A true copy: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency,
subject only to full and proper execution by
ATTEST: the Parties,

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Clerk

By:

Approved Date;

Page 3 of 3



RESOLUTION #RES2016-12

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA,
ADOPTING THE MARION COUNTY LOCAL MITIGATION
STRATEGY PLAN 2015 UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL
AND CONFLICT; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Dunnellonis vulnerable to the human and economic costs of
natural, technologicand societal disasters, atiet Councilrecognizes the importance of reducing
or eliminating those vulnerabilities for the overall safety, health, and welfare of the comrandity

WHEREAS, The City of Dunnellorrecognizes thategardless of efforts and preparation to
reduce or eliminate suahulnerabilities,natural, technological, and societal disasters may occur and
recovery from such disasters is critical to the overall safety, health, and welfare of theraom
and

WHEREAS, the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000"Act") required each local
jurisdiction to establish and maintain an individual local mitigation plan or actigetjycipate in
the development and maintenance of mjultisdictionallocal mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, the Act significantly expanded the mitigation planning requirements in order
for state and local jurisdictions to maintain their eligibility for Federal hazard mitigation funds; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 44 CFR Stons 201& 206 provide that a local jurisdiction(s) must
review and revise the local mitigatigsian to reflect changes in development, progress in local
mitigation efforts, and changes in priorities, and update the local trofigplana minimum of
every five (5) years in order to continue to be eligibleRederal hazard mitigatidandsunder the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMANd

WHEREAS, the Florida Division of Emergency ManagemerfdEM”) is the State of
Florida office responsible for reviewing and coordinating local mitigation plansState and
Federal compliancesavell as distributing State allocated Federal hazard mitigation funds; and

WHEREAS, Rule 9G22 of the Florida Administrative Code, titles a local mitigation plan
as the jurisdiction’s Local Mitigatiostrategy (“LMS”) and sets forth the method for mamihg
and evaluating changes to hazard assessments, project priority list, critical facititiepéstive
flood-loss listand map revisions; and

WHEREAS, Marion County andhe City of Ocala, the City of Belleview, the City of
Dunnellon, the Town of Mcintosh, the Town of Reddick, community interests and stakeholders
have prepared, adopted and maintained a Local Mitigation Strategy “RMIS (Plar’) which
presents a unified strategy toward building a disastghent community; and

WHEREAS, the Marion County Board of County Commissioners taskedMS Working
Group to create and maintain the Marion County LMS Plan; and

Pagel of 2
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WHEREAS, Marion County’s original LMS Plan was approvadd adopted in 1999 by
Resolution No. 99-R-293 and updated by Resolution 05-R-108; and Resolution 11-R-129; and

WHEREAS, the LMS Working Group prepared theMarion County Local Mitigation
Strategy Plan 2015 Update (“Update”) pursuant to Chapter 44 CFR Sec. 20 Rule 9&2,
F.A.C, including conducting public meetings to receive public comment and recommendations
regarding théJpdate and

WHEREAS, the Updatdas receivedonditional approval by the FDEM and FEMA; and

WHEREAS, theFDEM and FEMAconditional approval of the LMS Update will become
final upon adoption of thelpdateby the Board of County Commissioners.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Dunnellon, Florida:

SECTION 1. ADOPTION. The City of Dunnellon City Councihereby approves and
adopts thévlarion County 2015 Local Mitigation Strategy Plan 2015 Update.

SECTION 2. COPY OF FILE. A copy of theMarion County Local Mitigation Strategy
Plan 2015 Update shall be maintainedn file with the Marion County Clerk of Court of the Board
and in the Marion County GrowtervicesDepartment.

SECTION 3. REPEAL AND CONFLICT. The Marion County Local Mitigation
Strategy Plan 2015 Update shall stand as the Marion County Local Mitigation Strategy superseding
prior editions.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shabecome effective immediately
upon its adoption.

Upon motion duly made and carried, the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the City Council of
the City of Dunnellon this 9th day day, 2016.

ATTEST: CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
DAWN M. BOWNE, M.M.C. NATHAN WHITT, MAYOR
CITY CLERK

Approvedas to form and legality:

Andrew Hand, City Attorney

Page2 of 2
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	AGENDA ITEM NO. 23 � ADJOURNMENT
	At approximately 8:30 p.m. Councilman Dillon moved the April 11, 2016 City Council meeting be adjourned. Richard Hancock seconded.  All members voted in favor.  The motion passed 4-0.
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